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In the news

Breaking new ground in Santa Fe
On September 10, 2008, LANB 

broke ground on the new Cerrillos 

office in Santa Fe. The new office 

will be located at the intersection of 

Cerrillos Road and Vegas Verde. 

The new office will be a two story, 14,000 
square foot full-service facility built 
to LEED certified “green” building 
standards. This new location will provide 
convenience to south Santa Fe customers 
and will include full banking services plus 
five drive-up lanes. Construction is 
expected to be completed September 2009. 

Attending the groundbreaking ceremony 
were Mayor David Coss of Santa Fe, 
members of the TCC’s Board of Directors, 
contractors from Jaynes Corp., architects 
from SMPC, customers and other commu-
nity members.

ABOVE: Artist rendering of 
new LANB office at Cerrillos 

Road and Vegas Verde. 

RIGHT: Officials from LANB, 
City of Santa Fe, Jaynes Corp.  

and SMPC. 
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In 1993, LANB began offering 
trust and estate planning ser-
vices to customers, knowing it 
would be of significant value to 
our customers in the future. 
LANB has provided investment 
services via third party arrange-
ments for nearly two decades, 
starting with PrimeVest Invest-
ments and later with Smith Bar-
ney.  These third party arrange-
ments allowed LANB to provide 
a local option for equity invest-
ing and added convenience  
for customers. 

In 2005, Daniel Monte, a well 
respected and skilled Santa Fe 
trust and estate attorney, was 
hired to manage the trust activi-
ties for LANB.  His talents, as 
well as those of the outstanding 
staff he has assembled, includ-
ing Bernadette Rodriquez, Don-
ald Kirby, Eric Loucks, and Ellie 
Roberts, have significantly im-

proved the level of expertise and 
service available to customers.

In October 2008, well-known 
Santa Fe investment advisory 
firm Allocca & Brunett became 
interested in selling due to the 
retirement of partner Joe Alloc-
ca.  Having worked with Alloc-
ca & Brunett over the years, 
LANB recognized the value of 
their business.  This purchase 
nearly doubled LANB’s invest-
ment management business, 
but more importantly, brought 
in valuable talent to move this 

part of the business forward.  
One of those talents is John  
Brunett (pictured). John has 14 
years of experience in financial 
management, planning and 
banking.  He is a long-time resi-
dent of Santa Fe and an active 
member of the community. He 
serves on the Board of Directors 
for the Santa Fe Boys & Girls 
Club and will play a key  role in 
the expansion of LANB‘s invest-
ment services.  

This acquisition has contribut-
ed to earnings almost immedi-
ately and improved the depth 
and value of investment ser-
vices LANB provides custom-
ers and those brought to LANB 
by this transaction.  Integration 
of customers and employees of 
Allocca and Brunett to the 
LANB Trust and Investment 
Services is expected to be com-
plete by June 2009. 

LANB expands Trust & Investment services
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LANB named Best Place to Work
For the third year in a row, Los Alamos National Bank was 
named a “Best Place To Work” by the New Mexico Business 
Weekly. LANB was honored with this recognition in the 
large business category. Said President Steve Wells “It speaks 
to the fact that our employees enjoy their workplace.  That’s 
been a business principle for us, not to just look at the bot-
tom line, but to see how we can create shared success for 
employees and shareholders.” The award was presented at 
an awards banquet in December 2008.

Best of Santa Fe Winner
Los Alamos National Bank was pleased to receive recogni-
tion as a “Best of Santa Fe First Place Winner” in the annual 
survey done by the Santa Fe Reporter.  “We opened our first 
office in Santa Fe in 1999. To be recognized as the “Best Bank 
or Credit Union in Santa Fe” for three years in a row reflects 
that we have firmly established our presence in the Santa Fe 
market. Our customers appreciate the community support 
we provide as well as being extremely satisfied with our 
service,” said Fidel Gutierrez, Senior Vice President.

NEW MEXICO’SNE ICO’SS

Building a better community
At Los Alamos National Bank, we believe that it is our responsibility 
to give back to the communities we serve, since a strong community 
is the foundation for any business to be successful. We are proud to 
support many organizations, causes and events in the Los Alamos 
and Santa Fe area communities and encourage our employees to do 
the same. In fact, our 287 employees collectively logged more than 
6,000 hours of volunteer time in 2008.

TCC not only gives time, but also spends more than 45% of its market-
ing expenses on community events and support of education, youth 
activities and economic development. It aligns our conscience with 
that of our neighbors. Historically, more than 38% of our new custom-
ers have come via referrals from other satisfied customers. Just as 
many cite our community support as they do our outstanding cus-
tomer service as the reason they selected LANB.  We try to keep in 
mind a print ad never provided a scholarship for a student. 

Folk Art Market again turns to LANB 
Los Alamos National Bank is once again the official financial 
sponsor of the 5th Annual Santa Fe International Folk Art 
Market. LANB employees donate their time and expertise at 
the Market by providing in-kind services such as cashiering 
services, credit card processing, international wire transfers, 
and back room accounting during the four-day event.  In an-
ticipation of the immense amount of commerce that takes 
place at the event, volunteers are required to attend multiple 
trainings a few days before the event to ensure that the  
Market’s money exchange runs smoothly.
 
In 2008, the Market made it possible for 125 artists from 41 coun-
tries to come to Santa Fe for what has become one of the largest 
international markets in the world. Visitors attending the Mar-
ket enjoy ethnic foods, artists’ demonstrations, international 
performances and educational activities all weekend long. At-
tendance increased to more than 20,000 attendees in 2008. The 
Market significantly impacts the local economy by bringing 
more than 11,000 visitors to Santa Fe each year. LANB is honored 
to play such a key role in this outstanding community event.

LANB sponsors Santa Fe Children’s Museum
LANB was a major supporter of the Santa Fe Children’s  
Museum through its support of the Ice Cream Sunday and 
Birthday events. Contributions to the museum assists in vari-
ous educational programs for the youth in New Mexico. On 
average, the museum receives 80,000 visitors annually in ad-
dition to 8,500 school groups.

 
LANB sponsors Kite Festival

Each year on the third weekend in May, the windy Spirio  
Soccer Fields in White Rock are filled with high flying hand-
made kites. The Los Alamos Arts council, in conjunction with 
LANB, brings free kite building workshops to children in lo-
cal schools and culminates in a three-day, activity packed 
festival weekend. Throughout the course of the Kite Festival, 
nearly 1,000 children learn how to build and decorate kites 
with assistance from LANB/TG staff and other community 
volunteers. The event has gained popularity over the years 
and brings kite enthusiasts from all over the Southwest to fly 
their large, intricately shaped kites, hand-made flying works 
of art and demonstrate stunt-kite flying during the course of 
the Festival.

 Grand Prix de Santa Fe and LANB give back to 
the community

The Grand Prix de Santa Fe is a world-class equestrian show-
jumping event that has nearly a one million dollar economic 
impact on the Santa Fe community. All net proceeds go to  
local equestrian and social service non-profits. LANB contin-
ues to be a major sponsor of this event and its festivities.

 

LANB and United Way make a great team 
Each year, LANB participates in fundraising for the United 
Way, which benefits programs in Northern New Mexico and 
Santa Fe County. Thanks to the generosity and time of its em-
ployees, LANB was able to donate more than $70,000 in 2008.   
Meaning that once again  LANB was the second leading corpo-
rate contributor behind the 7,000 employees of LANL.

LANB partakes in Pancake tradition
Taking place annually on July 4th, Pancakes on the Plaza has 
been a Santa Fe tradition for 33 years. This is one of the largest 
community events in Santa Fe and one of the largest fundrais-
ers for United Way of Santa Fe County, which provides funds 
for the Santa Fe Children’s Project and other community pro-
grams. More than 12,000 citizens participate in the festivities 
over breakfast and entertainment on the historic Santa Fe 
Plaza.  LANB has been a long time participant in this event. In 
2007, a new tradition began–the Children’s Pajama Parade. 
Fidel Gutierrez, Senior Vice President of LANB, serves as 
Master of Ceremonies, leading the participating children in a 
parade around downtown.

As we all realize, the economy 
is officially in a recession, 
which may continue well into 
the second half of 2009.  Al-
though we are in a time of 
severe economic and finan-
cial distress, when the finan-
cial service industry has gen-
erally suffered significant loss 
in both value and confidence, 
Trinity Capital Corporation 
(TCC) has managed to sail 
against the wind and has 
maintained a level keel.

The environment of 2008 
tested management and the 

Board. We have benefitted 
from Board Members with 
broad experience and clear 
perspective. They brought to 
TCC’s mission an awareness 
of the need to strike balances 
between the desire for growth, 
prudent risk assessment and 
the realistic management of 
expectations. We also benefit-
ted from a management team 
and a dedicated group of em-
ployees that is unequaled in 
the New Mexico banking 
community. 

There were many bright notes 
of which we can all be proud. 
We experienced asset growth 
that exceeded 2007 and broke 
ground on the new office on 
Cerrillos Road, which is ex-
pected to open for business in 
the third quarter of 2009.  We 
also increased stock divi-
dends to our shareholders for 
24 years in a row. For the third 
consecutive year, the Bank 
was voted No. 1 Bank in the 
“Best of Santa Fe” and man-

ages to maintain the largest 
market share for both Santa 
Fe and Los Alamos deposi-
tors. To top off the year, we 
were extremely proud to learn 
that our President of TCC, Bill 
Enloe, was appointed to the  
Denver Branch of the Kansas 
City Federal Reserve Board.

To be sure, the near-term out-
look features serious chal-
lenges. In the next few 
months, we will focus on 
Washington and its ability to 
craft a successful response to 
this ongoing crisis.  Ultimate-
ly, we believe that the many 
changes now being intro-
duced by the new adminis-
tration will result in a sounder 
financial system. Whatever 
the outcome, by remaining 
true to those values that have 
always been identified with 
the Bank, we are confident 
that TCC will continue to 
deliver superior services to 
our customers and provide 
value to our shareholders.

ROBERT WORCESTER

TCC Chair of the Board

TCC voices

BILL ENLOE 

TCC President and CEO

2008 will go down in history 
as a very memorable year.  
The nation began to feel the 
full effects of a recession that 
has already been one of the 
most severe in modern histo-
ry. The regional economy is 
fortunate not to have experi-
enced the level of job losses or 
home foreclosures that most 
of the country has seen. Trin-
ity Capital Corporation (TCC) 
did not participate in the fi-
nancial instruments that cre-
ated record losses in the fi-
nancial markets. Although 
2008 was not an exceptional 
year for earnings, TCC did 
post $8.0 million in profits 
and grew total assets by 3%. 
TCC declared dividends of 
$0.80 per share. 

In March of 2009, TCC chose 
to participate in the U.S. Trea-
sury’s Capital Purchase Pro-
gram in order to add $35.5 
million to our capital base. 
The preferred stock issued for 
this capital are non-voting, 
are not convertible to com-
mon stock and do not dilute 
the current shareholders’ in-
vestment. The terms of this 
investment are attractive and 
place our organization in a 
very strong capital position 
(43% above the regulatory 
guidelines for a “well-capital-
ized” bank). This transaction 
ensures our ability to contin-
ue healthy levels of growth in 
loans and deposits without 
being restrained by regulato-
ry capital requirements.

LANB’s deposits continue to 
grow in both Los Alamos and 
Santa Fe. We continue to have 
the largest share of deposits 
in both of those markets. The 
new office on Cerrillos Road 
in Santa Fe will open in the 
fall of this year. This expan-
sion, along with our existing 
offices, will provide conve-
nient locations in all major 
residential areas of Santa Fe. 

TCC continues to take a con-
servative and methodical ap-
proach to market expansion.  
Ensuring we have the staff 
and technology to properly 
service and mitigate risk in 
new markets is essential.  The 
competitive landscape has 
changed dramatically over 
the last year and is providing 
many opportunities for TCC.  
An example is the acquisition 
of assets from Allocca and 
Brunett, Inc., an investment 
advisory company. This 
transaction introduces us to a 
new set of clients and 
strengthened our own Trust 
and Investment services. 

The most important factor in 
our success is the support 
and loyalty of our investors.  
It is your confidence and trust 
that allows us to continue to 
be the leading financial insti-
tution in Northern New 
Mexico. Please join us at the 
annual meeting on May 21, 
2009 at 6:00 p.m. to discuss 
our financial results in more 
detail and address any ques-
tions you might have.
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Just over a year ago, the 
idea to partner with Hab-
itat for Humanity was 
presented to TCC em-
ployees and met with 
great interest and enthu-
siasm.  The idea to build 
an “LANB” home was 
taken to Habitat for Hu-
manity of Española/Los 
Alamos and they agreed 
to join with LANB to 
build a house for a family 
in need.  Danette Clark of 
TCC immediately con-
tacted Stan Primak, Vice 
President of Primak 
Builders, to see if he 
would like to team up 
with LANB on this excit-
ing project. Stan em-
braced the opportunity 
and added some ideas of 
his own, including the 
idea to build a “green” 
home.  Stan has experi-
ence working with Habi-
tat for Humanity.  He and 
his wife, Joan, helped 
build a house in Missis-
sippi after Hurricane  
Katrina devastated the 

area.  He has been the 
general contractor on the 
project; teaching volun-
teers the different skills 
involved in building a 
home and working with 
community businesses to 
secure the materials 
needed.

Before beginning con-
struction, a family needed 
to be selected.  Both Habi-
tat for Humanity and 
LANB organized com-
mittees to review applica-
tions and conduct inter-
views.  The committee 
made their recommenda-
tions based on financial 
need and ability.  After 
the committees reviewed 
nearly 60 applications, a 
handful of applicants 
were interviewed.  Short-
ly after, the Habitat com-
mittee announced their 
selection, the Pacheco 
Family. Mr. Santos Pa-
checo is employed by the 
Los Alamos Public 
Schools. His wife,  

Bill Enloe appointed  
to Fed Board 

Bill Enloe, Chairman and CEO of Los  
Alamos National Bank, has been appoint-
ed to serve on the Board of Directors for 
the Denver Branch of the Federal Reserve 
Bank of Kansas City. 

Mr. Enloe’s appointment puts him on a 
distinguished list of seven directors. The 
Federal Reserve has a long-standing tradi-
tion of relying on leaders in specific re-
gions of the country who understand the 

economic forces that are at work in their 
geographic area.

The Denver Branch is one of three branch-
es of the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas 
City. The Branch provides services to  

financial institutions and the public in 
Colorado, Wyoming and northern New 
Mexico. LANB continually seeks to serve 
in leadership positions in our communi-
ties, and in this case regionally, to improve 
the economic vitality of New Mexico.  
Many times we find that these efforts 
prove as beneficial and educational for us 
as it does to those we serve.

“It’s an honor to  
be asked to contribute  

to the regional and  
national economic dialogue 

of the Federal Reserve.”

Quick Deposit, along with 
other products such as  
Retail Lockbox, Merchant 
Processing, Business Cred-
it and Debit Cards, Sweep 
Transfers, Positive Pay and 
Account Reconciliation, 
creates a better way to help 
business owners simplify 
their banking. Quick De-
posit allows businesses to 
deposit checks from their 
office without ever having 
to go to the bank. LANB is 
using this same technology 
to accept non-cash depos-
its and loan payments at 
our Albuquerque office.

Another enhancement of 
LANB’s business suite is a 
new product called Retail 

 

Lockbox services. This ser-
vice allows business cus-
tomers to eliminate or re-
duce payment receiving 
and processing costs by 
having periodic customer 
payments sent directly to 
LANB who processes the 
checks and provides the 
business an accounting of 
who has paid.  Most of the 
time, the bank can inte-
grate the transactions into 
the customer’s existing ac-
counting system, making 
it seamless.  Businesses 
can use LANB’s expertise 
in transaction processing 
to provide efficiencies to 
business owners which in 
turn allows them to con-
centrate on what their 

business does best, serve 
their customers. Other 
benefits to the business in-
clude digital imaging for 
faster error resolution, 
fewer trips to the bank to 
make deposits and quicker 
availability of funds.

LANB has already been 
successful in implement-
ing Retail Lockbox services 
with the Los Alamos 
County Utilities Depart-
ment. Which added the 
capability for Los Alamos 
utility customers to make 
their payments through 
LANB ATM’s and night 
depositories.

LANB has added a Remote Deposit Capture program, “Quick Deposit, “ 

to an already impressive lineup of business products. 

- Bill Enloe

TCC teams up 
with Habitat 
for Humanity 
Trinity Capital Corporation understands 
the value of community.

Newly-completed Pacheco house. 

See Habitat for Humanity  ........................................................A4

65% 

45%

5%

Percentage of companies that will not 
provide an annual report other than their 
corporate 10K.  

Percentage of TCC advertising expenses that 
goes toward community support.

TCC’s deposit share of NM deposits. 

•  67% of all LANB accounts are accessed online by our customers

•  Number of bill payments processed in 2008 = 234,321

•  1,859,932 = the number of point of sale transactions (debit/credit cards) in 2008

•  Average ticket of the above number = $38.34

•  Total dollars of new loans made in 2008 = $252,299,847

•  $63,852,138 was used for the purchase of a new home or investment property  
out of the total new loans in 2008

LANB by the numbers

LANB adds business products
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Los Alamos National Bank card customers have an opportunity to 
make a difference in their community.

Locals Care & LANB continue 
to make a difference

Robert Worcester Elected 
Chairman of TCC
 
In May 2008, Robert Worcester was named Chairman of the  
Trinity Capital Corporation Board of Directors.  As Chairman, Mr.  
Worcester leads the discussion concerning strategic initiatives and 

performance that occur at regular Board meetings and the numerous committees that 
meet throughout the year.
 
Mr. Worcester joined the Board of Directors in 1995 and is an attorney with the Santa 
Fe law firm of Worcester & McKay, PC, specializing in estate planning. Mr. Worcester’s 
knowledge and experience in trust and estate matters have been extremely valuable to 
the success of Trinity Capital Corporation. 

Locals Care provides an opportunity for 
participants to stimulate the local economy. 
In 2006, LANB and the Santa Fe Alliance 
partnered to introduce the Locals Care 
program to the Santa Fe community. Both 
saw an opportunity to bring a rewards 
program that would benefit local small 
businesses, non-profit organizations and 
consumers. As a customer loyalty tool, the 
Locals Care program boosts sales from 
both new and existing customers, which 
helps smaller businesses compete with big 
box retailers. Numerous studies have 
shown that when you buy from an inde-
pendent, locally-owned business, more of 
those monies are re-circulated in the local 
economy which strengthens the economic 
base of the community.

The Locals Care program provides two 
powerful incentives to cardholders which 

encourages local spending. The first being 
earned reward points which are redeemed 
for goods or services at participating  
Locals Care businesses, the second  
provides an effortless way to give a per-
centage of those purchases to a non-profit 
of their choice. Already, cardholders have 
spent more than $5 million at participating 
businesses since the programs’ inception, 
creating $113,000 in loyalty rewards to 
customers and an additional $113,000 to 
their favorite non-profit.

After seeing the success of this program in 
Santa Fe, LANB was eager to bring the 
same benefits to the Los Alamos commu-
nity in 2007. One Locals Care merchant 
shared: “I believe by being a part of this 
program, LANB recognizes that when local 
businesses prosper, LANB prospers too.”

Several members of the team celebrate the groundbreaking with the 
Pacheco family

CEO Bill Enloe chats with members of the Pacheco family.

One of countless precise cuts that go into building a home.

Loretta, is a homemaker. Their son, Patricio, was injured 
in a fall when he was 16 and suffered a broken neck and 
is now in a wheelchair. Patricio is currently studying 
engineering at UNM in Los Alamos.  

The official groundbreaking was held on November 1, 
2008, with a great turnout. Attendees included, the  
Pacheco family, the mayor of Española, Los Alamos 
County representatives, LANB and TG employees, 
Habitat for Humanity volunteers and other members 
of the community. Volunteers have worked Mondays, 
Wednesdays, Fridays and every other Saturday since 
the groundbreaking. More than 70 LANB and TG  
employees, as well as their employee’s friends and fam-
ily have donated their time and energy to this project. 
The home will be ready to move into in spring 2009.   

 
 

continued from ............................................................................. A3

Habitat for Humanity

Market LANB Deposits Total Deposits Market Share Rank in Market
 (in millions) (in millions)

Los Alamos 755,326 846,626 89.01% 1st

Santa Fe 438,468 2,131,202 20.57% 1st

New Mexico 1,193,794 22,304,346 5.35% 4th

Source:  FDIC Statement of Deposits Report June 30, 2008 (Includes banks only).   

LANB maintains strong market share

98% 

67%

3%

Percentage of deposits that are put to work 
as loans within the community.

Percentage of LANB accounts that are  
accessed online by our customers.

Total revenue generated by service charges 
on deposits. 

Annual reports changing
The days of the thick and 
glossy corporate annual re-
port may be a thing of the 
past. Barnes MacInerney 
Inc., a Toronto based firm 
that specializes in investor 
relations reported in their 
most recent study of corpo-
rate annual reports that only 
35% of U.S. companies con-
tinue to provide annual re-
ports of similar content and 
production quality as they 
did in the past.  The remain-
ing 65% have opted to pro-
vide only their corporate 
10K with a glossy cover or 
summary to shareholders.  

The study was conducted 
prior to the current eco-
nomic downturn, which 
may suggest that the trend 
may accelerate as firms ex-

perience increased eco-
nomic pressures. The study 
notes that increased reli-
ance on corporate websites 
for investor communica-
tions plus the cost of  
production and mailing are 
cited by most who have 
made changes to their  
annual reports. The green 
factor also is noted as a 
contributor by some.

Trinity Capital Corporation 
(TCC) has always taken 
pride in providing a mean-
ingful and useful annual 
report to its shareholders.  A 
good annual report starts 
with the financial perfor-
mance it communicates.  
Fancy or unique annual  
reports are nice, but without 
financial performance it 

only highlights that a com-
pany is out of touch with 
shareholder expectations. 
This year’s annual report is 
a departure from prior ones. 
While 2008 was not an ex-
ceptional year for TCC, the 
profitability and stability of 
performance, amidst the 
worst economic downturn 
in decades, signifies a good 
annual report. 

This year’s annual report is 
cost effective, informative, 
green and hopefully inter-
esting. It will be less expen-
sive to mail and will be 
available online at www.
lanb.com. This is in step 
with trends Barnes MacIn-
erney noted and is more in-
formative of the activities 
we embarked upon in 2008.  
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Above: 
LANB has also contributed funds for a new marquee at the Genoveva 

Chavez Community Center in Santa Fe. The bright, modern sign 
creates a strong presence for LANB and displays its continued 

commitment to youth and community activities taking place at  
the Chavez center. 

LANB puts up big points with support

Above: 
LANB/TG and its 

staff  honored  
before the Home-

coming game. 

Right:  
New scoreboard  

shows support  
for LAHS  

Hilltoppers. 

Los Alamos National Bank continues a tradition of supporting local schools with its 
contributions to a new scoreboard and marquee sign at Los Alamos High School. The 
scoreboard was part of a renovation project at the track and football complex. 

$100,000 donation to LAPSF
Los Alamos National Bank 
has committed $100,000 in 
funding to the Los Alamos 
Public Schools Foundation.  
The donation, which will be 
provided over four years, 
began in 2008.  The Los Ala-
mos Public Schools Foun-
dation is an independent, 
non-profit corporation 
formed to enrich and en-
hance the educational expe-
rience of local students 
through community invest-
ment. The donation estab-
lishes LANB as a Charter 
Donor to the Foundation 
and significantly enhances 
the Foundation’s ability to 
gain traction with identified 
priorities that will assist  
in maintaining educational 
excellence in the Los Ala-
mos Public School system.

In 2008, the Foundation 
identified and funded more 
than $54,000 in education 
assistance programs that 
included professional de-
velopment, classroom ma-
terials, teacher licensure 
funding, teacher grants for 
innovative learning pro-
grams, and student schol-
arships aimed at main-
stream students who 
demonstrate a desire to 
learn and need assistance. 

“Excellence in Education is 
something Los Alamos is 
known for,” said Bill Enloe, 

CEO of LANB.  “Our con-
tributions combined with 
the energy of the Los  
Alamos Public Schools 
Foundation will help  
ensure it continues.” 

The Foundation began 
planning for a “Classroom 
Makeover” in 2008 that will 
significantly remodel the 
E-19 science classroom and 
enhance the learning expe-
rience of 300 high school 
students each year. This 
signature project was cho-
sen since science and edu-
cation are of high value to 
the Los Alamos community 
and can be done in the high 
school where every Los 
Alamos student can bene-
fit. LANB’s long-term com-
mitment gives the Founda-
tion the ability and 
confidence to efficiently 
plan new projects and re-
duces costs associated with 
fundraising so more dol-
lars actually get used for 
education and not admin-
istration. 

The Foundation is a great 
example of community 
leadership and private dol-
lars working together to 
improve the quality of edu-
cation and ultimately the 
quality of life for all who 
live and work in Los  
Alamos County.
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Q: Should I continue to invest in 
my 401k, and if so, how should I 
allocate my contribution? 

A: Yes, continue to fund your 401k 

and 403b plans. The reasons for this 

are  because it is your retirement 

plan and dollar cost averaging makes 

sense.  It is very important to start 

your 401k as soon as possible. Take 

advantage of the tax deferred aspects, 

to build up that retirement “nest 

egg” and to continue to fund even in 

times like these.  A qualified retire-

ment plan like a 401k or 403b are 

good tools  on which to build your 

retirement. Dollar cost averaging is 

the consistent purchase of shares 

when markets are up or down in 

equal amounts. This offsets the high 

and lows that occur in the market.

The allocation, or what to invest in 

right now, is a much more difficult 

question. The first thing to remember 

is that there are no tax implications 

when you move investments within 

your 401k.  It is only when funds are 

removed that you are taxed. If you 

are nervous, you can move into a 

more conservative investment with-

out paying taxes and back into stocks 

when times change. The proper allo-

cation is different for everyone as we 

all have different time frames and 

risk tolerances.  Always feel free to 

contact us to discuss this and any 

other questions.  

Q: How do I determine if my  
deposited funds are covered by 
FDIC? 

A: In the fall of 2008, Congress  

temporarily increased the basic FDIC 

insurance coverage limit from 

$100,000 to $250,000 through  

December 31, 2009. IRA deposits 

remained unchanged with coverage 

up to $250,000. You may be eligible 

for additional coverage over these  

basic amounts based on how your  

accounts are structured and the 

number of named beneficiaries (i.e. 

joint, trust, POD, etc.).

In addition to the temporary increase 

in basic insurance coverage, the 

FDIC simplified the rules for the  

calculation of deposit insurance cov-

erage for revocable trust deposits, 

including an expanded definition of 

the “eligible beneficiaries” from a 

family member“ any person, charity 

or another non-profit organization 

(as recognized by the Internal  

Revenue Service).” 

For a detailed assessment of your  

coverage, you can stop in at any 

LANB office or contact a customer 

service representative by calling (505) 

662-5171 or go to the FDIC online 

deposit insurance estimator which 

can be found at: FDIC.gov/EDIE.

Banking Matters 

Los Alamos National Bank, 
encourages our customers 
to “create a better way” for 
the environment, and are 
proud to support the state’s 
energy conservation efforts 
with our EcoSmart pro-
gram.    

Americans spend more 
than $160 billion a year to 
heat, cool, light and live in 
their homes. The energy 
consumed from these ac-
tivities represents about 21 
percent of the national to-
tal, making up a significant 
demand for electricity and 
natural gas. Yet, many 
households could save 20 
to 30 percent on their 
household energy bills by 
implementing energy effi-
ciency improvements.

EcoSmart is a loan program 
that supports environmen-
tally-friendly projects and 
purchases such as pollu-

Creating a better way for the environment 
tion prevention, energy 
management, water recla-
mation and harvesting, 
green building, green ener-
gy use and purchases of 
energy efficient vehicles 
and appliances. 

For commercial projects, 
LANB offers special 
financing to 
fund spe-
cial sus-
tainable 
development 
and construc-
tion projects 
that include 
at least nine of 
the 24 criteria 
established  
by the U.S. Green  
Building Council’s LEED 
Certification.  

For consumer purchases, 
LANB has also dedicated 
special financing to fund 
consumer loans for earth  

friendly efforts, including 
energy efficient vehicles 
and appliances, solar hot 
water heaters, water har-
vesting systems, plumbing 
fixtures that reduce water 
consumption, outdoor so-
lar lights, natural flooring  
and more.

Since its launch on Earth 
Day 2006, EcoSmart has 

been the driving force 
behind more than 
$14 million worth of  

environmentally 
friendly commercial 

projects, and 
h a s    

granted 

numerous loans for con-
sumer purchases under the 
EcoSmart program.  

In addition, LANB strives to 
lead by example, and have 
adopted environmentally-
friendly practices throughout 
our organization. 

The Santa Fe Downtown 

Office features a water har-
vesting system consisting of 
a 25,000 gallon cistern that 
collects rainwater from the 
roof and parking lot, which 
is utilized to maintain the 
bank’s landscaping. LANB 
is also committed to pur-
chasing 90 percent green 
electricity for our offices in 
both Los Alamos and Santa 
Fe counties. LANB also re-
cently purchased two hy-
brid company vehicles, and 
support “Keep Santa Fe 
Beautiful” through median 
adoption, and “Clean Up 
Los Alamos” through par-
ticipation in Clean Up Los 
Alamos Day.

New Mexico is a leader in 
the energy efficiency and 
conservation crusade, and 
LANB wants to be a part 
of this by supporting sus-
tainable development 
throughout the state for 
generations to come.  
 

Title Guaranty 
continues growth

For many years, Los Alamos National Bank (LANB) had close ties to 
Title Guaranty and Insurance Co. (TG) simply because LANB made 
mortgage loans and TG provided title insurance for many of those 
transactions. In March 2000, new regulations allowed a financial  
holding company such as Trinity Capital Corporation (TCC) to own a 
title company.  Knowing this was a mutually beneficial partnership, 
TCC wasted no time and became the first financial holding company 
to purchase a title company in New Mexico.

“It made sense because we both wanted our customers to be able 
to have a great experience when buying, selling or refinancing real  
estate,” said Denise Terrazas, President of Title Guaranty and  
Insurance Co.

The partnership has been pressure tested over the years and has 
turned out very well for both.  It was tested most when rates dropped 
to historic low levels between 2001 and 2003. It seemed that nearly 
every customer refinanced their home once, twice or more. Coordina-
tion of loan approvals and the closing process was especially conve-
nient for LANB customers. Many times LANB employees needed to  
work late into the night to handle the significant refinance volume. 
Consequently, TG would be there to put together the closing pack-
ages and complete the transaction after hours and on weekends to 
alleviate bottlenecks that were predominate elsewhere. This level of 
service and delivery helped set LANB and TG apart from its competi-
tion in the mortgage business. When everyone refinances at low rates 
or real estate markets slow as they have recently, the partnership is 
just as important. TG is able to shift staff to other holding company 
activities until volume or favorable market conditions return, which 
tend to happen all at once. 

In 2004, when LANB built their new downtown office it included  
additional space for Title Guaranty and Insurance Co. to expand its 
services into the Santa Fe market. Since that time, TG has fostered 
new relationships with realtors and developers in the area and  
continues to increase its market share, which reached 8 percent in 
2008.  With current mortgage interest rates below 5 percent TG is 
clicking on all cylinders and is looking forward to a 2009 that will 
contribute to holding company earnings and additional growth.
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PART I 
  

Please note: Unless the context clearly suggests otherwise, references in this Form 10-K to “us,” “we”, 
“our” or “the Company” include Trinity Capital Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries, including Los 
Alamos National Bank,  TCC Advisors Corporation, TCC Funds and Title Guaranty & Insurance Company. 

  
Item 1. Business. 
  

Trinity Capital Corporation 
  

 General. Trinity Capital Corporation (“Trinity”), a financial holding company organized under the laws 
of the State of New Mexico, is the sole shareholder of Los Alamos National Bank (the “Bank”) and the sole 
shareholder of Title Guaranty & Insurance Company (“Title Guaranty”).  The Bank is the sole shareholder of 
TCC Advisors Corporation (“TCC Advisors”).  The Bank is also a member of Cottonwood Technology Group, 
LLC (“Cottonwood”), a management consulting and counseling company for technology start up companies and 
which is also designed to manage venture capital funds. Trinity is located in Los Alamos, New Mexico, a small 
community in the Jemez Mountains of Northern New Mexico.  Los Alamos has approximately 19,000 residents 
and enjoys worldwide recognition as the birthplace of the atomic bomb.  Today, Los Alamos National Laboratory 
(the “Laboratory”) remains a pre-eminent research facility for scientific and technological development in 
numerous scientific fields.  The Laboratory employs (directly and indirectly) approximately 9,650 residents of 
Northern New Mexico, making it the largest employer in Los Alamos County.  The Laboratory remains the 
cornerstone of the community and has attracted numerous other scientific businesses to the area. 

  
Los Alamos National Bank is a full-service commercial banking institution with five bank offices in Los 

Alamos, White Rock, Santa Fe and Albuquerque, New Mexico.  The Bank was founded in 1963 by local 
investors to provide convenient, full-service banking to the unique scientific community that developed around 
the Laboratory and continues to expand its market share and customer-base.  In 1999, the Bank established its 
first office in Santa Fe after acquiring a substantial number of customers based in Santa Fe.  In 2004, the Bank 
added a second office in Santa Fe to better serve its growing customer-base and continue to attract new 
customers.  As of the June 30, 2007 Summary of Deposits (SOD) Report published by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation, the Bank had the largest share of deposits in Santa Fe County, a position it held again in 
2008 according to the June 30, 2008 SOD Report.  In 2005, the Bank determined the need for an additional site in 
Albuquerque, New Mexico to serve our commercial loan customers and established a Loan Production Office.  
The Bank expanded its charter at the end of 2007 to provide for the ability to provide full banking services out of 
its Albuquerque office.  Trinity also acquired a ground lease covering additional land in Santa Fe where we began 
construction on a third Santa Fe Bank office in 2008.  The Bank is constructing this third Santa Fe office to better 
serve our customers on the southern side of Santa Fe and attract additional commercial and consumer customers 
based in this area.  The Bank provides a broad range of banking products and services, including credit, cash 
management, deposit, asset management and trust products to our targeted customer base of individuals and small 
and medium-sized businesses.  As of December 31, 2008, the Bank had total assets of $1.4 billion, net loans of 
$1.2 billion and deposits (net of deposits of affiliates) of $1.3 billion.   

 
 Trinity acquired Title Guaranty in May 2000, making it the only title company in New Mexico to be 

owned by a financial or bank holding company.  Title Guaranty is a title insurance company organized under the 
laws of the State of New Mexico doing business in Los Alamos and Santa Fe Counties.  Title Guaranty opened its 
Santa Fe office in the Bank’s downtown Santa Fe facility in February 2005.  The services provided by Title 
Guaranty complement those provided by Trinity’s other subsidiaries.  Title Guaranty provides title insurance, 
closing services, escrow and notary service, title searches and title reports for Los Alamos and Santa Fe Counties. 
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The Bank created TCC Advisors in February 2006 to enable us to manage certain assets and register 
with the SEC as a Registered Investment Advisor should we choose to do so in the future.  In February 2006, 
TCC Funds, a Delaware statutory trust was created with Trinity as its sponsor, to allow for the creation of a 
mutual fund.  Both of these entities are dormant with no planned use at this time.  TCC Appraisals was a real 
estate appraisal company created by Trinity in January 2006 and was dissolved in January 2009 following the 
sale of its assets in May 2008.  In August of 2008, the Bank joined Cottonwood as a 26% member. Cottonwood 
assists in the management and counsels start up companies involved in technology transfer from research 
institutions in New Mexico as well as establishing and managing venture funds.  Additionally, the Bank entered a 
consulting agreement with Cottonwood to provide services to assist the Bank in its venture banking, start up 
banking and high tech banking portfolio.  

 
Corporate Structure. Trinity was organized in 1975 as a bank holding company, as defined in the Bank 

Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCA”), and in 2000 elected to become a financial holding 
company, as defined in the BHCA.  Trinity acquired the stock of the Bank in 1977 and serves as the holding 
company for the Bank.  In 2000, Trinity purchased Title Guaranty.  Title Guaranty and the Bank are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Trinity.  The Bank created TCC Advisors in February 2006; this entity is currently 
dormant.  In addition, Trinity owns all the common shares of four business trusts, created by Trinity for the sole 
purpose of issuing trust preferred securities which had an aggregate outstanding balance of $37.1 million at 
December 31, 2008.  In February 2006, Trinity created TCC Funds, a Delaware statutory trust created to allow 
for the creation and holding of mutual funds; this entity is currently dormant.  Trinity’s sole business is the 
ownership of the outstanding shares of the Bank, Title Guaranty and the administration of the Trusts.  The 
address of our headquarters is 1200 Trinity Drive, Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544, our main telephone number 
is (505) 662-5171 and our general email address is tcc@lanb.com. 

 
We maintain a website at www.lanb.com/tcc.  We make available free of charge on or through our 

website, the annual report on Form 10-K, proxy statements, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on 
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange 
Act as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such material with, or furnishes it to, 
the Securities and Exchange Commission.  The Company will also provide copies of its filings free of charge 
upon written request to: TCC Stock Representative, Trinity Capital Corporation, 1200 Trinity Drive, Los Alamos, 
New Mexico 87544.  In addition, you may read and copy any materials we filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public 
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549.  You may obtain information on the 
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.  The SEC also maintains an 
Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers such 
as Trinity.  Our filings are also available free of charge on the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. 

  
Regulation and Supervision 

 
Financial institutions and their holding companies are extensively regulated under federal and state law.  

As a result, the growth and earnings performance of Trinity may be affected not only by management decisions 
and general economic conditions, but also by the requirements of state and federal statutes and by the regulations 
and policies of various bank regulatory authorities, including the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the 
“OCC”), the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”) and the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”).  Furthermore, taxation laws administered by the Internal Revenue Service 
and state taxing authorities and securities laws administered by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
“SEC”) and state securities authorities have an impact on the business of Trinity.  The effect of applicable 
statutes, regulations and regulatory policies may be significant, and cannot be predicted with a high degree of 
certainty. 
 
 Federal and state laws and regulations generally applicable to financial institutions regulate, among other 
things, the scope of business, the kinds and amounts of investments, reserve requirements, capital levels relative 
to operations, the nature and amount of collateral for loans, the establishment of branches, mergers and 
consolidations and the payment of dividends.  This system of supervision and regulation establishes a 
comprehensive framework for the respective operations of Trinity and its subsidiaries and is intended primarily 
for the protection of FDIC-insured deposit funds and depositors, rather than shareholders. 
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In addition to the generally applicable regulatory framework, recent turmoil in the credit markets 
prompted the enactment of unprecedented legislation that has allowed the U.S. Treasury to make equity capital 
available to qualifying financial institutions to help restore confidence and stability in the U.S. financial markets, 
which imposes additional requirements on institutions in which the U.S. Treasury Department invests. 

 The following is a summary of the material elements of the regulatory framework that applies to Trinity 
and its subsidiaries.  It does not describe all of the statutes, regulations and regulatory policies that apply, nor 
does it restate all of the requirements of the statutes, regulations and regulatory policies that are described.  As 
such, the following is qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable statutes, regulations and regulatory 
policies.  Any change in applicable law, regulations or regulatory policies may have a material effect on the 
business of Trinity and its subsidiaries. 
 
  General. Trinity is a financial holding company.  As a financial holding company, Trinity is 
registered with, and is subject to regulation by, the Federal Reserve under the BHCA.  In accordance with Federal 
Reserve policy, Trinity is expected to act as a source of financial strength to the Bank and to commit resources to 
support the Bank in circumstances where Trinity might not otherwise do so.  Under the BHCA, Trinity is subject 
to periodic examination by the Federal Reserve.  Trinity is also required to file with the Federal Reserve periodic 
reports of Trinity’s operations and such additional information regarding Trinity and its subsidiaries as the 
Federal Reserve may require. 
 

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008.  Recent events in the U.S. and global 
financial markets, including the deterioration of the worldwide credit markets, have created significant challenges 
for financial institutions.  Dramatic declines in the housing market during the past year, marked by falling home 
prices and increasing levels of mortgage foreclosures, have resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by 
financial institutions, including government-sponsored entities and major commercial and investment banks.  In 
response to the crises affecting the U.S. banking system and financial markets and to bolster the distressed 
economy and improve consumer confidence in the financial system, on October 3, 2008, the U.S. Congress 
passed, and the President signed into law, the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the “EESA”).  
The EESA authorizes the Secretary of the U.S. Treasury (“Treasury”) to implement various temporary emergency 
programs designed to strengthen the capital positions of financial institutions and stimulate the availability of 
credit within the U.S. financial system.  Financial institutions participating in certain of the programs established 
under the EESA will be required to adopt Treasury’s standards for executive compensation and corporate 
governance.  

The TARP Capital Purchase Program.  On October 14, 2008, Treasury announced 
that it will provide Tier 1 capital (in the form of perpetual preferred stock) to eligible financial institutions.  This 
program, known as the TARP Capital Purchase Program (the “CPP”), allocates $250 billion from the $700 billion 
authorized by the EESA to Treasury for the purchase of senior preferred shares from qualifying financial 
institutions (the “CPP Preferred Stock”).  Eligible institutions will be able to sell equity interests to Treasury in 
amounts equal to between 1% and 3% of the institution’s risk-weighted assets.  For companies that do not have a 
class of securities listed on a national stock exchange, Treasury purchases two class of CPP Preferred Stock.  The 
CPP Preferred Stock will generally be non-voting and one class will pay dividends at the rate of 5% per annum 
for the first five years and thereafter at a rate of 9% per annum while the other class will pay dividends at the rate 
of 9% per annum from the date of the transaction.  Participating financial institutions will be required to adopt 
Treasury’s standards for executive compensation and corporate governance for the period during which Treasury 
holds equity issued under the CPP.  Treasury will determine specific eligibility and allocations for an interested 
financial institution after consultation with the appropriate federal banking agency.  
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Trinity applied to participate in the CPP.  While the Company’s management currently believes the 
Company has sufficient capital to support continued growth.  The Company is analyzing the affects upon its 
operation, governance and on our shareholders of such participation.  Trinity will participate in the program if it 
is determined to be in the best interests of our investors and customers.  If Trinity participates in the CPP, the 
Company expects that its federal regulators and Treasury will maintain significant oversight over the Company as 
a participating institution, to evaluate the use of the capital and to ensure lending is continued in the markets it 
serves.  As of the date of this report, the Company has not decided if it will participate in the program. 
 
  Acquisitions, Activities and Change in Control. The primary purpose of a bank or financial 
holding company (collectively referred to herein as “bank holding company”) is to control banks.  Under the BHCA, 
a bank holding company must obtain Federal Reserve approval before: (i) acquiring, directly or indirectly, 
ownership or control of any voting shares of another bank or bank holding company if, after the acquisition, it would 
own or control more than 5% of the voting shares of the other bank or bank holding company (unless it already 
owns or controls the majority of such shares); (ii) acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of another bank; or 
(iii) merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.  Subject to certain conditions (including certain 
deposit concentration limits established by the BHCA), the Federal Reserve may allow a bank holding company to 
acquire banks located in any state of the United States.  In approving interstate acquisitions, the Federal Reserve is 
required to give effect to applicable state law limitations on the aggregate amount of deposits that may be held by 
the acquiring bank holding company and its insured depository institution affiliates in the state in which the target 
bank is located (provided that those limits do not discriminate against out-of-state depository institutions or their 
holding companies) and state laws that require that the target bank have been in existence for a minimum period of 
time (not to exceed five years) before being acquired by an out-of-state bank holding company. 
 
 The BHCA generally prohibits a bank holding company from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or 
control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company that is not a bank and from engaging in any business 
other than that of banking, managing and controlling banks or furnishing services to banks and their subsidiaries.  
This general prohibition is subject to a number of exceptions.  The principal exception allows bank holding 
companies to engage in, and to own shares of companies engaged in, certain businesses found by the Federal 
Reserve to be “so closely related to banking ... as to be a proper incident thereto.”  Under current regulations of the 
Federal Reserve, this authority would permit Trinity to engage in a variety of banking-related businesses, including 
the ownership and operation of a thrift, or other entity engaged in sales and consumer finance, equipment leasing, 
the operation of a computer service bureau (including software development), and mortgage banking and brokerage.  
The BHCA generally does not place territorial restrictions on the domestic activities of non-bank subsidiaries of 
bank holding companies. 
 
 Additionally, bank holding companies that meet certain eligibility requirements prescribed by the BHCA 
and elect to operate as financial holding companies may engage in, or own shares in companies engaged in, a wider 
range of nonbanking activities, including securities and insurance activities and any other activity that the Federal 
Reserve, in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury, determines by regulation or order is financial in nature, 
incidental to any such financial activity or complementary to any such financial activity and does not pose a 
substantial risk to the safety or soundness of depository institutions or the financial system generally.  Trinity has 
elected (and the Federal Reserve has accepted Trinity’s election) to operate as a financial holding company. 
 
 Federal law also prohibits any person or company from acquiring “control” of an FDIC-insured 
depository institution or its holding company without prior notice to the appropriate federal bank regulator.  
“Control” is conclusively presumed to exist upon the acquisition of 25% or more of the outstanding voting 
securities of a bank or bank holding company, but may arise under certain circumstances between 10% and 
24.99% ownership. 
 
   

Capital Requirements. Bank holding companies are required to maintain minimum levels of capital in 
accordance with Federal Reserve capital adequacy guidelines.  If capital falls below minimum required levels, a 
bank holding company, among other things, may be denied approval to acquire or establish additional banks or 
non-bank businesses. 
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 The Federal Reserve’s capital guidelines establish the following minimum regulatory capital requirements 
for bank holding companies: (i) a risk-based requirement expressed as a percentage of total assets weighted 
according to risk; and (ii) a leverage requirement expressed as a percentage of total assets.  The risk-based 
requirement consists of a minimum ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets of 8% and a minimum ratio of 
Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets of 4%.  The leverage requirement consists of a minimum ratio of Tier 1 
capital to total assets of 3% for the most highly rated companies, with a minimum requirement of 4% for all others.  
For purposes of these capital standards, Tier 1 capital consists primarily of permanent stockholders’ equity less 
intangible assets (other than certain loan servicing rights and purchased credit card relationships).  Total capital 
consists primarily of Tier 1 capital plus certain other debt and equity instruments that do not qualify as Tier 1 capital 
and a portion of the company’s allowance for loan and lease losses. 
 
 The risk-based and leverage standards described above are minimum requirements.  Higher capital 
levels will be required if warranted by the particular circumstances or risk profiles of individual banking 
organizations.  For example, the Federal Reserve’s capital guidelines contemplate that additional capital may be 
required to take adequate account of, among other things, interest rate risk, or the risks posed by concentrations of 
credit, nontraditional activities or securities trading activities.  Further, any banking organization experiencing or 
anticipating significant growth would be expected to maintain capital ratios, including tangible capital positions 
(i.e., Tier 1 capital less all intangible assets), well above the minimum levels.  As of December 31, 2008, Trinity 
had regulatory capital in excess of the Federal Reserve’s minimum requirements. 
 
  Dividends. Trinity’s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders may be affected by both general 
corporate law considerations and policies of the Federal Reserve applicable to bank holding companies.  New 
Mexico law prohibits Trinity from paying dividends if, after giving effect to the dividend: (i) Trinity would be 
unable to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of its business; or (ii) Trinity’s total assets would 
be less than the sum of its total liabilities and (unless Trinity’s articles of incorporation otherwise permit) the 
maximum amount that then would be payable, in any liquidation, in respect of all outstanding shares having 
preferential rights in liquidation.  Additionally, policies of the Federal Reserve caution that a bank holding 
company should not pay cash dividends unless its net income available to common shareholders over the past 
year has been sufficient to fully fund the dividends and the prospective rate of earnings retention appears 
consistent with its capital needs, asset quality, and overall financial condition.  The Federal Reserve also 
possesses enforcement powers over bank holding companies and their non-bank subsidiaries to prevent or 
remedy actions that represent unsafe or unsound practices or violations of applicable statutes and regulations.  
Among these powers is the ability to proscribe the payment of dividends by banks and bank holding companies. 
In addition to the foregoing, if we participate in the CPP, it could further restrict our ability to pay dividends to 
our shareholders in the event we fail to pay the required dividends to Treasury under the program. 

Federal Securities Regulation. Trinity’s common stock is registered with the SEC under the Securities 
Act of 1933, as amended, and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).  
Consequently, Trinity is subject to the information, proxy solicitation, insider trading and other restrictions and 
requirements of the SEC under the Exchange Act. 
 
 

 Los Alamos National Bank 
  

General. Los Alamos National Bank is a national banking organization created under the laws of the 
United States of America.  The Bank is regulated primarily by the OCC, a branch of the Department of Treasury.  
The Bank currently has five full-service bank offices.  A sixth office is under construction and will be completed 
and opened in 2009.  In February 2006, the Bank created TCC Advisors as a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Bank.  In August of 2008, the Bank joined Cottonwood as a 26% member.  Cottonwood works with local start up 
companies involved in technology transfer from research institutions.  Additionally, the Bank entered a 
consulting agreement with Cottonwood to provide services to assist the Bank in its venture banking, start up 
banking and high tech banking portfolio. 
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Products and Services. The Bank provides a full range of financial services for deposit customers and 
we lend money to credit-worthy borrowers at competitive interest rates.  Our strategy has been to position 
ourselves in the market as a low-fee, high-value community bank.  Our products include certificates of deposits, 
checking and saving accounts, on-line banking, Individual Retirement Accounts, loans, mortgage loan servicing, 
trust and brokerage services, international services, and safe deposit boxes.  These business activities make up our 
three key processes: investment of funds, generation of funds and service-for-fee income.  We achieved our 
success in part by minimizing charges relating to the investment and generation of funds processes, i.e. loans, 
credit cards, checking, and savings accounts.  The profitability of our operations depend primarily on our net 
interest income, which is the difference between total interest earned on interest-earning assets and total interest 
paid on interest-bearing liabilities, and our ability to maintain efficient operations.  In addition to our net interest 
income, we produce income through our mortgage servicing operations and other income processes, such as trust 
and brokerage.  A more complete description of our products and services makeup can be found under 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations” in Item 7 in this Form 10-K. 

  
Lending Activities. 
  

General. We provide a broad range of commercial and retail lending services to corporations, 
partnerships, individuals and government agencies.  We actively market our services to qualified borrowers.  
Lending officers build relationships with new borrowers entering our market areas as well as long-standing 
members of the local business community.  We have established lending policies which include a number of 
underwriting factors to be considered in making a loan, including location, loan to value ratio, cash flow and the 
credit history of the borrower.  Our current maximum lending limit to one borrower is approximately 
$20.2 million.  Our loan portfolio is comprised primarily of loans in the areas of commercial real estate, 
residential real estate, construction, general commercial and consumer lending.  As of December 31, 2008, 
residential mortgages made up approximately 31.5% of our loan portfolio; commercial real estate loans 
comprised approximately 33.4%; construction lending comprised 20.6%; general commercial loans comprised 
9.6%; and consumer lending comprised 4.9%. 
  

Commercial Real Estate Loans. The largest portion of our loan portfolio is comprised of 
commercial real estate loans.  Our focus in Commercial Real Estate lending concentrates on loans to building 
contractors and developers.  The primary repayment risk for a commercial real estate loan is the failure of the 
business due to economic events or governmental regulations outside of the control of the borrower or lender that 
negatively impact the future cash flow and market values of the affected properties.  We have collateralized these 
loans and, in most cases, take personal guarantees to help assure repayment.  Our commercial real estate loans are 
primarily made based on the identified cash flow of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying real estate 
acting as collateral.  Credit support provided by the borrower for most of these loans and the probability of 
repayment is based on the liquidation of the real estate and enforcement of a personal guarantee, if any exists. 
 

Residential Real Estate Loans. Residential mortgage lending has been an important part of our 
business since our formation in 1963.  The majority of the residential mortgage loans we originate and retain are 
in the form of 15- and 30-year variable rate loans.  We also originate 15- to 30-year fixed rate residential 
mortgages and sell most of these loans to outside investors.  We retain the servicing of almost all of the 
residential mortgages we originate.  We believe the retention of mortgage servicing provides us with a relatively 
steady source of fee income as compared to fees generated solely from mortgage origination operations.  
Moreover, the retention of such servicing rights allows us to continue to have regular contact with mortgage 
customers and solidify relationships with those customers.  We do not engage in financing sub-prime loans nor 
do we participate in any sub-prime lending programs. 
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Construction Loans. We are active in financing construction of residential and commercial 
properties in New Mexico, primarily in Northern New Mexico.  We manage the risk of construction lending 
through the use of underwriting and construction loan guidelines and require the work be done by reputable 
contractors.  Construction loans are structured either to be converted to permanent loans at the end of the 
construction phase or to be paid off upon receiving financing from another financial institution.  The amount 
financed on construction loans is based on the appraised value of the property, as determined by an independent 
appraiser, and an analysis of the potential marketability and profitability of the project and the costs of 
construction.  Construction loans generally have terms that do not exceed 24 months.  Loan proceeds are typically 
disbursed on a percentage of completion basis, as determined by inspections, with all construction required to be 
completed prior to the final disbursement of funds. 
  

Construction loans afford us the opportunity to increase the interest rate sensitivity of our loan portfolio 
and to receive yields higher than those obtainable on adjustable rate mortgage loans secured by existing 
residential properties.  These higher yields correspond to the higher risks associated with construction lending. 
   

Commercial Loans. The Bank is an active commercial lender.  Our focus in commercial 
lending concentrates on loans business services companies and retailers.  The Bank provides various credit 
products to our commercial customers including lines of credit for working capital and operational purposes and 
term loans for the acquisition of equipment and other purposes.  Collateral on commercial loans typically 
includes accounts receivable, furniture, fixtures, inventory and equipment.  In addition, almost all commercial 
loans also have personal guarantees to assure repayment.  The terms of most commercial loans range from one to 
seven years.  A significant portion of our commercial business loans has floating interest rates or reprice within 
one year. 

  
Consumer Loans. We also provide all types of consumer loans including motor vehicle, home 

improvement, student loans, credit cards, signature loans and small personal credit lines.  Consumer loans 
typically have shorter terms and lower balances with higher yields as compared to our other loans, but generally 
carry higher risks of default.  Consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrower’s continuing financial 
stability, and thus are more likely to be affected by adverse personal circumstances. 
  

Additional information on the risks associated with our banking activities and products and 
concentrations can be found under “Risk Factors” in Section 1A of this Form 10-K. 
 

Market Area.  
 

General. The economy in Northern New Mexico has remained fairly stable, although 
somewhat slower than historical activity levels.  Unemployment remained comparatively low at 4.7% at year end 
compared to a national unemployment rate of 6.5%.  While unemployment rates nationally continue to increase, 
New Mexico experienced the lowest rate of increase for any state from December 2008 to January 2009, with a 
0.4% increase to an unemployment rate of 5.1%, compared to a national unemployment rate increase from 
December 2008 to January 2009 of 1.1% to an employment rate of 7.6%.  Foreclosure rates are lower in New 
Mexico than other states.  New Mexico remains aggressive in lobbying new businesses to move to the state and 
the high percentage of federal government spending in the state allows the economy to stay relatively steady in 
times of volatility.  The overall outlook for the New Mexico economy in 2009 is a recession as employment 
growth has dipped into the negative.  A moderate recovery is expected to begin in 2010, which should commence 
with improvements in the housing sector. 
 

Los Alamos. The Bank’s customers are concentrated in Northern and Central New Mexico, 
particularly in Santa Fe and Los Alamos Counties.  The city of Los Alamos, the base of our operations, lies 
within Los Alamos County.  Los Alamos County has approximately 19,000 residents.  As of December 31, 2008, 
the Bank had approximately $19.6 million in commercial loans, $163.3 million in commercial real estate loans, 
$209.5 in residential loans, $77.7 million in construction loans, $35.1 in consumer loans and $720.9 million in 
deposits in Los Alamos. The stability of the Los Alamos market has provided a solid base for the Company 
throughout our history and over the past several years.  As many communities suffer from the economic 
downturn, the effect in Los Alamos County has been minimized to a large extent as the local economy relies 
heavily on federal government spending.  Los Alamos County has the lowest unemployment rate in the state at 
2.7% and consistently has one of the highest income levels.  
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Los Alamos County experienced minimal growth in its population of 1.3% from 1990 to 2000 and 1.2% 

from April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2007, due in part to the lack of significant parcels of land for development.  The 
primary employer in Los Alamos County is the Laboratory, one of the world’s premier national security and 
scientific research and development institutions.  The Laboratory is operated by Los Alamos National Security, 
LLC for the Department of Energy.  The Laboratory employs approximately 9,000 employees and an additional 
650 subcontractors.  Most of the employees are scientists, engineers and technicians working in the areas of 
national security, bio-sciences, chemistry, computer science, earth and environmental sciences, materials science 
and physics, contributing to Los Alamos County’s exceptional percentages of the population with high school 
diplomas or equivalents (96.3%) and those with bachelor or higher degrees (60.5%) compared with national 
averages of 80.4% and 24.4% respectively.  The concentration of highly skilled and highly educated residents 
provides the Bank with a sophisticated customer base and supports an average median income approximately 
199% greater than the national average and an unemployment rate (estimated for 2008 at 2.8%) less than one-half 
the national average (6.5%) based upon December 31, 2008 data.  While unemployment continues to climb 
throughout the nation, Los Alamos County has remained stable with a reported unemployment rate for January 
2009 of 2.7% (the lowest in the state), compared to a state unemployment rate of 5.1% and a national 
unemployment rate of 7.6%.  Median home values (based upon 2000 data) in Los Alamos County are well above 
average, $228,300 compared to $119,600 nationally, as is homeownership at 78.6% compared to a national 
average of 66.2%.   
 

Santa Fe. In 1999, the Bank opened its first full-service office in Santa Fe, New Mexico and 
opened a second full-service office in Downtown Santa Fe in August of 2004.  The Bank intends to open a third 
full-service office in south Santa Fe in 2009.  The Bank’s continued expansion into Santa Fe has permitted the 
convenient provision of products and services to our existing customer base in Santa Fe as well as attracting new 
customers in Santa Fe.  The addition of our second office in Santa Fe resulted in a considerable growth of our 
customer base by providing a convenient location for the large number of businesses and customers based near 
the Santa Fe Plaza, which is located near the center of the business district and government facilities.  As of 
December 31, 2008, the Bank had approximately $59.5 million in commercial loans, $169.3 million in 
commercial real estate loans, $155.3 in residential loans, $128.8 million in construction loans, $16.8 in consumer 
loans and $484.9 million in deposits in the greater Santa Fe area.  As of June 30, 2008, the Bank was the largest 
depository in Santa Fe according to the FDIC’s Summary of Deposits report for the second year in a row.  The 
Santa Fe market has provided a solid base for the Company over the past several years.  Santa Fe County is home 
to the state capitol and the State Government.  The state and federal government are the area’s largest employers.  
Consequently, this market has been affected less by economic downturns than other areas.    

 
Santa Fe serves as the capitol of New Mexico and is located approximately 35 miles southeast of Los 

Alamos.  Santa Fe County has approximately 143,000 residents with its local economy based primarily on 
government and tourism.  We expanded to the Santa Fe market, in part, to take advantage of the population 
growth, which has been higher than the state and national averages.  Santa Fe County is one of the fastest 
growing counties in the state, with an estimated increase in population of 30.7% from 1990 to 2000 compared to 
20.1% for the state and 13.2% for the country as a whole, and 10.6% between April 1, 2000 and July 1, 2007, 
compared to 8.3% for the state and 7.2% for the country as a whole.  Santa Fe County also has higher than 
average percentages of its population with high school diplomas or equivalents (84.5%) and those with bachelor 
or higher degrees (36.9%).  The average median income in Santa Fe County is slightly higher (1.17%) than the 
national average and unemployment level (4.3%) approximately 34% less than the national average (6.5%) based 
on December 2008 data.  The Santa Fe Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”) had the lowest unemployment rate 
for the three largest MSAs in the state at 4.6% in January 2009, showing a slight increase (0.3%) in 
unemployment from December 2008 to January 2009.  Median home values in Santa Fe County (based upon 
2000 data) are 55.36% above the national average, at $189,400 compared to $119,600 nationally, and 
homeownership is slightly higher at 68.6% compared to a national average of 66.2%.  
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 Albuquerque. The Bank opened a Loan Production Office in the Uptown area of Albuquerque, 
New Mexico in 2005.  The Bank received approval from the OCC on December 31, 2007 to provide full-services 
at this location.  The Bank is currently evaluating its present and future opportunities in the Albuquerque area and 
incorporating these into our business strategy.  As of December 31, 2008, the Bank had approximately $37.5 
million in commercial loans, $79.6 million in commercial real estate loans, $24.0 in residential loans, $47.9 
million in construction loans, $8.8 in consumer loans and $45.8 million in deposits in the greater Albuquerque 
area.  Albuquerque is a city of approximately 505,000 residents and is located approximately 60 miles south of 
Los Alamos.  The Albuquerque economy is more varied than either Los Alamos or Santa Fe, with no 
predominant industry or employer.  

 
Albuquerque had an estimated increase in population of 16.6% from 1990 to 2000 compared to 20.1% 

for the state and 13.2% for the country as a whole, and an increase of 12.6% between April 1, 2000 and July 1, 
2006, compared to 7.5% for the state and 6.4% for the country as a whole.  Albuquerque and its surrounding 
areas are some of the fastest growing in the state: the City of Rio Rancho, on the northern limits of Albuquerque 
grew 59.25% from 1990 to 2000 and an additional 38.3% from April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2006; Sandoval County to 
the north of Albuquerque, which includes the City of Rio Rancho, grew 41.99% from 1990 to 2000 and 30.1% 
from April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2007; and Bernalillo County, which includes Albuquerque, grew 15.83% from 1990 
to 2000 and 13.2% from April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2007.  Albuquerque has higher than national and state averages 
in the percentage of its population with high school diplomas or equivalents (85.9%) and those with bachelor or 
higher degrees (31.8%).  The average median income in Albuquerque is 13.67% lower than the national average 
and the unemployment rate was 5.3% in December 2008, eighteen-percent lower than the national average 
(6.5%).  Albuquerque’s unemployment rate increased slightly (0.2%) from December 2008 to January 2009 to 
5.5%, compared to a significant increase (1.1%) in the national unemployment rate to 7.6%.  Median home 
values in Albuquerque are 6.68% above the national average, at $127,600 compared to $119,600 nationally, but 
homeownership is slightly lower at 60.4% compared to a national average of 66.2%. 
  

Competition. We face strong competition both in originating loans and in attracting deposits.  
Competition in originating real estate loans comes primarily from other commercial banks, savings institutions 
and mortgage bankers making loans secured by real estate located in our market area.  Commercial banks and 
finance companies, including finance company affiliates of automobile manufacturers, provide vigorous 
competition in consumer lending.  We compete for real estate and other loans principally on the basis of the 
interest rates and loan fees we charge, the types of loans we originate and the quality and speed of services we 
provide to borrowers. Insurance companies and internet-based financial institutions present growing areas of 
competition both for loans and deposits. 

  
There is substantial competition in attracting deposits from other commercial banks, savings institutions, 

money market and mutual funds, credit unions and other investment vehicles.  Our ability to attract and retain 
deposits depends on our ability to provide investment opportunities that satisfy the requirements of investors as to 
rate of return, liquidity, risk and other factors.  Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted in 2000, securities 
firms and insurance companies that elect to become financial holding companies may acquire banks and other 
financial institutions.  This has significantly changed the competitive environment in which we conduct business.  
The financial services industry has also become more competitive as technological advances enable companies to 
provide financial services to customers outside their traditional geographic markets and provide alternative 
methods for financial transactions.  These technological advances may diminish the importance of depository 
institutions and other financial intermediaries in the transfer of funds between parties.  

 
Employees. As of December 31, 2008, the Bank had approximately 269 full time-equivalent employees.  

We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreements.  Employee relations are excellent as evidenced by the 
results of our annual employee satisfaction surveys.  Over the last seven years, the results of the employee 
satisfaction survey have consistently shown satisfaction levels exceeding our peers according to the independent 
consultant hired to administer and evaluate our surveys. 
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Regulation and Supervision 
  

General. Los Alamos National Bank is a national bank, chartered by the OCC under the National 
Bank Act.  The deposit accounts of Los Alamos National Bank are insured by the FDIC’s Deposit Insurance Fund 
(“DIF”) to the maximum extent provided under federal law and FDIC regulations, and Los Alamos National Bank 
is a member of the Federal Reserve System.  As a national bank, Los Alamos National Bank is subject to the 
examination, supervision, reporting and enforcement requirements of the OCC, the chartering authority for national 
banks.  The FDIC, as administrator of the DIF, also has regulatory authority over Los Alamos National Bank.  Los 
Alamos National Bank is also a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, which provides a central credit 
facility primarily for member institutions. 
 
  Deposit Insurance. As an FDIC-insured institution, the Bank is required to pay deposit 
insurance premium assessments to the FDIC.  The FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessment system whereby 
FDIC-insured depository institutions pay insurance premiums at rates based on their risk classification.  An 
institution’s risk classification is assigned based on its capital levels and the level of supervisory concern the 
institution poses to the regulators.  Under the regulations of the FDIC, as presently in effect, insurance 
assessments range from 0.012% to 0.50% of total deposits for the first quarter of 2009 assessment period (subject 
the application of assessment credits, if any, issued by the FDIC in 2008).  Effective April 1, 2009, insurance 
assessments will range from 0.07% to 0.78% of total deposits, depending on an institution’s risk classification, its 
levels of unsecured debt and secured liabilities, and, in certain cases, its level of brokered deposits.  In addition, 
the FDIC recently passed an interim rule authorizing the FDIC to impose an emergency special assessment to 
recapitalize the fund up to 0.20% of total deposits on June 30, 2009 (that will be collected on September 30, 
2009), and further authorizing the FDIC to impose additional emergency special assessments after June 30, 2009, 
of up to 0.20% of total deposits, whenever the FDIC estimates that the reserve ratio of the DIF will fall to a level 
that the FDIC believes would adversely affect public confidence in federal deposit insurance or to a level that will 
be close to zero or negative at the end of a calendar quarter.  The interim rule, however, is subject to a 30-day 
comment period that will expire on April 2, 2009, and the FDIC has proposed the reduction of the percentage of 
total deposits for the special assessments to 0.10% conditioned upon receipt from Congress of additional 
borrowing ability.  Thus, the interim rule may be subject to change before any special assessments are imposed 
on insured depository institutions.  If enacted at the reduced rate, the special assessment charged the third quarter 
of 2009 is expected to cost the Bank approximately $1.3 million. 
 
  During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 the Bank paid premiums of $682 thousand and 
$136 thousand, respectively. 
 
  FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program.  In connection with the recently enacted 
EESA and in conjunction with Treasury’s actions to address the current credit and liquidity crisis in financial 
markets,  the FDIC announced the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program, which will temporarily provide to 
participating institutions unlimited deposit insurance coverage for non-interest bearing transaction accounts 
maintained at FDIC insured institutions (the “transaction account guarantee program”), and provide a limited 
guarantee on certain newly-issued senior unsecured debt (the “debt guarantee program”).  For an initial 30-day 
period, all eligible financial institutions were automatically covered under this program without incurring any 
fees.  Institutions that did not opt out by December 5, 2008, will be subject to the following potential assessments 
for participation: (i) for the debt guarantee program, between 50 and 100 basis points per annum for eligible 
senior unsecured debt (depending on the maturity date) issued between October 14, 2008 and June 30, 2009; and 
(ii) for the transaction account guarantee program, 10 basis points per annum on amounts in excess of $250,000 
in non-interest bearing transaction accounts from November 13, 2008 through and including December 31, 2009.  
The Bank decided to continue to participate in these programs and did not opt out.  As a result, the Bank expects 
to incur fees associated with the programs. 
 



 
11 

 

  FICO Assessments.  The Financing Corporation (“FICO”) is a mixed-ownership governmental 
corporation chartered by the former Federal Home Loan Bank Board pursuant to the Federal Savings and Loan 
Insurance Corporation Recapitalization Act of 1987 to function as a financing vehicle for the recapitalization of 
the former Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation.  FICO issued 30-year non-callable bonds of 
approximately $8.2 billion that mature by 2019.  Since 1996, federal legislation has required that all FDIC-
insured depository institutions pay assessments to cover interest payments on FICO’s outstanding obligations.  
These FICO assessments are in addition to amounts assessed by the FDIC for deposit insurance.  During the year 
ended December 31, 2008, the FICO assessment rate was approximately 0.01% of deposits. 
 
  Supervisory Assessments. National banks are required to pay supervisory assessments to the OCC 
to fund the operations of the OCC.  The amount of the assessment is calculated using a formula that takes into 
account the bank’s size and its supervisory condition.  During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the 
Bank paid supervisory assessments to the OCC totaling $280 thousand and $293 thousand, respectively. 
 
  Capital Requirements. The OCC has established the following minimum capital standards for 
national banks, such as Los Alamos National Bank: (i) a leverage requirement consisting of a minimum ratio of Tier 
1 capital to total assets of 3% for the most highly-rated banks with a minimum requirement of at least 4% for all 
others; and (ii) a risk-based capital requirement consisting of a minimum ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted 
assets of 8% and a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets of 4%.  In general, the components 
of Tier 1 capital and total capital are the same as those for bank holding companies discussed above. 
 
 The capital requirements described above are minimum requirements.  Higher capital levels will be 
required if warranted by the particular circumstances or risk profiles of individual institutions.  For example, the 
regulations of the OCC provide that additional capital may be required to take adequate account of, among other 
things, interest rate risk or the risks posed by concentrations of credit, nontraditional activities or securities trading 
activities. 
 
 Further, federal law and regulations provide various incentives to financial institutions to maintain 
regulatory capital at levels in excess of minimum regulatory requirements.  For example, a financial institution 
that is “well-capitalized” may qualify for exemptions from prior notice or application requirements otherwise 
applicable to certain types of activities and may qualify for expedited processing of other required notices or 
applications.  Additionally, one of the criteria that determines a bank holding company’s eligibility to operate as a 
financial holding company is a requirement that all of its financial institution subsidiaries be “well-capitalized.”  
Under the regulations of the OCC, in order to be “well-capitalized” a financial institution must maintain a ratio of 
total capital to total risk-weighted assets of 10% or greater, a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets of 
6% or greater and a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total assets of 5% or greater. 
 
  

Federal law also provides the federal banking regulators with broad power to take prompt corrective 
action to resolve the problems of undercapitalized institutions.  The extent of the regulators’ powers depends on 
whether the institution in question is “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly 
undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalized,” in each case as defined by regulation.  Depending upon the 
capital category to which an institution is assigned, the regulators’ corrective powers include: (i) requiring the 
institution to submit a capital restoration plan; (ii) limiting the institution’s asset growth and restricting its 
activities; (iii) requiring the institution to issue additional capital stock (including additional voting stock) or to be 
acquired; (iv) restricting transactions between the institution and its affiliates; (v) restricting the interest rate the 
institution may pay on deposits; (vi) ordering a new election of directors of the institution; (vii) requiring that 
senior executive officers or directors be dismissed; (viii) prohibiting the institution from accepting deposits from 
correspondent banks; (ix) requiring the institution to divest certain subsidiaries; (x) prohibiting the payment of 
principal or interest on subordinated debt; and (xi) ultimately, appointing a receiver for the institution. 
 
 As of December 31, 2008: (i) Los Alamos National Bank was not subject to a directive from the OCC to 
increase its capital to an amount in excess of the minimum regulatory capital requirements; (ii) Los Alamos 
National Bank exceeded its minimum regulatory capital requirements under OCC capital adequacy guidelines; 
and (iii) Los Alamos National Bank was “well-capitalized,” as defined by OCC regulations. 
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  Dividends. The National Bank Act imposes limitations on the amount of dividends that may be 
paid by a national bank, such as Los Alamos National Bank.  Generally, a national bank may pay dividends out of 
its undivided profits in such amounts and at such times as the bank’s board of directors deems prudent. Without 
prior OCC approval, however, a national bank may not pay dividends in any calendar year that, in the aggregate, 
exceed the bank’s year-to-date net income plus the bank’s retained net income for the two preceding years. 
 
 The payment of dividends by any financial institution is affected by the requirement to maintain adequate 
capital pursuant to applicable capital adequacy guidelines and regulations, and a financial institution generally is 
prohibited from paying any dividends if, following payment thereof, the institution would be undercapitalized. As 
described above, Los Alamos National Bank exceeded its minimum capital requirements under applicable 
guidelines as of December 31, 2008.  As of December 31, 2008, approximately $15.7 million was available to be 
paid as dividends by Los Alamos National Bank while remaining “well-capitalized.”  Notwithstanding the 
availability of funds for dividends, however, the OCC may prohibit the payment of any dividends by Los Alamos 
National Bank if the OCC determines such payment would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. 
 
  Insider Transactions. Los Alamos National Bank is subject to certain restrictions imposed by 
federal law on extensions of credit to Trinity, on investments in the stock or other securities of Trinity and the 
acceptance of the stock or other securities of Trinity as collateral for loans.  Los Alamos National Bank also is 
subject to certain restrictions imposed by federal law on extensions of credit by Los Alamos National Bank to its 
directors and officers, to directors and officers of Trinity and its subsidiaries, to principal shareholders of Trinity and 
to “related interests” of such directors, officers and principal shareholders.  In addition, federal law and regulations 
may affect the terms upon which any person who is a director or officer of Trinity or Los Alamos National Bank or 
a principal shareholder of Trinity may obtain credit from banks with which Los Alamos National Bank maintains 
correspondent relationships. 
 
  Safety and Soundness Standards. The federal banking agencies have adopted guidelines that 
establish operational and managerial standards to promote the safety and soundness of federally insured depository 
institutions.  The guidelines set forth standards for internal controls, information systems, internal audit systems, 
loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth, compensation, fees and benefits, asset 
quality and earnings.  
 
 In general, the safety and soundness guidelines prescribe the goals to be achieved in each area, and each 
institution is responsible for establishing its own procedures to achieve those goals.  If an institution fails to comply 
with any of the standards set forth in the guidelines, the institution’s primary federal regulator may require the 
institution to submit a plan for achieving and maintaining compliance.  If an institution fails to submit an acceptable 
compliance plan, or fails in any material respect to implement a compliance plan that has been accepted by its 
primary federal regulator, the regulator is required to issue an order directing the institution to cure the deficiency.  
Until the deficiency cited in the regulator’s order is cured, the regulator may restrict the institution’s rate of growth, 
require the institution to increase its capital, restrict the rates the institution pays on deposits or require the institution 
to take any action the regulator deems appropriate under the circumstances.  Noncompliance with the standards 
established by the safety and soundness guidelines may also constitute grounds for other enforcement action by the 
federal banking regulators, including cease and desist orders and civil money penalty assessments. 
 
  Branching Authority. National banks headquartered in New Mexico, such as Los Alamos 
National Bank, have the same branching rights in New Mexico as banks chartered under New Mexico law, subject 
to OCC approval.  New Mexico law grants New Mexico-chartered banks the authority to establish branches 
anywhere in the State of New Mexico, subject to receipt of all required regulatory approvals. 
 
 Federal law permits state and national banks to merge with banks in other states subject to: (i) regulatory 
approval; (ii) federal and state deposit concentration limits; and (iii) state law limitations requiring the merging 
bank to have been in existence for a minimum period of time (not to exceed five years) prior to the merger.  The 
establishment of new interstate branches or the acquisition of individual branches of a bank in another state 
(rather than the acquisition of an out-of-state bank in its entirety) is permitted only in those states the laws of 
which expressly authorize such expansion. 
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  Financial Subsidiaries. Under Federal law and OCC regulations, national banks are authorized to 
engage, through “financial subsidiaries,” in any activity that is permissible for a financial holding company and any 
activity that the Secretary of the Treasury, in consultation with the Federal Reserve, determines is financial in nature 
or incidental to any such financial activity, except (i) insurance underwriting, (ii) real estate development or real 
estate investment activities (unless otherwise permitted by law), (iii) insurance company portfolio investments and 
(iv) merchant banking.  The authority of a national bank to invest in a financial subsidiary is subject to a number of 
conditions, including, among other things, requirements that the bank must be well-managed and well-capitalized 
(after deducting from capital the bank’s outstanding investments in financial subsidiaries).  Los Alamos National 
Bank has  no  unapproved or pending applications to establish any financial subsidiaries. 
 
  Federal Reserve System. Federal Reserve regulations, as presently in effect, require depository 
institutions to maintain reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily NOW and regular checking 
accounts), as follows: for transaction accounts aggregating $44.4 million or less, the reserve requirement is 3% of 
total transaction accounts; and for transaction accounts aggregating in excess of $44.4 million, the reserve 
requirement is $1.023 million plus 10% of the aggregate amount of total transaction accounts in excess of 
$44.4 million.  The first $9.3 million of otherwise reservable balances are exempted from the reserve 
requirements.  These reserve requirements are subject to annual adjustment by the Federal Reserve.  Los Alamos 
National Bank is in compliance with the foregoing requirements.  Beginning in the third quarter of 2008, the 
reserves at the Federal Reserve Bank earn interest. 
   

Title Guaranty & Insurance Company 
  

General. Title Guaranty is a title insurance company organized under the laws of New Mexico and 
doing business in Los Alamos and Santa Fe Counties.  Trinity acquired Title Guaranty in May of 2000 to provide 
services related to the lending activities of the Bank.  Title Guaranty has provided services to the Los Alamos 
community since its founding in 1963 and handled approximately 81% of the mortgages recorded in Los Alamos 
County in 2008.  Title Guaranty has one competitor in Los Alamos County, which handled approximately 19% of 
the mortgages recorded in Los Alamos County in 2008.  Title Guaranty opened a second office in the Bank’s 
Downtown Santa Fe facility in February 2005, securing a title plant under a lease and purchase agreement with 
LandAmerica Capitol City Title Services, Inc. to provide title services and products in Santa Fe County.  Title 
Guaranty faces strong competition in Santa Fe County from nine other title companies.  In 2008, Title Guaranty 
handled approximately 8% of the mortgages recorded in Santa Fe County.  Title Guaranty is regulated by the 
New Mexico Public Regulation Commission’s Department of Insurance with which Title Guaranty is required to 
file annual experience reports and who audits Title Guaranty annually.  The annual experience report requires that 
Title Guaranty be audited annually by a certified public accountant. 

  
Products and Services. The products and services offered by Title Guaranty include: title insurance; 

closings, including purchase/sale, commercial, construction, refinance, tax deferred exchange, relocation, and 
courtesy; escrow and notary services; title searches; and title reports.  Title insurance covers lenders, investors, 
and property owners from potential losses that can arise in real estate ownership and is typically required for 
loans collateralized by real property.  To streamline its processes, Title Guaranty employs current technology 
allowing customers to view the status of their file online.  Title Guaranty’s national underwriters are Chicago 
Title Insurance Company, Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, Fidelity National Title Insurance 
Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation and First American Title Insurance Company. 

 
Employees. As of December 31, 2008, Title Guaranty had approximately 11 full time-equivalent 

employees.  Title Guaranty is not a party to any collective bargaining agreements.  Employee relations are 
excellent as evidenced by the results of our annual employee satisfaction surveys.  
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TCC Appraisal Services Corporation 
  

TCC Appraisals was an appraisal company organized under the laws of New Mexico and doing business 
in Los Alamos County which Trinity acquired in January 2006 to provide services related to the lending activities 
of the Bank.  Trinity sold the assets of TCC Appraisals in May 2008 and dissolved the company as of January 
2009.  

 
Cottonwood Technology Group, LLC 

 
In August 2008, the Bank obtained a 26% interest in Cottonwood Technology Group, LLC 

(“Cottonwood”).  This entity is owned by the Bank, the Los Alamos Commerce & Development Corporation and 
David Blivin.  Cottonwood is focused on assisting new technologies, primarily those developed at New Mexico’s 
research and educational institutions, reach the market by providing management advice and capital consulting.  
Cottonwood is also engaged in the solicitation of funds for a venture capital fund.  Additionally, the Bank entered 
consulting agreement with Cottonwood under which Cottonwood provides services to assist the Bank in its 
venture banking, start up banking and high tech banking portfolio. 

 
Trinity Capital Trust I, III, IV and V 

  
Trinity Capital Trust I, Trinity Capital Trust III, Trinity Capital Trust IV, and Trinity Capital Trust V 

(the “Trusts”) are Delaware statutory business trusts formed in 2000, 2004, 2005, and 2006, for the purpose of 
issuing $10 million, $6 million, $10 million, and $10 million in trust preferred securities and lent the proceeds to 
Trinity.  Trinity redeemed all amounts due under Trinity Capital Trust II in December 2006 and dissolved the 
entity.  Trinity guarantees, on a limited basis, payments of distributions on the trust preferred securities and 
payments on redemption of the trust preferred securities. 

  
All trust preferred securities are currently included in the Tier 1 capital of Trinity for regulatory capital 

purposes.  However, the Federal Reserve Board recently enacted a rule that may limit the inclusion of some of 
our trust preferred securities in Tier 1 capital for regulatory capital purposes after 2009, although we believe that 
we will be able to continue treating it all as Tier 1 capital under the rule.  See Note 10, “Junior Subordinated Debt 
Owed to Unconsolidated Trusts” and Note 18, “Regulatory Matters” in the notes to consolidated financial 
statements included in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” of this Form 10-K. 
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors 
  

In addition to the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, shareholders or prospective 
investors should carefully consider the following risk factors: 

  
Our business may be adversely affected by conditions in the financial markets and economic 

conditions generally.  The United States has been in a recession since December, 2007.  Business activity across 
a wide range of industries and regions is greatly reduced, and many businesses and local governments are 
experiencing serious difficulty in remaining profitable due to the lack of consumer spending and the lack of 
liquidity in the credit markets.  Unemployment has increased significantly, although not as rapidly within our 
primary market areas.  Since mid-2007, and particularly during the second half of 2008, the financial services 
industry and the securities markets generally were materially and adversely affected by significant declines in the 
values of nearly all asset classes and by a lack of liquidity.  
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As a result of this economic downturn, many lending institutions, including us, have experienced 
declines in loan performance, including commercial loans, commercial real estate loans and consumer loans. 
Moreover, competition among depository institutions for deposits and quality loans has increased significantly. In 
addition, the values of real estate collateral supporting many commercial loans and home mortgages have 
declined and may continue to decline. Bank and bank holding company stock prices have been negatively 
affected, and the ability of banks and bank holding companies to raise capital or borrow in the debt markets has 
become more difficult compared to recent years.  There is also the potential for new federal or state laws and 
regulations regarding lending and funding practices and liquidity standards, and bank regulatory agencies are 
expected to be very aggressive in responding to concerns and trends identified in examinations, including the 
expected issuance of many formal or informal enforcement actions or orders. The impact of new legislation in 
response to those developments, may negatively impact our operations by restricting our business operations, 
including our ability to originate or sell loans, and adversely impact our financial performance or our stock price.  
 

In addition, further negative market developments may affect consumer confidence levels and may cause 
adverse changes in payment patterns, causing increases in delinquencies and default rates, which may impact our 
charge-offs and provision for credit losses. A worsening of these conditions would likely exacerbate the adverse 
effects of these difficult market conditions on us and others in the financial services industry.  
 

Overall, during the past year, the general business environment has had an adverse effect on our 
business, and there can be no assurance that the environment will improve in the near term. Until conditions 
improve, we expect our business, financial condition and results of operations to be adversely affected. 

 
Our profitability is dependent upon the health of the markets in which we operate. As the largest 

employer in Northern New Mexico, the health of the Laboratory is central to the economic health of both 
northern and central New Mexico.  The main indicator of the Laboratory’s health is its funding.  The 
Laboratory’s 2009 fiscal budget is currently under a continuing resolution and the initial indications are that 
Congress will approve continued funding at an annual level of approximately $2.2 billion, which would signify 
no change in the amount of funding.  Any material decrease in the Laboratory’s funding may affect our 
customers’ business and financial interests, adversely affect economic conditions in our market area, affect the 
ability of our customers to repay their loans to us and generally affect our financial condition and results of 
operations.  The economy in Northern New Mexico as a whole has remained fairly stable, although somewhat 
slower than historical activity levels.  

 
Interest rates and other conditions impact our results of operations. Our profitability is in part a 

function of net interest margin.  Like most banking institutions, our net interest margin will be affected by general 
economic conditions and other factors, including fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government, that 
influence market interest rates and our ability to respond to changes in such rates.  At any given time, our assets 
and liabilities will be such that they are affected differently by a given change in interest rates.  As a result, an 
increase or decrease in rates, the length of loan terms or the mix of adjustable and fixed rate loans in our portfolio 
could have a positive or negative effect on our net income, capital and liquidity.  We measure interest rate risk 
under various rate scenarios and using specific criteria and assumptions.  A summary of this process, along with 
the results of our net interest income simulations is presented at “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About 
Market Risk” included under Item 7A of Part II of this Form 10-K.  Although we believe our current level of 
interest rate sensitivity is reasonable and effectively managed, significant fluctuations in interest rates may have 
an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
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Participation in Treasury’s CPP would restrict our ability to raise common stock dividends.  If we 
participate, under the current terms of the CPP, unless we have redeemed the CPP Preferred Stock or Treasury 
has transferred the securities to a third party, Treasury’s consent would be required for us to increase our common 
stock dividend or repurchase our common stock (other than repurchases in connection with benefit plans 
consistent with past practice) prior to the third anniversary of participation.  Between the third and tenth years of 
participation in the CPP, we would be restricted in the increases permissible in dividends on common stock 
without Treasury’s consent.  In the event we do not repay the CPP investment by the tenth anniversary of 
participation, we would be unable to pay dividends on common stock or repurchase any common stock.  If we 
participate in the CPP, our business activities and corporate governance would be subject to additional 
restrictions and requirements, including requirements for lending activities and restrictions on compensation - 
some possibly with retroactive application - adopted by Congress, the Treasury Department or government 
agencies.  For example, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 imposed retroactive 
compensation-related and corporate governance limitations even on those CPP participants that had closed their 
CPP transactions prior to the enacted of the legislation.  We do not believe these restrictions would result in a 
material adverse affect on our business, financial condition or results of operation and believe that, if we 
participate, we could repay the investment prior to the tenth anniversary.  However, the Company has not yet 
made a determination whether it will participate in the CPP. 

 
We must effectively manage our credit risk, including risks specific to real estate value due to the 

large concentration of real estate loans in our loan portfolio. There are risks inherent in making any loan, 
including risks of nonpayment, risks resulting from uncertainties as to the future value of collateral and risks 
resulting from changes in economic and industry conditions.  We attempt to minimize our credit risk through 
prudent loan underwriting procedures, careful monitoring of the concentration of our loans within specific 
industries, monitoring of our collateral values and market conditions, and periodic independent reviews of 
outstanding loans by our audit department, a third-party loan review as well as external auditors.  However, we 
cannot assure such approval and monitoring procedures will eliminate these credit risks. 

 
The majority of the Bank’s loan portfolio is invested in commercial real estate, residential real estate, 

construction, general commercial and consumer lending.  The maximum amount we can loan to any one 
customer and their related entities (our “legal lending limit”) is smaller than the limits of our national and 
regional competitors with larger lending limits.  While there is little demand for loans over our legal lending limit 
($20.2 million), we can and have engaged in participation loans with other financial institutions to respond to 
customer requirements.  However, there are some loans and relationships that we cannot effectively compete for 
due to our size. 

 
Real estate lending (including commercial, construction, and residential) is a large portion of our loan 

portfolio.  These categories constitute $1.06 billion, or approximately 85.6% of our total loan portfolio as of 
December 31, 2008.  The market value of real estate can fluctuate significantly in a short period of time as a 
result of market conditions in the geographic area in which the real estate is located.  Although a significant 
portion of such loans are secured by real estate as a secondary form of collateral, adverse developments affecting 
real estate values in one or more of our markets could increase the credit risk associated with our loan portfolio.  
Additionally, commercial real estate lending typically involves larger loan principal amounts and the repayment 
of the loans generally is dependent, in large part, on sufficient income from the properties securing the loans to 
cover operating expenses and debt service.  Economic events or governmental regulations outside of the control 
of the borrower or lender could negatively impact the future cash flow and market values of the affected 
properties. 

 
The Bank’s residential mortgage loan operations include origination, sale and servicing.  The Bank’s 

residential mortgage loan portfolio does not include subprime mortgages and contains a limited number of non-
traditional residential mortgages.  The Bank employs prudent underwriting standards in making residential 
mortgage loans.  The majority of the residential mortgage loans originated by the Bank are sold to third-party 
investors, primarily to the Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”).  The Bank continues to 
service the majority of loans that are sold to third-party investors, to build on our relationship with the customers 
and provide a continuing source of income through mortgage servicing right fees.  Neither Trinity nor the Bank 
have purchased or engaged in loan pools, such as CDOs, SIVs, or other instruments which contain subprime 
mortgage loans and have recently seen losses in value.  As such, Trinity does not foresee any charge-offs, write-
downs or other losses outside the ordinary course of business with respect to our residential mortgage operations. 
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The current real estate market in New Mexico has slowed, but not to the same extent as other areas of 

the nation.  Residential real estate time on-the-market has increased, but home values have generally remained 
constant or increased slightly in our market areas.  If the loans that are collateralized by real estate become 
troubled during a time when market conditions are declining or have declined, we may not be able to realize the 
amount of security that we anticipated at the time of originating the loan, which could cause us to increase our 
provision for loan losses and adversely affect our operating results and financial condition.  To mitigate such risk, 
we employ the use of independent third parties to conduct appraisals on our real estate collateral and adhere to 
limits set on the percentages for the loan amount to the appraised value of the collateral.  We continually monitor 
the real estate markets and economic conditions in the areas in which our loans are concentrated. 

 
Our construction and development loans are based upon estimates of costs and value associated 

with the complete project. These estimates may be inaccurate and we may be exposed to more losses on 
these projects than on other loans. At December 31, 2008, construction loans, including land acquisition and 
development, totaled $254.4 million, or 20.6%, of our total loan portfolio.  Construction, land acquisition and 
development lending involve additional risks because funds are advanced based upon the value of the project, 
which is of uncertain value prior to its completion.  Because of the uncertainties inherent in estimating 
construction costs, as well as the market value of the completed project and the effects of governmental 
regulation of real property and the general effects of the national and local economies, it is relatively difficult to 
evaluate accurately the total funds required to complete a project and the related loan-to-value ratio.  As a result, 
construction loans often involve the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment dependent, in part, on the 
success of the ultimate project and the ability of the borrower to sell or lease the property, rather than the ability 
of the borrower or guarantor to repay principal and interest.  If our appraisal of the value of the completed project 
proves to be overstated, we may have inadequate security for the repayment of the loan upon completion of 
construction of the project.  If we are forced to foreclose on a project prior to or at completion due to a default, 
there can be no assurance that we will be able to recover all of the unpaid balance of, and accrued interest on, the 
loan as well as related foreclosure, sale and holding costs.  In addition, we may be required to fund additional 
amounts to complete the project and may have to hold the property for an unspecified period of time.  We have 
attempted to address these risks through our underwriting procedures, compliance with applicable regulations, 
requiring that advances typically be made on a percentage of completion basis as determined by independent 
third party inspectors, and by limiting the amount of construction development lending. 

 
Our allowance for loan losses must be managed to provide sufficient reserves to absorb potential 

losses in our loan portfolio. We established our allowance for loan losses in consultation with management, 
consultants and external auditor recommendations, and maintain it at a level considered adequate by management 
to absorb probable loan losses based on a continual analysis of our portfolio and market environment.  The 
amount of loan losses is susceptible to changes in economic, operating and other conditions within our market, 
which may be beyond our control, and such losses may exceed current estimates.  At December 31, 2008, our 
allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans was 1.24% and as a percentage of total non-performing 
loans was approximately 45.62%.  Although management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate 
to absorb losses on any existing loans that may become uncollectible, we cannot predict loan losses with 
certainty, and we cannot assure that our allowance for loan losses will prove sufficient to cover actual loan losses.  
In addition, our regulators may require us to change the amount of our reserves for loan loss which must be 
funded from net income.  Additional reserve allocations or loan losses in excess of our reserves may adversely 
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.  Additional information regarding our allowance 
for loan losses and the methodology we use to determine an appropriate level of reserves is located in the 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” section included under Item 7 of Part II of this Form 10-K. 
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Our pace of growth may be limited due to current conditions in the capital markets in general and 
the financial services industry specifically.  We anticipate that our existing capital resources will satisfy our 
capital requirements for the foreseeable future and will support our ability to increase our lending and grow.  
However, our ability to support continued growth in the future, both internally and through acquisitions, may be 
dependent on our ability to raise additional capital.  Due to current conditions in the capital markets in general, 
and the financial services industry specifically, it is unlikely that we will be able to raise inexpensive capital in 
the near future.  Accordingly, until conditions in the capital markets, particularly for financial services 
companies, improve significantly, our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth and 
acquisitions may be limited.  The Company is still in the process of evaluating whether it will participate in the 
CPP, which would provide additional capital should we elect to participate. 

 
We may need to raise additional capital in the future, which may not be available when it is 

needed. We are required by federal and state regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to 
support our operations.  We manage our growth rate to ensure that our existing capital resources will satisfy our 
capital requirements for the foreseeable future.  However, regulatory requirements, growth in assets outpacing 
growth in capital or our growth strategy may present conditions that would create a need for additional capital 
from the capital markets.  Our ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will depend on conditions in the 
capital markets at that time, which are outside our control, and on our financial performance.  There may not 
always be capital available or available on favorable terms.  These conditions may alter our strategic direction 
and require us to manage our growth to remain within capital limits relying solely on our earnings for capital 
formation, thereby materially reducing our growth rate. 

 
Our growth must be effectively managed and our growth strategy involves risks that may impact 

our net income. As part of our general growth strategy, we may expand into additional communities or attempt 
to strengthen our position in our current markets to take advantage of expanding market share by opening new 
offices.  To the extent that we undertake additional office openings, we are likely to experience the effects of 
higher operating expenses relative to operating income from the new operations for a period of time, which may 
have an adverse effect on our levels of reported net income, return on average equity and return on average 
assets.  Our current growth strategies involve internal growth from our current offices and the opening of an 
additional office in Santa Fe during 2009.  This new site will be approximately 15,000 square feet.  Our 
experience has been rapid absorption of our Santa Fe offices, with our existing Santa Fe offices becoming 
profitable well ahead of budget; however, such rapid absorption is not guaranteed in the future. 
  

We must compete with other banks and financial institutions in all lines of business. The banking 
and financial services business in our market is highly competitive.  Our competitors include large regional 
banks, local community banks, savings institutions, securities and brokerage companies, mortgage companies, 
insurance companies, finance companies, money market mutual funds, credit unions and other non-bank financial 
service providers.  Many of these competitors are not subject to the same regulatory restrictions and may 
therefore enable them to provide customers with an alternative to traditional banking services. 

  
Increased competition in our market and market changes, such as interest rate changes, force 

management to better control costs in order to absorb any resultant narrowing of our net interest margin, i.e., the 
spread between the interest rates earned on investments and loans and the interest rates paid on deposits and other 
interest-bearing liabilities.  Without effective management and cost controls, net income may be adversely 
impacted by changing conditions and competition.  Our efficiency leads to a decreased cost of operation that 
allows us to effectively anticipate and respond to market and competitive changes without adversely affecting net 
income. 
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Our ability to attract and retain management and key personnel may affect future growth and 
earnings. Much of our success to date has been influenced strongly by our ability to attract and to retain 
management experienced in banking and financial services and individuals familiar with the communities in our 
market areas.  Our ability to retain executive officers, current management, office managers and loan officers at 
the Bank will continue to be important to the successful implementation of our strategy.  It is also critical, as we 
grow, to be able to attract and retain qualified additional management and loan officers with the appropriate level 
of experience and knowledge about our market areas to implement our community-based operating strategy.  The 
unexpected loss of any key personnel, or the inability to recruit and retain qualified personnel in the future, could 
have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  The executive 
compensation restraints that would be imposed on us if we participate in the CPP may make it difficult to attract 
and retain qualified personnel.  

  
Government regulation can result in limitations on our operations. We operate in a highly regulated 

environment and are subject to supervision and regulation by a number of governmental regulatory agencies, 
including the Federal Reserve, the OCC the FDIC and Treasury.  Regulations adopted by these agencies, which 
are generally intended to provide protection for depositors and customers rather than for the benefit of 
shareholders, govern a comprehensive range of matters relating to ownership and control of our shares, our 
acquisition of other companies and businesses, permissible activities for us to engage in, maintenance of adequate 
capital levels and other aspects of our operations.  These bank regulators possess broad authority to prevent or 
remedy unsafe or unsound practices or violations of law.  The laws and regulations applicable to the banking 
industry could change at any time and we cannot predict the affects of these changes on our business and 
profitability.    However, any changes in regulation could increase our cost of compliance and adversely affect 
profitability. 

  
Technology is continually changing and we must effectively implement new innovations in 

providing services to our customers. The financial services industry is undergoing rapid technological changes 
with frequent innovations in technology-driven products and services.  In addition to better serving customers, the 
effective use of technology increases our efficiency and enables us to reduce costs.  Our future success will 
depend, in part, upon our ability to address the needs of our customers using innovative methods, processes and 
technology to provide products and services that will satisfy customer demands for convenience as well as to 
create additional efficiencies in our operations as we continue to grow and expand our market areas.  In order to 
anticipate and develop new technology, we employ a full staff of internal information system developers and 
consider this area a core part of our business.  In the past, we have been able to respond to technological changes 
faster and with greater flexibility than our competitors.  However, we must continue to make substantial 
investments in technology, which may affect our net income.  

 
There is a limited trading market for our common shares and, as with all companies, shareholders 

may not be able to resell shares at or above the price shareholders paid for them. Our common stock is not 
listed on any automated quotation system or securities exchange and no firm makes a market in our stock.  The 
trading in our common shares has less liquidity than many other companies quoted on the national securities 
exchanges or markets.  A public trading market having the desired characteristics of depth, liquidity and 
orderliness depends on the presence in the market of willing buyers and sellers of our common shares at any 
given time.  This presence depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic and market 
conditions over which we have no control.  We cannot insure volume of trading in our common shares will 
increase in the future. 

 
System failure or breaches of our network security could subject us to increased operating costs, 

damage to our reputation, litigation and other liabilities. The computer systems and network infrastructure we 
use could be vulnerable to unforeseen problems.  Our operations are dependent upon our ability to protect our 
computer equipment against damage from physical theft, fire, power loss, telecommunications failure or a similar 
catastrophic event, as well as from security breaches, denial of service attacks, viruses, worms and other 
disruptive problems caused by hackers.  Any damage or failure that causes an interruption in our operations could 
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.  Computer break-ins, phishing 
and other disruptions could also jeopardize the security of information stored in and transmitted through our 
computer systems and network infrastructure, which may result in significant liability to us and may cause 
existing and potential customers to refrain from doing business with us as well as damage to our reputation in 
general.  
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The Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC) issued guidance for “Strong 
Authentication/Two Factor Authentication” in the Internet banking environment.  All financial institutions were 
required to make changes to their online banking systems to meet the new FFIEC requirements.  In response to 
this guidance, Trinity incorporated multiple layers of security to protect our customers’ financial data.  We 
further employ external information technology auditors to conduct extensive auditing and testing for any 
weaknesses in our systems, controls, firewalls and encryption to reduce the likelihood of any security failures or 
breaches.  Although we, with the help of third-party service providers and auditors, intend to continue 
implementing security technology and establish operational procedures to prevent such damage, there can be no 
assurance that these security measures will be successful. In addition, advances in computer capabilities, new 
discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments could result in a compromise or breach of the 
algorithms we and our third-party service providers use to encrypt and protect customer transaction data. A 
failure of such security measures could have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and results of 
operations. 
  

We are subject to certain operational risks, including, but not limited to, customer or employee 
fraud and data processing system failures and errors. Employee errors and employee and customer 
misconduct could subject us to financial losses or regulatory sanctions and seriously harm our reputation. 
Employee errors could include data processing system failures and errors. Misconduct by our employees could 
include hiding unauthorized activities from us, improper or unauthorized activities on behalf of our customers or 
improper use of confidential information. It is not always possible to prevent employee errors and misconduct, 
and the precautions we take to prevent and detect this activity may not be effective in all cases. Employee errors 
could also subject us to financial claims for negligence. To mitigate operational risks, we maintain a system of 
internal controls and insurance coverage. Should our internal controls fail to prevent or detect an occurrence, or if 
any resulting loss is not insured or exceeds applicable insurance limits, it could have a material adverse affect on 
our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

  
Failure to pay interest on our debt may adversely impact our ability to pay dividends. As of 

December 31, 2008, we had $37.1 million of junior subordinated debentures that are held by four business trusts 
that we control. Interest payments on the debentures must be paid before we pay dividends on our capital stock, 
including our Common Stock.  In 2008, the interest payments totaled $2.9 million; however, the amount is 
subject to change each year due to a variable rate applicable to $6 million of the debentures.  We have the right to 
defer interest payments on the debentures for up to 20 consecutive quarters.  However, if we elect to defer interest 
payments, all deferred interest must be paid before we may pay dividends on our capital stock.  Deferral of 
interest payments could also cause a decline in the market price of our Common Stock. 

  
Recent legislative and regulatory initiatives to address difficult market and economic conditions 

may not stabilize the U.S. banking system.  The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the U.S. 
Congress, Treasury, the FDIC, the SEC and others enacted ESSA and numerous other actions to address the 
current liquidity and credit crisis.  These measures include homeowner relief that encourage loan restructuring 
and modification; the establishment of significant liquidity and credit facilities for financial institutions and 
investment banks; the lowering of the federal funds rate; emergency action against short selling practices; a 
temporary guaranty program for money market funds; the establishment of a commercial paper funding facility to 
provide back-stop liquidity to commercial paper issuers; and coordinated international efforts to address 
illiquidity and other weaknesses in the banking sector.  In addition, Treasury recently announced its Financial 
Stability Plan to attack the current credit crisis, and President Obama has signed into law the American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act (the “ARRA”).  The purpose of these legislative and regulatory actions is to stabilize the 
U.S. banking system, improve the flow of credit and foster an economic recovery.  The regulatory and legislative 
initiatives described above may not have their desired effects, however.  If the volatility in the markets continues 
and economic conditions fail to improve or worsen, our business, financial condition and results of operations 
could be materially and adversely affected. 
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments. 
  

None 
 
  

Item 2. Properties. 
  

As of March 16, 2009, the Company conducted operations through five locations as shown below.  
Trinity is headquartered in the main Bank office in Los Alamos, New Mexico.  Four banking offices are owned 
by the Bank and are not subject to any mortgages or material encumbrances; our Albuquerque office is in leased 
office space.  In addition to our offices, the Bank operates 28 automatic teller machines (“ATMs”) throughout 
northern New Mexico.  The ATMs are housed either on bank properties or on leased property.  

 
In addition to the properties at which offices are currently located, Trinity holds ground leases on 

approximately 3 acres of vacant land located at the intersection of Vegas Verdes Drive and Cerrillos Road in 
Santa Fe, New Mexico (referred to below as Santa Fe Office III (Cerrillos Road)).  The Cerrillos Road office is 
currently under construction and we anticipate the office opening in mid-2009.  A portion of the property will be 
sub-leased to additional tenants.  We believe our facilities are adequate for our existing business as well as our 
present and immediately foreseeable needs. 
 

Properties  Address  Entity 
Company Headquarters  1200 Trinity Drive 

Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544 
 Trinity 

Los Alamos Office  1200 Trinity Drive 
Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544 

 Bank, Title 
Guaranty 

White Rock Office  77 Rover 
White Rock, New Mexico 87544 

 Bank 

Santa Fe Office I (Galisteo)  2009 Galisteo 
Street Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505 

 Bank 

Santa Fe Office II (Downtown)  301 Griffin Street 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501 

 Bank, Title 
Guaranty 

Albuquerque Office  6301 Indian School Road N.E. 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87110 

 Bank 

Santa Fe Office III (Cerrillos 
Road) 

 3674 Cerrillos Road and 
1405 Vegas Verdes Drive 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 

 Vacant Land 

 
 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings. 
  
 Trinity, the Bank, Title Guaranty, Cottonwood, TCC Advisors and TCC Funds are not involved in any 
pending legal proceedings, other than routine legal proceedings occurring in the normal course of business and 
those otherwise specifically stated herein, which, in the opinion of management, in the aggregate, are material to 
our consolidated financial condition. 
 
  
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders. 
  

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 2008. 
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PART II 
  

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 
Equity Securities.  
 
Market Information 
  

Trinity’s common stock is not listed on any automated quotation system or securities exchange.  No firm 
makes a market in our stock.  As of March 11, 2009, there were 6,448,548 shares of common stock outstanding 
and approximately 1,400 shareholders of record.  The most recent reported sale price of Trinity’s stock as of 
December 31, 2008 was $21.75 per share. 

  
The tables below show the reported high and low sales prices of the common stock during the periods 

indicated.  The prices below are only the trades where the price was disclosed to the Company.  Sales where the 
value of the shares traded were not given to us, are not included.  The following figures have been adjusted for all 
stock splits: 

 

Quarter ending  
High sales

price
 

 
Low sales 

price
December 31, 2008   $ 24.30 $ 21.75
September 30, 2008   25.00 23.50
June 30, 2008   25.50 24.40
March 31, 2008   28.00 24.45
      
December 31, 2007   $ 28.00 $ 24.95
September 30, 2007   29.00 25.00
June 30, 2007   29.00 25.00
March 31, 2007   28.75 28.00
 
Dividend Policy 
  

Since January 2007, Trinity paid dividends on our common stock as follows: 
 

Date paid  
Amount per 

share
January 9, 2009  $ 0.40
July 11, 2008  0.40
January 11, 2008  0.40
July 13, 2007  0.35
January 12, 2007  0.35
 

Trinity’s ability to pay dividends to shareholders is largely dependent upon the dividends it receives 
from the Bank and the Bank is subject to regulatory limitations on the amount of cash dividends it may pay.  
Please see “Business—Trinity Capital Corporation—Supervision and Regulation—Dividends” and “Business—
Los Alamos National Bank—Supervision and Regulation—Dividends” under Item 1 of this Form 10-K for a 
more detailed description of these limitations. 
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We have the right to, and may from time to time, enter into borrowing arrangements or issue other debt 
instruments, the provisions of which may contain restrictions on payment of dividends and other distributions on 
Trinity common stock and Trinity preferred stock.  We have issued in the aggregate approximately $37.1 million 
in junior subordination debentures to Trinity Capital Trust I, Trinity Capital Trust III, Trinity Capital Trust IV 
and Trinity Capital Trust V.  All of the common stock of the trusts is owned by Trinity and the debentures are the 
only assets of the trusts.  Under the terms of the debentures, we may be prohibited, under certain circumstances, 
from paying dividends on shares of its common stock.  None of these circumstances currently exist.  As of the 
date hereof, we have not entered into any other arrangements that contain restrictions on the payment of 
dividends.  As discussed above, Trinity is assessing whether to participate in the CPP and issue Preferred Stock to 
Treasury.  The terms of the CPP Preferred Stock place certain restrictions on the Trinity’s ability to pay dividends 
on its common stock.  First, no dividends on Trinity’s common stock would be permitted to be paid unless all 
accrued dividends on Treasury’s CPP Preferred Stock have been paid in full.  Second, until the third anniversary 
of the date of Treasury’s investment, Trinity would not be permitted to increase the dividends paid on its common 
stock beyond its most recent semi-annual dividend of $0.40 per share without first obtaining the consent of 
Treasury.  After the third anniversary date, Trinity would not be permitted to increase dividends more than 3% 
per year without first obtaining the consent of Treasury.  After the tenth anniversary date, Trinity may not pay 
dividends on common stock until Treasury’s investment is repaid. 

We believe that Trinity can continue to pay comparable cash dividends to shareholders in the future, 
assuming that (a) we continue to be profitable, (b) we do not experience any unusual growth that would 
necessitate higher capital retention and (c) the regulatory environment on minimum capital requirements or 
maximum dividends paid does not change. 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 
  

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we repurchased the following securities: 
 

Period   

(a) 
Total number of 

shares 
purchased   

(b) 
Average price paid 

per 
share  

(c) 
Total number of 

shares 
purchased as part of 
publicly announced 

plans 
or programs   

(d) 
Maximum 

approximate 
dollar value that may 

yet be 
purchased under the 

plans or 
programs  

October 1-October 31, 2008   20,228  (1) $ 27.70  —  $ — 
November 1-November 30, 

2008   5,709  27.70  —   — 
December 1-December 31, 

2008   209  27.70  —   — 
Total   26,146  $ 27.70  —  $ — 
 
_________________________ 
(1) All of the shares repurchased in the fourth quarter of 2008 were due to Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

participants exercising the put option on the stock held in the plan.  Under this put option, Trinity has up 
to five years to repurchase the shares from the participants at the last appraised value of the stock.  
Trinity elected to repurchase these shares immediately from the plan participants. 
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Shareholder Return Performance Graph 
 
 The following graph and related information shall not be deemed to be filed, but rather furnished to the 
SEC by inclusion herein. 
 

The following graph shows a comparison of cumulative total returns for Trinity, the NASDAQ Stock 
Market, an index of all bank stocks followed by SNL, an index of bank stock for banks with $1 billion to $5 
billion in total assets followed by SNL, and an index of bank stocks that are quoted on the OTC-Bulletin Board 
and on Pink Sheets.  The cumulative total shareholder return computations assume the investment of $100.00 on 
December 31, 2003 and the reinvestment of all dividends.  Figures for Trinity’s common stock represent inter-
dealer quotations, without retail markups, markdowns or commissions and do not necessarily represent actual 
transactions.  The graph was prepared using data provided by SNL Securities LC, Charlottesville, Virginia. 
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  Period Ending  
Index  12/31/03  12/31/04  12/31/05  12/31/06  12/31/07  12/31/08  

Trinity Capital Corporation       $ 100.00  $ 101.29  $ 94.32  $ 99.22  $ 95.69  $ 79.82  
NASDAQ Composite       100.00  108.59  110.08  120.56  132.39  78.72  
SNL Bank       100.00  112.06  113.59  132.87  103.25  58.91  
SNL Bank $1B to $5B  100.00  123.42  121.31  140.38  102.26  84.81  
SNL >$500M OTC:BB and Pink Banks  100.00  116.97  124.48  136.58  125.85  91.32  
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data. 
 

The following table sets forth certain consolidated financial and other data of Trinity at the dates and for 
the periods indicated. 
 

    Year Ended December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   2005   2004   
    (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)   

Statement of Income Data:                
Interest income   $ 83,200  $ 96,989  $ 85,034   $ 67,909   $ 54,291   
Interest expense   35,936  47,998  39,216  26,328   17,093   

Net interest income   47,264  48,991  45,818  41,581   37,198   
Provision for loan losses   8,183  4,200  5,172  2,850   2,100   

Net interest income after provision 
for loan losses   39,081  44,791  40,646  38,731   35,098   

Other income   11,544  10,508  10,287  10,249   10,466   
Other expense   38,043  34,605  33,794  29,851   28,746   

Income before income taxes   12,582  20,694  17,139  19,129   16,818   
Income taxes   4,583  7,365  6,828  7,169   6,429   

Net income   $ 7,999  $ 13,329  $ 10,311  $ 11,960   $ 10,389   
                 
Common Share Data:                
Earnings per common share   $ 1.23  $ 2.05  $ 1.57  $ 1.80   $ 1.54   
Diluted earnings per common share   1.23  2.03  1.56  1.79   1.52   
Book value per common share (1)   14.16  13.58  12.35  11.54   10.84   
Shares outstanding at end of period   6,448,548  6,482,650  6,532,898  6,554,559   6,732,748   
Weighted average common shares 

outstanding   6,478,395  6,514,613  6,572,770  6,632,587   6,728,289   
Diluted weighted average common 

shares outstanding   6,498,211  6,555,865  6,612,324  6,692,849   6,840,020   
Dividend payout ratio (2)   65.04 % 36.59 % 43.95 % 35.56 % 39.61 %
Cash dividends declared per common 

share (3)   $ 0.80   $ 0.75   $ 0.69   $ 0.64   $ 0.61   
 
_________________________ 
 
(1) 

  
Computed by dividing total stockholders’ equity, including net stock owned by Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan (“ESOP”), by shares outstanding at end of period. 

      
(2)   Computed by dividing dividends declared per common share by earnings per common share. 
      
(3) 

  
Computed by dividing dividends on consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity by 
weighted average common shares outstanding. 
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The following table reconciles net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis for the periods 
presented: 
 

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2008   2007   2006   2005   2004  
    (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)  

                
Net interest income   $ 47,264   $ 48,991   $ 45,818   $ 41,581   $ 37,198  
Tax-equivalent adjustment to net 

interest income   441  558  486  416   350  
Net interest income, fully tax-

equivalent basis   $ 47,705   $ 49,549   $ 46,304   $ 41,997   $ 37,548  
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    As of or for the Year Ended December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   2005   2004   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

Balance Sheet Data:                
Investment securities   $ 117,577   $ 116,129   $ 106,854   $ 125,808   $ 113,243   
Loans, gross   1,230,534   1,171,106   1,131,724   1,019,380   894,321   
Allowance for loan losses   15,230   13,533   12,167   8,842   8,367   
Total assets   1,417,727   1,379,723   1,359,279   1,244,016   1,080,393   
Deposits   1,251,594   1,175,458   1,162,741   1,041,848   880,581   
Short-term and long-term borrowings, 

including ESOP borrowings and 
capital lease obligations   23,532   66,051   67,238   83,520   96,092   

Junior subordinated debt owed to 
unconsolidated trusts   37,116   37,116   37,116   32,992   22,682   

Stock owned by ESOP participants, net 
of unearned ESOP shares   13,105   16,656   17,438   16,100   18,078   

Stockholders’ equity   78,180   71,371   63,240   59,518   54,878   
                 
Performance Ratios:                
Return on average assets (1)   0.57 % 0.96 % 0.81 % 1.02 % 1.01 %
Return on average equity (2)   8.76 % 15.56 % 12.86 % 16.05 % 14.61 %
Net interest margin on a fully tax-

equivalent basis (3)   3.52 % 3.73 % 3.81 % 3.80 % 3.94 %
Loans to deposits   98.32 % 99.63 % 97.33 % 97.84 % 100.61 %
Efficiency ratio (4)   64.69 % 58.16 % 60.23 % 57.59 % 60.31 %
                 
Asset Quality Ratios:                
Non-performing loans to total loans   2.71 % 1.01 % 0.77 % 0.79 % 0.64 %
Non-performing assets to total assets   2.57 % 0.95 % 0.66 % 0.68 % 1.13 %
Allowance for loan losses to total loans   1.24 % 1.15 % 1.08 % 0.87 % 0.93 %
Allowance for loan losses to non-

performing loans   45.62 % 114.79 % 138.77 % 110.02 % 146.23 %
Net loan charge-offs to average loans   0.54 % 0.24 % 0.17 % 0.24 % 0.14 %
                 
Capital Ratios: (5)                
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)   10.08 % 10.32 % 9.60 % 10.10 % 10.65 %
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)   11.80 % 12.11 % 11.50 % 11.67 % 11.59 %
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)   8.35 % 8.19 % 7.97 % 8.19 % 8.87 %
Average equity, including junior 

subordinated debt owed to 
unconsolidated trusts, to average 
assets   9.12 % 8.81 % 9.09 % 8.76 % 8.93 %

Average equity, excluding junior 
subordinated debt owed to 
unconsolidated trusts, to average 
assets   6.48 % 6.15 % 6.27 % 6.37 % 6.92 %

                 
Other:                
Banking facilities   5   4   4   4   4   
Full-time equivalent employees   280   283   284   273   282   
 
_________________________ 
 
(1)   Calculated by dividing net income by average assets. 
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(2) 
  

Calculated by dividing net income by the average stockholders’ equity, including stock owned by ESOP 
participants, net of unearned ESOP shares, during the year. 

      
(3) 

  

Calculated by dividing net interest income (adjusted to a fully tax-equivalent basis, adjusting for federal 
and state exemption of interest income and certain other permanent income tax differences) by average 
earning assets. 

      
(4)   Calculated by dividing operating expense by the sum of net interest income and other income. 
      
(5) 

  
Ratios presented are for Trinity on a consolidated basis.  See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Capital Resources” of this Form 10-K. 

 
Our summary consolidated financial information and other financial data contain information 

determined by methods other than in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP).  These measures include net interest margin on a fully tax-equivalent basis and 
average equity including junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts to average assets.  Management 
uses these non-GAAP measures in its analysis of the Company’s performance.  The tax-equivalent adjustment to 
net interest margin recognizes the income tax savings when comparing taxable and tax-exempt assets and 
adjusting for federal and state exemption of interest income and certain other permanent income tax differences.  
Reconciliations of net interest income on a fully tax equivalent basis to net interest income and net interest 
margin on a fully tax equivalent basis to net interest margin are contained in tables under “Net interest income.”  
Banking and financial institution regulators include junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts when 
assessing capital adequacy.  Management believes the presentation of the financial measures excluding the 
impact of these items provides useful supplemental information that is helpful in understanding our financial 
results, as they provide a method to assess management’s success in utilizing non-equity sources of capital.  
Management also believes that it is a standard practice in the banking industry to present net interest income and 
net interest margin on a fully tax equivalent basis, and accordingly believes the presentation of the financial 
measures may be useful for peer comparison purposes.  This disclosure should not be viewed as a substitute for 
the results determined to be in accordance with GAAP, nor is it necessarily comparable to non GAAP 
performance measures that may be presented by other companies. 
 
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation. 
  

This discussion is intended to focus on certain financial information regarding Trinity and the Bank and 
is written to provide the reader with a more thorough understanding of its financial statements.  The following 
discussion and analysis of Trinity’s financial position and results of operations should be read in conjunction 
with the information set forth in Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” and the 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing under Item 8 of this report. 

  
Special Note Concerning Forward-Looking Statements 
  

This document (including information incorporated by reference) contains, and future oral and written 
statements of the Company and its management may contain, forward-looking statements, within the meaning of 
such term in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, with respect to the financial condition, results 
of operations, plans, objectives, future performance and business of the Company.  Forward-looking statements, 
which may be based upon beliefs, expectations and assumptions of the Company’s management and on 
information currently available to management, are generally identifiable by the use of words such as “believe,” 
“expect,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “intend,” “estimate,” “may,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “should” or other similar 
expressions.  Additionally, all statements in this document, including forward-looking statements, speak only as 
of the date they are made, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update any statement in light of new 
information or future events. 
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The Company’s ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or strategies is inherently 
uncertain.  The factors, which could have a material adverse effect on the operations and future prospects of the 
Company and its subsidiaries are detailed in the “Risk Factors” section included under Item 1A of Part I of this 
Form 10-K.  In addition to the risk factors described in that section, there are other general factors that may 
impact any public company, including ours, which could have a material adverse effect on the operations and 
future prospects of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 

These risks and uncertainties should be considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue 
reliance should not be placed on such statements. 

 
Critical Accounting Policies 
  

Allowance for Loan Losses:  The allowance for loan losses is that amount which, in management’s 
judgment, is considered appropriate to provide for potential losses in the loan portfolio.  In analyzing the 
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, management uses a comprehensive loan grading system to determine 
risk potential in the portfolio, and considers the results of periodic internal and external loan reviews.  Historical 
loss experience factors and specific reserves for impaired loans, combined with other considerations, such as 
delinquency, non-accrual, trends on criticized and classified loans, economic conditions, concentrations of credit 
risk, and experience and abilities of lending personnel, are also considered in analyzing the adequacy of the 
allowance.  Management uses a systematic methodology, which is applied at least quarterly, to determine the 
amount of allowance for loan losses and the resultant provisions for loan losses it considers adequate to provide 
for anticipated loan losses.  This methodology includes a periodic detailed analysis of the loan portfolio, a 
systematic loan grading system and a periodic review of the summary of the allowance for loan and lease loss 
balance.  In the event that different assumptions or conditions were to prevail, and depending upon the severity of 
such changes, the possibility of materially different financial condition or results of operations is a reasonable 
likelihood. 

 
Three methods are used to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses: (1) specific 

identification, based on management’s assessment of loans in our portfolio and the probability that a charge-off 
will occur in the upcoming quarter, per SFAS 114; (2) losses probable in the loan portfolio besides those 
specifically identified, based upon a migration analysis of the percentage of loans currently performing that have 
probable losses, as set forth in SFAS 5; and (3) qualitative adjustments based on management’s assessment of 
certain risks such as delinquency trends, watch-list and classified trends, changes in concentrations, economic 
trends, industry trends, non-accrual trends, exceptions and loan-to-value guidelines, management and staff 
changes and policy or procedure changes (as set forth in SFAS 5). 

 
While management uses the best information available to make its evaluation, future adjustments to the 

allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions.  In addition, as an integral 
part of their examination process regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may 
require us to make additions to the allowance based on their evaluation of information available at the time of 
their examinations. 
 

Mortgage Servicing Right (MSR) Assets:  Servicing residential mortgage loans for third-party investors 
represents a significant business activity of the Bank.  As of December 31, 2008, mortgage loans serviced for 
others totaled $942.2 million.  The net carrying amount of the MSRs on these loans total $5.3 million as of 
December 31, 2008.  The expected and actual rates of mortgage loan prepayments are the most significant factors 
driving the value of MSRs.  Increases in mortgage loan prepayments reduce estimated future net servicing cash 
flows because the life of the underlying loan is reduced.  In determining the fair value of the MSRs, mortgage 
interest rates, which are used to determine prepayment rates and discount rates, are held constant over the 
estimated life of the portfolio.  Fair values of the MSRs are calculated on a monthly basis.  The values are based 
upon current market conditions and assumptions, which incorporate the expected life of the loans, estimated costs 
to service the loans, servicing fees to be received and other factors.  MSRs are carried at the lower of the initial 
capitalized amount, net of accumulated amortization, or fair value. 
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The fair value of the MSRs is driven primarily by the effect current mortgage interest rates have on the 
likelihood borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgages by refinancing at a lower rate.  Accordingly, higher 
interest rates decrease the likelihood of prepayment, extending the life of the MSRs and increasing the value of 
these assets.  Lower interest rates increase the likelihood of prepayment, contracting the life of the MSRs and 
decreasing the value of these assets.  This can have a significant impact on our income.  There is no certainty on 
the direction and amount of interest rate changes looking forward, and therefore, there is no certainty on the 
amount or direction of the change in valuation. 

 
 An analysis of changes in mortgage servicing rights asset follows:  
 

    2008   2007   2006  
    (In thousands)  
Balance, beginning of year  $ 8,250  $ 9,867 $ 11,009  
Servicing rights originated and capitalized  1,398  1,236 1,602  
Amortization  (2,740 ) (2,853) (2,744 )
  $ 6,908  $ 8,250 $ 9,867  
 

Below is an analysis of changes in the mortgage servicing right asset valuation allowance: 
 

    2008   2007   2006  
    (In thousands)  
Balance, beginning of year  $ (184 ) $ (752 ) $ (1,230 )
Aggregate reductions credited to operations  1,347  702  484  
Aggregate additions charged to operations  (2,800 ) (134 ) (6 )
  $ (1,637 ) $ (184 ) $ (752 )
 
 The fair values of the MSRs were $5.7 million, $8.5 million and $9.5 million on December 31, 2008, 2007 
and 2006, respectively. 
 

The primary risk characteristics of the underlying loans used to stratify the servicing assets for the 
purposes of measuring impairment are interest rate and original term. 
 

Our valuation allowance is used to recognize impairments of our MSRs.  An MSR is considered 
impaired when the market value of the MSR is below the amortized book value of the MSR.  The MSRs are 
accounted by risk tranche, with the interest rate and term of the underlying loan being the primary strata used in 
distinguishing the tranches.  Each tranche is evaluated separately for impairment. 
 

We have our MSRs analyzed for impairment on a monthly basis.  The underlying loans on all serviced 
loans are analyzed and, based upon the value of MSRs that are traded on the open market, a current market value 
for each risk tranche in our portfolio is assigned.  We then compare that market value to the current amortized 
book value for each tranche.  The change in market value (up to the amortized value of the MSR) is recorded as 
an adjustment to the MSR valuation allowance, with the offset being recorded as an addition or a reduction to 
income. 

 
The impairment is analyzed for other than temporary impairment on a quarterly basis.  The MSRs would 

be considered other than temporarily impaired if there is likelihood that the impairment would not be recovered 
before the expected maturity of the asset.  If the underlying mortgage loans have been amortized at a rate greater 
than the amortization of the MSR, the MSR may be other than temporarily impaired.  As of December 31, 2008, 
none of the MSRs were considered other than temporarily impaired. 
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The following assumptions were used to calculate the market value of the MSRs as of December 31, 2008, 
2007 and 2006: 
 
  

At December 31, 
 

   
2008 

  2007 
  2006 

 

     
Prepayment Standard Assumption (PSA) speed   390.00 %  232.00 %  193.00 %
Discount rate  10.76  10.00  10.00  
Earnings rate  3.50  5.00  5.00  
             

 
Overview.  Despite the severe world wide economic downturn experienced in 2008, the Company 

remained profitable and growing.  We remained the largest single market-share holder in our two markets (Santa 
Fe and Los Alamos Counties), as measured by the Summary of Deposits (SOD) Reports compiled by the FDIC as 
of June 30, 2008.  As a prudent measure to insure adequate coverage of potential losses in our loan portfolio, 
provision for loan losses was raised by $4.0 million (representing a 94.8% increase over provision in 2007). 
 

Recent Developments. Recent events in the U.S. and global financial markets, including the 
deterioration of the world wide credit markets, declines in real estate values and increases in mortgage 
foreclosures, have created significant challenges for financial institutions and the economy as a whole.  In 
response to the crises, on October 3, 2008, the U.S.  Congress passed, and the President signed into law, the 
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the “EESA”).  The EESA authorizes the Secretary of the U.S. 
Treasury (“Treasury”) and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) to implement various 
temporary emergency programs designed to strengthen the capital positions of financial institutions, stimulate the 
availability of credit within the U.S. financial system, bolster the economy and improve consumer confidence.  
Pursuant to the EESA, the Treasury will have the authority to, among other things, purchase up to $700 billion of 
mortgages, mortgage-backed securities and certain other financial instruments from financial institutions for the 
purpose of stabilizing and providing liquidity to the U.S. financial markets. 

 
Capital Purchase Program.  On October 14, 2008, the Treasury announced that it will 

purchase equity stakes in eligible financial institutions that wish to participate.  This program, known as the 
Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”), allocates $250 billion from the $700 billion authorized by the ESSA to the 
Treasury for the purchase of senior preferred shares from qualifying financial institutions.  Eligible institutions 
are able to sell equity interests to the Treasury in amounts equal to between 1% and 3% of the institution’s risk-
weighted assets.  In conjunction with the purchase of preferred stock, the Treasury receives warrants to purchase 
common stock from the participating institutions with an aggregate market price equal to 15% of the preferred 
investment.  Participating financial institutions are required to adopt the Treasury’s standards for executive 
compensation and corporate governance for the period during which the Treasury holds equity issued under the 
CPP, including new standards on executive compensation that were part of the America Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”), which was signed into law by President Obama on February 17, 2009.  
Since the CPP’s inception, over 400 financial institutions have announced that they have been accepted into the 
program.  Trinity submitted a non-binding application in October of 2008 and the board of directors and 
management are carefully considering whether to participate in the program. 

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program.  Also on October 14, 2008, using the 
systemic risk exception to the FDIC Improvement Act of 1991, the U.S. Treasury authorized the FDIC to provide 
a 100% guarantee of newly-issued senior unsecured debt and deposits in non-interest bearing accounts at FDIC 
insured institutions.  Initially, all eligible financial institutions were automatically covered under this program, 
known as the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program, without incurring any fees for a period of 30 days.  
Coverage under the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program after the initial 30-day period is available to insured 
financial institutions at a cost of 75 basis points per annum for senior unsecured debt and 10 basis points per 
annum for non-interest bearing deposits.  After the initial 30-day period, institutions continued to be covered 
under the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program unless they informed the FDIC that they were opting out of 
the program.  Trinity and the Bank opted to participate in both of these programs although it does not anticipate 
incurring any unsecured senior debt. 
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The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”). On February 17, 
2009, President Obama signed into law the ARRA provides for large amounts of new government spending and 
programs.  In addition, ARRA imposes extensive new executive compensation and corporate governance 
limitations on current and future participants in the CPP.  Thus, the newly enacted compensation-related 
limitations would be applicable to the Company should it chose to participate in the CPP and, to the extent 
Treasury may implement these or additional restrictions unilaterally, the Company could be required to comply 
with these provisions.  The new restrictions include additional limits on executive compensation such as 
prohibiting the payment or accrual of any bonus, retention award or incentive compensation to our five most 
highly compensated employees except for the payment of long-term restricted stock; prohibiting any 
compensation plan that would encourage the manipulation of earnings; and extending the clawback required by 
EESA to the top 20 most highly compensated employees (in addition to our senior executive officers).  ARRA 
also requires compliance with new corporate governance standards including an annual “say on pay” shareholder 
vote, the adoption of policies regarding excessive or luxury expenditures, and a certification by our Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer that we have complied with the standards in the ARRA.  These 
new limits would remain in place until the Company has redeemed the CPP Preferred Stock sold to Treasury, 
which is now permitted under ARRA without penalty and without the need to raise new capital, subject to 
Treasury’s consultation with the Company’s federal regulators. 

The full impact of ARRA is not yet certain as it calls for additional regulatory action. The Company will 
continue to monitor the effect of the ARRA, potential consequence of participation in CPP and the anticipated 
regulations as part of its determination of whether to participate.  The Company will make a determination based 
upon the facts known and the best interests of the Company, the shareholders and the community. 

Financial Stability Plan. On February 10, 2009, Treasury outlined a comprehensive 
plan consisting of multiple components designed to help restore stability to the U.S. financial system.  As 
outlined by Treasury, this plan, referred to as the Financial Stability Plan, will include: the Capital Assistance 
Program pursuant to which certain financial institutions will be permitted to sell convertible preferred stock to 
Treasury; a public-private investment fund designed to provide greater means for financial institutions to cleanse 
their balance sheets of non-performing legacy assets; a consumer and business lending initiative of up to 
$1 trillion; a housing support and foreclosure prevention program; and a small business and community lending 
initiative.  As only a general outline of the Financial Stability Plan has been disclosed thus far, it is difficult to 
predict at this point what effect, if any, such programs will have on the U.S. financial system generally or 
Trinity’s business specifically. 

It is not clear at this time what impact the ESSA, the ARRA or the Financial Stability Plan, the programs 
initiated there under to date, other liquidity and funding initiatives of the Federal Reserve and other agencies, and 
any additional programs that may be initiated in the future will have on the Company’s future financial condition 
and results of operations.   
 
 
Income Statement Analysis 
  

Net Income-General. Trinity’s net income for the year ended December 31, 2008, totaled $8.0 million, 
or $1.23 diluted earnings per share, compared to $13.3 million, or $2.03 diluted earnings per share, for 2007, a 
decrease of $5.3 million in net income and a decrease of $0.80 in diluted earnings per share.  This decrease in net 
income was primarily due to an increase in the provision for loan losses expense of $4.0 million and an increase 
in non-interest expense of $3.4 million.  The provision for loan losses increased pursuant to management’s loan 
loss reserve analysis, as a prudent measure to insure that possible losses inherent in the bank’s loan portfolio are 
adequately covered.  The increase in non-interest expense was primarily due to an increase in the valuation 
allowance for mortgage servicing rights, caused by a lower interest rate environment.  In addition, net interest 
income decreased $1.7 million and non-interest income increased $1.0 million.  The decrease in net interest 
income was mainly due to a decrease in interest income that exceeded the decrease of interest expense, as rates on 
interest-earning assets adjusted to the lower interest rate environment more rapidly than the costs on interest-
bearing liabilities.  The increase in non-interest income was mainly due to an increase in gains in sales of 
securities and loans.  Income tax expenses decreased $2.8 million due to lower pre-tax income, which was 
partially offset by differences in tax estimates between the two periods. 
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The profitability of the Company’s operations depends primarily on its net interest income, which is the 
difference between total interest earned on interest-earning assets and total interest paid on interest-bearing 
liabilities.  The Company’s net income is affected by its provision for loan losses as well as other income and other 
expenses.  The provision for loan losses reflects the amount management believes to be adequate to cover probable 
credit losses in the loan portfolio.  Non-interest income or other income consists of mortgage loan servicing fees, 
trust fees, loan and other fees, service charges on deposits, gain on sale of loans, gain on sale of securities, title 
insurance premiums and other operating income.  Other expenses include salaries and employee benefits, occupancy 
expenses, data processing expenses, marketing, amortization and valuation of mortgage servicing rights, 
amortization and valuation of other intangible assets, supplies expense, loss on other real estate owned, postage, 
bankcard and ATM network fees, legal, professional and accounting fees, FDIC insurance premiums and other 
expenses. 
  

The amount of net interest income is affected by changes in the volume and mix of interest-earning assets, 
the level of interest rates earned on those assets, the volume and mix of interest-bearing liabilities, and the level of 
interest rates paid on those interest-bearing liabilities.  The provision for loan losses is dependent on changes in the 
loan portfolio and management’s assessment of the collectability of the loan portfolio, as well as economic and 
market conditions.  Other income and other expenses are impacted by growth of operations and growth in the 
number of accounts through both acquisitions and core banking business growth.  Growth in operations affects other 
expenses as a result of additional employees, branch facilities and promotional marketing expenses.  Growth in the 
number of accounts affects other income including service fees as well as other expenses such as computer services, 
supplies, postage, telecommunications and other miscellaneous expenses. 
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  Net Interest Income. The following tables present, for the periods indicated, the total dollar amount of 
interest income from average interest earning assets and the resultant yields, as well as the interest expense on 
average interest bearing liabilities, and the resultant costs, expressed both in dollars and rates: 
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2008  2007  2006  

  
Average 
Balance  Interest

Yield/
Rate  

Average
Balance Interest

Yield/
Rate  

Average 
Balance    Interest

Yield/
Rate  

  (Dollars in thousands)  
Interest-earning Assets:        
Loans(1)  $ 1,201,093  $ 78,713 6.55 % $ 1,166,275 $ 89,059 7.64 % $ 1,091,563   $ 79,525 7.29 %
Taxable investment securities   96,294  2,922 3.03  101,800 4,917 4.83   87,795    3,703 4.22  
Investment securities exempt from 

federal income taxes (2)   14,842  1,185 7.98  21,511 1,548 7.20   18,808    1,315 6.99  
Federal funds sold   11,930  169 1.42  2,534 133 5.25   249    33 13.25  
Other interest-bearing deposits   29,794  565 1.90  36,120 1,798 4.98   17,080    851 4.98  
Investment in unconsolidated trust 

subsidiaries   1,116  87 7.80  1,116 92 8.24   1,083    93 8.59  
Total interest-earning assets   1,355,069   83,641 6.17   1,329,356 97,547 7.34   1,216,578    85,520 7.03  
Non-interest-earning assets   53,453   63,587   62,410    
Total assets  $ 1,408,522   $ 1,392,943  $ 1,278,988    

          
Interest-bearing Liabilities:          
Deposits:          
NOW deposits  $ 96,336  $ 1,157 1.20 % $ 95,123 $ 2,372 2.49 % $ 87,280   $ 1,820 2.09 %
Money market deposits   196,058  2,474 1.26  197,260 4,643 2.35   163,190    3,121 1.91  
Savings deposits   290,164  5,051 1.74  257,478 6,888 2.68   244,039    5,652 2.32  
Time deposits over $100,000 
   317,825  13,651 4.30  337,463 17,480 5.18   302,696    14,061 4.65  
Time deposits under $100,000 
   213,424  8,554 4.01  216,393 10,763 4.97   185,392    8,003 4.32  
Short-term borrowings, including 

ESOP borrowings under 1 year   21,792  707 3.24  18,722 690 3.69   16,822    721 4.29  
Long-term borrowings, including 

ESOP borrowings over 1 year   23,549  1,154 4.90  45,441 1,802 3.97   65,365    2,559 3.91  
Long-term capital lease obligations   2,211  268 12.12  2,211 293 13.25   —    —  —  
Junior subordinated debt owed to 

unconsolidated trusts   37,116  2,920 7.87  37,116 3,067 8.26   36,031    3,279 9.10  
Total interest-bearing liabilities   1,198,475  35,936 3.00  1,207,207 47,998 3.98   1,100,815    39,216 3.56  
Demand deposits--non-interest-bearing   44,968   40,314   39,293    
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities   73,776   59,750   58,677    
Stockholders' equity, including stock 

owned by ESOP   91,303   85,672   80,203    
Total liabilities and stockholders equity  $ 1,408,522   $ 1,392,943  $ 1,278,988    

Net interest income on a fully tax-
equivalent basis/interest rate 
Spread(3)    $ 47,705 3.17 % $ 49,549 3.36 %    $ 46,304 3.47 %

Net interest margin on a fully tax 
equivalent basis(4)    3.52 % 3.73 %    3.81 %

Net interest margin(4)    3.49 % 3.69 %    3.77 %

 
_________________________ 
 
(1) Average loans include non-accrual loans of $26.5 million, $9.9 million and $8.2 million for 2008, 2007 

and 2006.  Interest income includes loan origination fees of $2.6 million, $3.4 million and $3.4 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. 
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(2) Non-taxable investment income is presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis, adjusting for federal and 
state exemption of interest income and certain other permanent income tax differences. 

 
(3) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the average yield on interest-earning assets and the 

average cost of interest-bearing liabilities and is presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis. 
  
(4) Net interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets. 

 
In 2008, net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis decreased $1.8 million (3.7%) to $47.7 

million from $49.5 million in 2007.  This decrease resulted from a decrease in interest income on a fully tax-
equivalent basis of $13.9 million (14.3%), which was partially offset by a decrease in interest expense of $12.1 
million (25.1%).  The decrease in interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis was primarily due to a decrease 
on the yield on interest-earning assets of 117 basis points, which accounted for a $15.6 million decrease in 
interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis.  This was partially offset by an increase in average interest-
earning assets of $25.7 million (1.9%), which accounted for a $1.7 million increase in interest income on a fully 
tax-equivalent basis.  Interest expense decreased primarily due to a decrease in the cost of interest-bearing 
liabilities of 98 basis points, which accounted for a decrease of $10.9 million in interest expense.  In addition, 
average interest-bearing liabilities decreased $8.7 million (0.7%), accounting for a decrease of $1.2 million in 
interest expense.  The net interest margin expressed in a fully tax-equivalent basis decreased 21 basis points to 
3.52% in 2008 from 3.73% in 2007. 

 
In 2007, net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis increased $3.2 million (7.0%) to $49.5 

million from $46.3 million in 2006.  This increase resulted from an increase in interest income on a fully tax-
equivalent basis of $12.0 million (14.1%), which was partially offset by an increase in interest expense of $8.8 
million (22.4%).  The increase in interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis was primarily due to an increase 
in average interest-earning assets of $112.8 million (9.3%), which accounted for $7.5 million of the increase in 
interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis.  The yield on interest-earning assets also increased 31 basis 
points, which accounted for $4.5 million of the increase.  Interest expense increased primarily due to an increase 
in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities of 42 basis points, which accounted for $4.7 million of the increase.  
Average interest-bearing liabilities also increased by $106.4 million (9.7%), which accounted for $4.1 million of 
the increase.  The net interest margin expressed in a fully tax-equivalent basis decreased 8 basis points to 3.73% 
in 2007 from 3.81% in 2006. 
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Volume, Mix and Rate Analysis of Net Interest Income. The following table presents the extent to 
which changes in volume, changes in interest rates, and changes in the interest rates times the changes in volume 
of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected our interest income and interest expense 
during the periods indicated.  Information is provided on changes in each category due to (i) changes attributable 
to changes in volume (change in volume times the prior period interest rate) and (ii) changes attributable to 
changes in interest rate (changes in rate times the prior period volume).  Changes attributable to the combined 
impact of volume and rate have been allocated proportionally to the changes due to volume and the changes due 
to rate. 
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2008 Compared to 2007   2007 Compared to 2006  

  
Change Due
to Volume   

Change Due
to Rate   

Total 
Change   

Change Due 
to Volume    

Change Due 
to Rate    

Total 
Change  

  (In thousands)  
Interest-earning Assets:              
Loans   $ 2,593   $  (12,939 )  $  (10,346 )  $ 5,597   $ 3,937   $ 9,534  
Taxable investment securities   (253 )  (1,742 )  (1,995 )  636    578   1,214  
Investment securities exempt 

from federal income taxes(1)   (519 )  156   (363 )  194    39   233  
Federal funds sold    192   (156 )  36   131   (31 )  100  
Other interest bearing deposits   (272 )  (961 )  (1,233 )  948   (1 )  947  
Investment in unconsolidated 

trust subsidiaries    —   (5 )  (5 )  3   (4 )  (1 )
Total increase (decrease) in 

interest income   $ 1,741   $  (15,647 )  $  (13,906 )  $ 7,509   $ 4,518   $ 12,027  
Interest-bearing Liabilities:                
Now deposits   $ 30   $  (1,245 )  $  (1,215 )  $ 174   $ 378   $ 552  
Money market deposits   (28 )  (2,141 )  (2,169 )  723    799   1,522  
Savings deposits    793   (2,630 )  (1,837 )  324    912   1,236  
Time deposits over $100,000  (973 )  (2,856 )  (3,829 )   1,708    1,711   3,419  
Time deposits under $100,000  (146 )  (2,063 )  (2,209 )  1,445    1,315   2,760  
Short-term borrowings, 

including ESOP borrowings 
under 1 year    106   (89 )  17   76   (107 )  (31 )

Long-term borrowings, 
including ESOP borrowings 
under 1 year   (1,006 )  358   (648 )  (790 )   33   (757 )

Long-term capital lease 
obligations    —   (25 )  (25 )  293    —   293  

Junior subordinated debt owed 
to unconsolidated trusts    —   (147 )  (147 )  97   (309 )  (212 )

Total increase (decrease) in 
interest expense   $  (1,224 )  $  (10,838 )  $  (12,062 )  $ 4,050   $ 4,732   $ 8,782  

Increase (decrease) in net 
interest income   $ 2,965   $  (4,809 )  $  (1,844 )  $ 3,459   $  (214 )  $ 3,245  

 
(1) Non-taxable investment income is presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis, adjusting for federal and 

state exemption of interest income and certain other permanent income tax differences. 
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Other Income. Changes in other income between 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:  
 

   Year Ended December 31,      Year Ended December 31,      

   2008    2007   
Net  

difference   2007   2006    
Net  

difference  
   (In thousands)  

Other income:                  
Mortgage loan servicing fees   $ 2,467   $ 2,468   $  (1 )  $ 2,468   $ 2,641   $  (173 )
Trust fees     1,092   981   111   981    883     98  
Loan and other fees     2,605   2,409   196   2,409    2,133     276  
Service charges on deposits     1,720   1,714   6   1,714    1,561     153  
Gain on sale of loans     2,027   1,658   369   1,658    1,587     71  
Gain on sale of securities     555   62   493   62    —     62  
Title insurance premiums     815   788   27   788    1,094    (306 )
Other operating income     263   428   (165 )  428    388     40  
   $ 11,544   $ 10,508   $ 1,036   $ 10,508   $ 10,287   $ 221  
 

In 2008, other income increased $1.0 million (9.9%) to $11.5 million from $10.5 million in 2007.  Gain 
on sale of securities increased $493 mainly due to an increase in the volume of securities sold in 2008 compared 
to 2007.  The increased volume of security sales was based upon interest rate risk and liquidity management 
decisions.  Gain on sale of loans increased $369 thousand mainly due to an increase in the price on loans sold in 
2008 compared to 2007.  Loan and other fees increased $196 thousand mainly due to an increase in fees collected 
from ATM operations due largely to more foreign (non-Bank customer) transactions.  Other operating income 
decreased $165 thousand mainly due to decrease of appraisal fee income due to the sale of TCC Appraisals in the 
second quarter of 2008. 

 
In 2007, other income increased $221 thousand (2.1%) to $10.5 million from $10.3 million in 2006.  

Loan and other fees increased $276 thousand mainly due to an increase in fees collected from ATM operations 
due largely to more foreign (non-Bank customer) transactions on our ATM machines.  Title insurance premiums 
decreased $306 thousand (28.0%) mainly due to a lower number of policies written due to a general slow down in 
the real estate market.  Mortgage loan servicing fees decreased $173 thousand (6.6%) mainly due to a decrease in 
fees associated with letters of credit.  Service charges on deposits increased $153 thousand (9.8%) mainly due to 
an increase in overdraft fees collected, due to an increase of 8.0% in the overdraft fee during 2007. 
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Other Expenses. Changes in other expenses between 2008 and 2007 and between 2007 and 2006 are as 
follows: 
 

    Year Ended December 31,  Year Ended December 31,     

    2008   2007 
Net 

difference 2007   2006    
Net 

difference

    (In thousands) 
Other expenses:                
Salaries and employee benefits    $ 18,870   $ 18,516   $ 354   $ 18,516   $ 17,468   $ 1,048  
Occupancy     3,310   3,558   (248 )  3,558    3,450    108  
Data processing    2,295   1,855   440   1,855    1,921   (66 )
Marketing    2,056   1,971   85   1,971    1,698    273  
Amortization and valuation of mortgage 

servicing rights    4,193   2,285   1,908   2,285    2,266    19  
Amortization and valuation of other 

intangible assets    44    —   44    —    —    —  
Supplies    440   785   (345 )  785    657    128  
Loss on sale of other real estate owned    132   (120 )  252   (120 )   215   (335 )
Postage    623   642   (19 )  642    572    70  
Bankcard and ATM network fees    1,241   1,240    1   1,240    1,071    169  
Legal, professional and accounting fees    1,538   1,338   200   1,338    1,258    80  
FDIC insurance premiums    682   136   546   136    130   6  
Other    2,619   2,399   220   2,399    3,088   (689 )
   $ 38,043   $ 34,605   $ 3,438   $ 34,605   $ 33,794   $ 811  
 

Other expenses increased $3.4 million (9.9%) to $38.0 million in 2008 from $34.6 million in 2007.  
Amortization and valuation of mortgage servicing rights increased $1.9 million largely due to an increase in the 
valuation allowance for mortgage servicing rights, caused by a lower interest rate environment.  FDIC insurance 
premiums increased $546 thousand mainly due to an increase in the rates charged by the FDIC.  This increase 
was experienced industry-wide and is expected to continue into 2009.  Data processing expenses increased $440 
thousand mainly due to costs associated with software maintenance contracts.  Salaries and employee benefits 
expense increased $354 thousand primarily due to normal merit increases in salaries, which was partially offset 
by a decrease in bonuses paid to employees for 2008, as a direct result of the Company’s decrease in net income.  
Supplies expense decreased $345 thousand primarily due to one-time costs of supplies and stationary associated 
with a revision to the bank’s logo and related marketing initiatives in 2007 which were not repeated in 2008. 

 
Other expenses increased $811 thousand (2.4%) to $34.6 million in 2007 from $33.8 million in 2006.  

Salaries and employee benefits increased $1.0 million (6.0%) largely due to normal merit increases in salaries as 
well as an increase in the bonuses paid to employees (based directly on increases in net income).  Other expenses 
decreased $689 thousand mainly due to a decrease in losses associated with check and credit card fraud.  (Gain) 
loss on sale of other real estate owned decreased $335 thousand (155.8%) mainly due to a drop in the sale activity 
in other real estate owned between the two periods, as well as a recovery on previously recorded losses on the 
sale of other real estate owned where the financing was made at below-market rates. 

  
Income Taxes. In 2008, income tax expense decreased by $2.8 million (37.8%) from the previous year 

to a total of $4.6 million from $7.4 million, although the effective tax rate increased from 35.6% in 2007 to 
36.4% in 2008.  The increase in the effective tax rate was mainly attributable to the lower rate of accrual in 2007 
due to an immaterial over-accrual of income taxes in 2006.  This estimate was not adjusted in 2008. 

 
In 2007, income tax expense increased by $537 thousand (7.9%) from the previous year to a total of $7.4 

million from $6.8 million, although the effective tax rate decreased from 39.8% in 2006 to 35.6% in 2007.  The 
decrease was mainly attributable to a change in the estimate of current income tax expense, due to an immaterial 
over-accrual of income taxes in the prior year. 
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Balance Sheet Analysis 
  

Balance Sheet-General. Total assets at December 31, 2008 were $1.4 billion, an increase in $38.0 
million (2.8%) from December 31, 2007.  Net loans increased $57.7 million (5.0%) during 2008, and cash and 
cash equivalents decreased $20.3 million (44.5%).  Total investments increased $1.4 million (1.2%).  During the 
same period, total liabilities increased $34.7 million (2.7%), remaining at $1.3 billion.  The increase in total 
liabilities was primarily due to an increase in total deposits of $76.1 million (6.5%), which was partially offset by 
a decrease in long- and short-term borrowings of $40.0 million (63.0%).  Stockholders’ equity (including stock 
owned by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan) increased $3.3 million (3.7%) to $91.3 million on December 31, 
2008 compared to $88.0 million on December 31, 2007. 

 
Investment Securities. The primary purposes of the investment portfolio are to provide a source of 

earnings for the purpose of managing liquidity, to provide collateral to pledge against public deposits and to 
control interest rate risk.  In managing the portfolio, the Company seeks to obtain the objectives of safety of 
principal, liquidity, diversification and maximized return on funds.  For an additional discussion with respect to 
these matters, see “Sources of Funds” and “Liquidity” under Item 7 and “Asset Liability Management” under 
Item 7A of this Form 10-K.  The $1 thousand in available for sale equity securities represented stock in the 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), which was the extent of our exposure to this company in the 
periods presented.  We had no positions in the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) during any 
of the periods presented. 

 
The following tables set forth the amortized cost and fair value of our securities by accounting 

classification category and by type of security as indicated: 
 
  At December 31, 
    2008  2007  2006  
  

  
Amortized 

Cost   Fair Value   
Amortized 

Cost   Fair Value   
Amortized 

Cost   Fair Value  
    (In thousands)  
Securities Available for 

Sale:                
Government sponsored 

agencies   $ 87,890   $ 90,187   $ 93,081   $ 93,201   $ 73,025   $ 72,787  
States and political 

subdivisions   12,771   12,820   6,391   6,385   15,190   15,157  
Equity securities   1   —   1   4   1   6  

Total securities 
available for sale   $ 100,662   $ 103,007   $ 99,473   $ 99,590   $ 88,216   $ 87,950  

                     
Securities Held to 

Maturity:                    
States and political 

subdivisions   $ 8,927   $ 9,780   $ 9,159   $ 9,159   $ 10,968  $ 10,961  
Total securities held 

to maturity   $ 8,927   $ 9,780   $ 9,159   $ 9,159   $ 10,968   $ 10,961  
                     
Other securities:                    

Non-marketable equity 
securities (including 
FRB and FHLB 
stock)   $ 4,527   $ 4,527   $ 6,264   $ 6,264   $ 6,820   $ 6,820  

Investment in 
unconsolidated trusts   1,116   1,116   1,116   1,116   1,116   1,116  
Total other 

securities   $ 5,643   $ 5,643   $ 7,380   $ 7,380   $ 7,936   $ 7,936  
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Government sponsored agencies securities generally consist of fixed rate securities with maturities from 
one year to three years.  States and political subdivisions investment securities consist of investment grade and 
local non-rated issues with maturities from six months to twenty-six years. 

  
Securities held from one issuer, Los Alamos Retirement Center, Inc., had a book value in excess of 10% 

of Trinity’s stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2008, with securities held by us totaling $8.9 million.  Los 
Alamos Retirement Center, Inc. manages a nursing home and an assisted living facility in Los Alamos, New 
Mexico. 

  
 The following table sets forth certain information regarding contractual maturities and the weighted 
average yields of our securities portfolio as of December 31, 2008: 
 
  

  
Due in One Year or 

Less   

Due after One Year 
through 

Five Years   

Due after Five Years 
through 

Ten Years   

Due after Ten Years or 
no 

stated Maturity   
  

  Balance   

Weighted 
Average 

Yield   Balance   

Weighted
Average 

Yield   Balance   

Weighted
Average 

Yield   Balance   

Weighted
Average 

Yield   
    (Dollars in thousands)   
Securities 

Available for 
Sale:                         
Government 

sponsored 
agencies   $ 10,237   2.56 % $ 77,653  3.04 % —   —   —   —   

States and 
political 
subdivision (1)   3,085  3.32 % 4,734   4.07 % $ 3,348   5.93 % $ 1,604   6.54 %

Equity securities   —  — — — — —  1   8.51 %
Total   $ 13,322      $ 82,387      $ 3,348      $ 1,605      

Securities Held to 
Maturity:                              
States and 

political 
subdivision (1)    —   —   —   —  —   —   $ 8,927   9.47 %

Total    —        —      —      $ 8,927      
Other securities:                             

Non-marketable 
Equity 
Securities 
(including FRB 
and FHLB 
stock) (2)   $ 100   0.00 %  —   —  —   —   $ 4,427   1.01 %

Investment in 
Unconsolidated 
trusts   —   —   —   —   —   —   1,116   7.64  

Total   $ 100        —      —      $ 5,543      
 
_________________________ 
 
(1) Yield is reflected on a fully tax-equivalent basis, adjusting for federal and state exemption of interest income 

and certain other permanent income tax differences. 
 
(2) Non-marketable Equity Securities includes a $100 thousand investment in the New Mexico Community 

Development Loan Fund, a tax-exempt non-profit corporation, which the Company made at 0.00% interest 
as a donation of interest to this corporation. 

 



 
41 

 

 
Loan Portfolio. The following tables set forth the composition of the loan portfolio: 

 
    At December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   2005   2004   
    Amount   Percent   Amount  Percent   Amount  Percent   Amount   Percent   Amount  Percent   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

Commercial   $ 116,588 9.46 % $ 118,670 10.12 %$ 127,950 11.29 %$ 93,579   9.16 % $ 92,736  10.35 %
Commercial 

real estate   412,184 33.43   382,909 32.65   388,149 34.23   379,884   37.19   346,454  38.65   
Residential 

real estate   388,776 31.54   360,934 30.77   324,051 28.58   313,693   30.71   282,380  31.50   
Construction 

real estate   254,444 20.64   249,284 21.26   235,534 20.78   178,068   17.43   121,769  13.59   
Installment 

and other   60,746 4.93   61,028 5.20   58,045 5.12   56,309   5.51   52,984  5.91   
Total loans   1,232,738 100.00   1,172,825 100.00   1,133,729 100.00   1,021,533   100.00   896,323  100.00   
Unearned 

income   (2,204 )   (1,719 )   (2,005 )   (2,153 )     (2,002 )    
Gross loans   1,230,534   1,171,106   1,131,724   1,019,380       894,321     
Allowance 

for loan 
losses   (15,230 )   (13,533 )   (12,167 )   (8,842 )     (8,367 )    

Net loans   $ 1,215,304   $ 1,157,573   $1,119,557   $1,010,538       $ 885,954     
 

Net loans increased $57.7 million (5.0%) from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008, remaining at 
$1.2 billion.  The increase was due primarily to growth in our commercial real estate and residential real estate 
portfolios, with smaller growth experienced in our construction real estate loans.  Growth in these areas was 
partially offset by declines in our commercial non-real estate and installment and other loan portfolios.  We 
expect lower loan growth than previous years in all loan categories as New Mexico’s economy remains slow.  
However, the Company will continue to make as many loans as possible to credit-worthy borrowers in the current 
environment. 
 

Loan Maturities. The following table sets forth the maturity or repricing information for commercial 
and construction real estate loans outstanding at December 31, 2008: 
 

    Due in One Year Or Less   
Due after One Year 
Through Five Years   Due after Five Years      

    Fixed Rate   
Floating 

Rate   Fixed Rate   
Floating 

Rate   Fixed Rate   
Floating 

Rate   Total  
    (In thousands)  

Commercial 
loans and 
construction 
real estate 
loans   $ 69,647   $ 286,016   $ 8,921  $ 5,013   $ 1,141   294   $ 371,032
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Asset Quality. The following table sets forth the amounts of non-performing loans and non-performing 
assets at the dates indicated: 
 

    At December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   2005   2004   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

Non-accruing loans   $ 33,387   $ 11,789   $ 8,767   $ 8,037   $ 5,714   
Loans 90 days or more past due, still 

accruing interest   —   —   1   —   8   
Total non-performing loans   $ 33,387   $ 11,789   $ 8,768   $ 8,037   $ 5,722   
Other real estate owned   2,354   1,358   165   375   6,438   
Other repossessed assets   692   4   60   27   64   
Total non-performing assets   $ 36,433   $ 13,151   $ 8,993   $ 8,439   $ 12,224   
                   
Total non-performing loans to total 

loans   2.71 % 1.01 % 0.77 % 0.79 % 0.64 %
Allowance for loan losses to non-

performing loans   45.62 % 114.79 % 138.77 % 110.02 % 146.23 %
Total non-performing assets to total 

assets   2.57 % 0.95 % 0.66 % 0.68 % 1.13 %
 
 The following table presents data related to non-performing loans by dollar amount and category at 
December 31, 2008: 
 

    
Commercial 

loans    
Commercial real 

estate loans  
Residential real 

estate loans  
Construction real 

estate loans    

Installment 
& other 

loans  
Total
loans  

Dollar Range    
Number of 
Borrowers    Amount    

Number of
Borrowers Amount  

Number of
Borrowers Amount  

Number of
Borrowers Amount    Amount  Amount  

    (Dollars in thousands)  
$5.0 million 

or more         —  $ —    1 $ 16,000   — $ —   — $ —   $ —  $ 16,000  
$3.0 million 

to $4.9 
million         —    —    —  —   —   —   —   —     —   —  

$1.5 million 
to $2.9 
million         1   2,151    —  —   —   —   —   —     —  2,151  

Under $1.5 
million         13   2,187    8 2,444  40  4,948  16  5,263     394  15,236  

Total    14  $ 4,338    9 $ 18,444  40 $ 4,948  16 $ 5,263   $ 394  $ 33,387  

                     
Percentage of 

individual 
loan 
category          3.72 %   4.47 %  1.27 %  2.07 %   0.65 % 2.71 %
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 The following table presents data related to non-performing loans by dollar amount and category at 
December 31, 2007: 
 

    
Commercial 

loans    
Commercial real 

estate loans  
Residential real 

estate loans  
Construction real 

estate loans    

Installment 
& other 

loans  
Total
loans  

Dollar Range    
Number of 
Borrowers    Amount    

Number of
Borrowers Amount  

Number of
Borrowers Amount  

Number of
Borrowers Amount    Amount  Amount  

    (Dollars in thousands)  
$5.0 million 

or more         —  $ —    — $ —   — $ —   — $ —   $ —  $ —  
$3.0 million 

to $4.9 
million         1   3,605    —  —   —   —   —   —     —  3,605  

$1.5 million 
to $2.9 
million         —    —    —  —   —   —   —   —     —   —  

Under $1.5 
million         11   2,627    5 1,059  32  2,816  3  1,584     98  8,184  

Total    12  $ 6,232    5 $ 1,059  32 $ 2,816  3 $ 1,584   $ 98  $ 11,789  

                     
Percentage of 

individual 
loan 
category          5.25 %   0.28 %  0.78 %  0.64 %   0.16 % 1.01 %

 
Non-performing Loans. Non-performing loans include (i) loans accounted for on a non-accrual basis, 

(ii) accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more as to interest and principal and (iii) troubled debt 
restructurings.  Management reviews the loan portfolio for problem loans on an ongoing basis.  During the 
ordinary course of business, management may become aware of borrowers who may not be able to meet the 
contractual requirements of loan agreements.  Such loans are placed under close supervision with consideration 
given to placing the loan on a non-accrual status, increasing the allowance for loan losses, and (if appropriate) 
partial or full charge-off.  After a loan is placed on non-accrual status, any interest previously accrued, but not yet 
collected, is reversed against current income.  When payments are received on non-accrual loans, such payments 
will be applied to principal and any interest portion included in the payments are not included in income, but 
rather are applied to the principal balance of the loan.  Loans will not be placed back on accrual status unless all 
back interest and principal payments are made.  If interest on non-accrual loans had been accrued, such income 
would have amounted to $2.3 million and $882 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  None of these amounts were included in interest income during these periods.  Our policy is to 
place loans 90 days past due on non-accrual status.  An exception is made when management believes the loan 
will become current and there is documented evidence of the borrower’s ability to repay.  Non-accrual loans are 
further classified as impaired when underlying collateral is not sufficient to cover the loan balance and it is 
probable that we will not fully collect all principal and interest.  

 
Non-performing assets also consist of other repossessed assets and other real estate owned (“OREO”).  

OREO represents properties acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings and are recorded at the fair value 
less the estimated cost of disposal.  OREO is evaluated regularly to ensure that the recorded amount is supported 
by its current fair value.  Valuation allowances to reduce the carrying amount to fair value less estimated costs of 
disposal are recorded as necessary.  Revenues and expenses from the operations of OREO and changes in the 
valuation are included in other income and other expenses on the income statement. 
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At December 31, 2008, total non-performing assets increased $23.3 million to $36.4 million from $13.2 
million at December 31, 2007 mainly due to an increase in non-accruing loans of $21.6 million and an increase in 
other real estate owned of $996 thousand.  Non-performing loans increased in large part from the placement of a 
single large commercial real estate relationship into non-accrual status in May 2008.  The collateral on the 
commercial real estate relationship has been recently appraised at $32.0 million, with a total loan balance of $20.5 
million (with $16.0 million included in the preceding table, and $4.5 million due to another participating lender).  As 
of December 31, 2008, no specific reserve had been allocated to this relationship, as management believes the 
collateral is currently sufficient to cover the outstanding loans.  In addition to this $16.0 million commercial real 
estate relationship, the remaining increases in non-accrual loans were concentrated in the areas of construction loans 
($3.7 million increase) and residential real estate loans ($2.1 million increase).  There were no specifically identified 
losses in the non-accrual loans that have not already been charged-off.  As of December 31, 2008, all collateral-
dependent impaired loans have been charged down to the collateral value, less selling costs. 

 
The following table presents an analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the periods presented: 
 

    Year Ended December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   2005   2004   
    (Dollars in thousands)   
Balance at beginning of year   $ 13,533   $ 12,167   $ 8,842   $ 8,367   $ 7,368   
Provision for loan losses   8,183   4,200   5,172   2,850   2,100   
Charge-offs:                

Commercial   4,021   1,766   1,846   1,912   640   
Commercial real estate   104   246   —   —   —   
Residential real estate   1,219   363   113   125   188   
Construction real estate   585   —   —   —   —   
Installment and other   1,087   771   369   500   459   

Total charge-offs   7,016   3,146   2,328   2,537   1,287   
Recoveries:                

Commercial   263   84   42   48   108   
Commercial real estate   —   —   —   —   —   
Residential real estate   16   56   1   —   1   
Construction real estate   42   64   332   55   23   
Installment and other   209   108   106   59   54   

Total recoveries   530   312   481   162   186   
Net charge-offs   6,486   2,834   1,847   2,375   1,101   
Balance at end of year   $ 15,230   $ 13,533   $ 12,167   $ 8,842   $ 8,367   
                   
Gross loans at end of year   $ 1,230,534   $ 1,171,106   $ 1,131,724   $ 1,019,380   $ 894,321   
Ratio of allowance to total loans   1.24 % 1.15 % 1.08 % 0.87 % 0.93 %
Ratio of net charge-offs to 

average loans   0.54 % 0.24 % 0.17 % 0.24 % 0.14 %
 

Net charge-offs for 2008 totaled $6.5 million, an increase of $3.7 million (128.9%) from 2007.  The 
increase in net charge-offs was mainly due to an increase in charge-offs in commercial non-real estate loans of 
$2.3 million (127.7%) and an increase in charge-offs on residential real estate loans of $856 thousand (235.8%).  
The increase in commercial non-real estate charge-offs was mainly due to a single large commercial loan that was 
charged-off down to its collateral value.  The increase in charge-offs on residential real estate loans was mainly 
due to an increase in charge-offs associated with home equity loans.  The provision for loan losses increased $4.0 
million (94.8%) based upon management’s estimate of the adequacy of the reserve for loan losses. 
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The following table sets forth the allocation of the allowance for loan losses for the years presented and 
the percentage of loans in each category to total loans.  An allocation for a loan classification is only for internal 
analysis of the adequacy of the allowance and is not an indication of expected or anticipated losses: 
 

    At December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   2005   2004   
    Amount   Percent   Amount   Percent   Amount   Percent   Amount   Percent   Amount   Percent   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

Commercial   $ 2,200   9.46 % $ 4,535  10.12 % $ 4,191  11.29 % $ 2,939  9.16 % $ 3,503  10.35 %
Commercial 

and 
residential 
real estate   5,215   64.97   4,293  63.42   4,684  62.81   3,092  67.90   2,513   70.15   

Construction 
real estate   6,512   20.64   3,691  21.26   2,364  20.78   1,996  17.43   981   13.59   

Installment and 
other   1,303   4.93   1,014  5.20   928  5.12   815  5.51   1,370   5.91   
Total   $ 15,230   100.00 % $ 13,533  100.00 % $ 12,167  100.00 % $ 8,842  100.00 % $ 8,367   100.00 %

 
The allowance for loan losses increased $1.7 million (12.5%) from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 

2008.  This was mainly due to an increase in the allowance allocated to construction loans, and was largely offset by 
a decrease in the allocation for commercial non-real estate loans.  The allocation for construction loans increased 
$2.8 million (76.4%) from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008, mainly due to an increase in the allocation in 
historical loss experience (based on migration analysis) of $2.8 million.  The allocation for commercial non-real 
estate loans decreased by $2.3 million (51.5%), mainly due to a decrease in the allocation for specifically identified 
loans.  This decrease was largely due to the charging off of a single large commercial loan down to the value of the 
collateral.  For further information, please see discussion in Item 7—“Critical Accounting Policies—Allowance for 
Loan Losses” in this Form 10-K. 

 
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the 

bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the original contractual terms of the loan agreement, 
including both principal and interest.  The impairment amount of the loan is equal to the recorded investment in 
the loan less the net fair value.  The bank generally uses one of three methods to measure impairment; the fair 
value of the collateral less disposition costs, the present value of expected future cash flows method, or the 
observable market price of a loan method.  The impairment amount above collateral value is normally charged to 
the allowance for loan and lease losses in the quarter it is identified.  Total loans which were deemed to have been 
impaired as of December 31, 2008 were $39.4 million.  Collateral associated with these impaired loans (less 
estimated selling costs) exceeded this amount, so there are no specifically identified losses allocated in the reserve 
for loan losses. 

 
Restructured loans are defined as those loans whose terms have been modified, because of a deterioration 

in the financial condition of the borrower, to provide for a reduction of either interest or principal, regardless of 
whether such loans are secured or unsecured, regardless of whether such credits are guaranteed by the government 
or others, and regardless of the effective interest rate on such credits.  Such a loan is considered restructured until 
paid in full.  However, a loan that is restructured with an interest rate similar to current market interest rates and is in 
compliance with the modified terms need not be reported as restructured beginning the year after the year in which it 
was restructured.  Total loans which were considered restructured as of December 31, 2008 totaled $4.3 million. 

 
The Bank anticipates the volume of commercial real estate and construction loans to continue to decline.  

Overall, management’s outlook for the New Mexico economy in 2009 is expected to be a recession less severe 
than experienced by much of the country followed by a moderate recovery in mid 2010.  Nonfarm employment 
growth was a negative (-0.3%) in 2008, and is expected to be a negative (-0.2%) in 2009.  Housing construction 
overall is expected to remain depressed throughout the remainder of 2009, but experience a modest recovery 
toward the middle of 2010. 
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Additions to the allowance for loan losses, which are charged to earnings through the provision for loan 
losses, are determined based on a variety of factors, as indicated above.  Although the Company believes the 
allowance for loan losses is sufficient to cover probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio, there can be no 
assurance that the allowance will prove sufficient to cover actual loan losses. 

 
Potential Problem Loans. The Company utilizes an internal asset classification system as a means of 

reporting problem and potential problem assets.  At Board of Directors meetings each quarter, a list of total 
adversely classified assets is presented showing OREO, other repossessed assets, and all loans listed as 
“Substandard,” “Doubtful” and “Loss.”  All non-accrual loans are classed either as “Substandard” or “Doubtful” 
and are thus included in total adversely classified assets.  A separate watch list of loans classified as “Special 
Mention” is also presented.  An asset is classified Substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net 
worth and paying capacity of the obligor or by the collateral pledged, if any.  Substandard assets have well-
defined weaknesses that jeopardize liquidation of the debt and there is a distinct possibility that the Company will 
sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.  Assets classified as Doubtful have all the weaknesses 
inherent in those classified Substandard, but weaknesses are so pronounced that collection or liquidation is highly 
questionable and improbable.  Assets classified as Loss are those considered uncollectible and viewed as non-
bankable assets worthy of charge-off.  Special Mention Assets are those that have potential weaknesses that 
deserve management’s close attention.  If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration 
of the repayment prospects for the asset or in the Bank’s credit position at some future date. 

 
The Company’s determinations as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation 

allowances are subject to review by the Bank’s primary regulators, which can order the establishment of 
additional general or specific loss allowances.  The OCC, in conjunction with the other federal banking agencies, 
has adopted an interagency policy statement on the allowance for loan losses.  The policy statement provides 
guidance for financial institutions on both the responsibilities of management for the assessment and 
establishment of adequate allowances and guidance for banking agency examiners to use in determining the 
adequacy of general valuation guidelines.  Generally, the policy statement recommends that (i) institutions have 
effective systems and controls to identify, monitor and address asset quality problems; (ii) management analyze 
all significant factors that affect the collectability of the portfolio in a reasonable manner; and (iii) management 
establish acceptable allowance evaluation processes that meet the objectives set forth in the policy statement.  
Management believes it has established an adequate allowance for probable loan losses.  The Company analyzes 
its process regularly with modifications made as necessary and reports those results quarterly at Board of 
Directors meetings.  However, there can be no assurance that regulators, in reviewing the Company’s loan 
portfolio, will not request the Company to materially increase its allowance for loan losses.  Although 
management believes that adequate specific and general loan loss allowances have been established, actual losses 
are dependent upon future events and, as such, further additions to the level of specific and general loan loss 
allowances may become necessary. 
  

The following table shows the amounts of adversely classified assets and special mention loans as of the 
periods indicated: 
 
   At December 31,  
   2008  2007  2006  2005   2004  
   (In thousands)  
Loans classified as:             

Substandard   $ 73,142   $ 19,053   $ 12,924   $ 14,484   $ 15,810  
Doubtful   —   2,644   2,177   1,414   201  

Total adversely classified loans   73,142   21,697   15,101   15,898   16,011  
Other real estate owned   2,354   1,358   165   375   6,438  
Other repossessed assets   692   4   60   27   64  
Total adversely classified assets   $ 76,188   $ 23,059   $ 15,326   $ 16,300   $ 22,513  
                  
Special mention loans   $ 24,836   $ 30,715   $ 9,044   $ 14,836   $ 22,834  
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Total adversely classified assets as of December 31, 2008 were $76.2 million, or 5.4% of total assets.  This 
was an increase of $53.1 million (230.4%) from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008.  The main reason was 
an increase of $54.1 million in Substandard loans and an increase in other real estate owned of $996 thousand.  
These increases were partially offset by a decrease in Doubtful loans of $2.6 million.  The large increase in 
substandard loans was mainly due to the increase in substandard construction ($28.6 million) and substandard 
commercial real estate ($21.2 million) loans.  The increase in substandard construction loans was primarily due to 
the current slowdown in real estate experienced both nationally and regionally.  Management believes that we have 
adequate collateral on these loans.  In addition, these borrowers continue to service their debt.  The increase in 
substandard commercial real estate loans was primarily due to the $16.0 million relationship discussed in “Balance 
Sheet Analysis - Non-Performing Loans” section on Page 44 of this Form 10-K.  Special Mention loans decreased 
$5.9 million (19.1%) between December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008, primarily due to the downgrading of two 
large commercial real estate credits to Substandard (composed of the $16.0 million credit referenced above and a 
relationship of $4.9 million) based upon their potential weaknesses, which warrant management’s close attention.  
Management is currently and will continue working closely with these customers to resolve the potential 
weaknesses. 
 

Management is carefully monitoring the adversely classified assets it has in its portfolio.  Management 
believes the increase in classified assets is a result of current national and regional economic difficulties, particularly 
in the area of real estate sales.  Although we do not have direct exposure from subprime mortgages, we have 
significant concentrations in real estate lending (through construction, residential and commercial loans).  Though 
the New Mexico real estate environment is currently more favorable than most areas of the nation, there is still a 
concern that real estate values may stagnate or fall within our market areas.  As a result, we will continue to closely 
monitor market conditions, our loan portfolio and make any adjustments to our allowance for loan losses deemed 
necessary to adequately provide for our exposure in these areas. 
 
Sources of Funds 
  

General. Deposits, short-term and long-term borrowings, loan and investment security repayments and 
prepayments, proceeds from the sale of securities, and cash flows generated from operations are the primary 
sources of our funds for lending, investing and other general purposes.  Loan repayments are a relatively 
predictable source of funds except during periods of significant interest rate declines, while deposit flows tend to 
fluctuate with prevailing interests rates, money markets conditions, general economic conditions and competition. 

  
Deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest rates and terms.  Our core 

deposits consist of checking accounts, Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (NOW) accounts, Money Market Deposit 
Accounts (MMDA), savings accounts and non-public certificates of deposit.  These deposits, along with public 
fund deposits and short-term and long-term borrowings are used to support our asset base.  Our deposits are 
obtained predominantly from our market areas.  We rely primarily on competitive rates along with customer 
service and long-standing relationships with customers to attract and retain deposits; however, market interest 
rates and rates offered by competing financial institutions significantly affect our ability to attract and retain 
deposits. 

  
The following table sets forth the maturities of time deposits $100 thousand and over: 

 
    At December 31, 2008  
    (In thousands)  

Time deposits $100,000 and over:    
Maturing within three months   $ 76,369  
After three but within six months   166,207  
After six but within twelve months   81,372  
After twelve months   —  

     
Total time deposits $100,000 and over:   $ 323,948  
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Borrowings. We have access to a variety of borrowing sources and use short-term and long-term 
borrowings to support our asset base.  Short-term borrowings include federal funds purchased, securities sold 
under agreements to repurchase and advances from Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) with remaining 
maturities under one year.  Long-term borrowings are advances from the FHLB with remaining maturities over 
one year.  Total short-term and long-term borrowings decreased $40.0 million at December 31, 2008 compared to 
December 31, 2007 due to scheduled payments on existing borrowings. 

  
In addition to short- and long-term borrowings made by us, the ESOP has used borrowings, which the 

Company guarantees, to facilitate its ability to acquire stock for the benefit of all employees who participate in 
the ESOP.  For further information, please see Item 8—“Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 18, ‘Retirement Plans’” in this Form 10-K. 

  
The following table sets forth certain information regarding our borrowings for the periods indicated: 

 
    At December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

Short-term borrowings:          
Average balance outstanding   $ 21,783   $ 18,426   $ 16,822   
Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the period   40,000   44,400   42,350   
Balance outstanding at end of period   —   40,000   681   
Weighted average interest rate during the period   3.24 % 3.61 % 4.29 %
Weighted average interest rate at end of the period   — % 3.22 % 4.10 %

Long-term borrowings:            
Average balance outstanding   $ 23,549   $ 45,441   $ 64,597   
Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the period   23,566   63,600   71,650   
Balance outstanding at end of period   23,532   23,569   63,603   
Weighted average interest rate during the period   4.90 % 3.97 % 3.87 %
Weighted average interest rate at end of the period   4.90 % 4.90 % 3.85 %

Borrowings made by Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
(ESOP) to outside parties:           
Average balance outstanding   $ 9   $ 296   $ 768   
Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the period   —   271   743   
Balance outstanding at end of period   —   271   743   
Weighted average interest rate during the period   7.27 % 8.11 % 7.94 %
Weighted average interest rate at end of the period   — % 7.25 % 8.25 %

Junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts:           
Average balance outstanding   $ 37,116   $ 37,116   $ 36,031   
Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the period   37,116   37,116   43,302   
Balance outstanding at end of period   37,116   37,116   37,116   
Weighted average interest rate during the period   7.87 % 8.26 % 9.10 %
Weighted average interest rate at end of the period   7.64 % 8.13 % 8.02 %

 
Liquidity 
  
Bank Liquidity. Liquidity management is monitored by the Asset/Liability Management Committee and 

Board of Directors of the Bank, who review historical funding requirements, current liquidity position, sources 
and stability of funding, marketability of assets, options for attracting additional funds, and anticipated future 
funding needs, including the level of unfunded commitments. 
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Our primary sources of funds are retail and commercial deposits, borrowings, public funds and funds 
generated from operations.  Funds from operations include principal and interest payments received on loans and 
securities.  While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities provide an indication of the 
timing of the receipt of funds, changes in interest rates, economic conditions and competition strongly influence 
mortgage prepayment rates and deposit flows, reducing the predictability of the timing on sources of funds. 

  
We adhere to a liquidity policy, approved by the Board of Directors, which requires that we maintain the 

following liquidity ratios: 
  

• Net on-hand liquidity to total assets (defined as interest-bearing short-term investments plus securities 
not needed for collateral less short-term borrowings divided by total assets) should be greater than 0%. 

• Wholesale funding to total assets (defined as state deposits plus short and long-term borrowings divided 
by total assets) should be less than 20%. 

• Unused funding lines to total assets (defined as unused borrowings lines available from FHLB and other 
banks divided by total assets) should be greater than 10%. 

•  Loans to deposits less than 110%. 
• Unused commitments to fund loans to total assets (defined as unused lines of credit likely to be funded 

divided by total assets) should be less than 5%. 
  

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, we were in compliance with the foregoing policy. 
  
At December 31, 2008, we had outstanding loan origination commitments and unused commercial and 

retail lines of credit of $201.0 million and standby letters of credit of $20.5 million.  We anticipate we will have 
sufficient funds available to meet current origination and other lending commitments.  Certificates of deposit 
scheduled to mature within one year totaled $419.9 million at December 31, 2008.  Based upon our historical 
experience, we expect to retain a substantial majority of these certificates of deposit when they mature. 

  
In the event that additional short-term liquidity is needed, we have established relationships with several 

large regional banks to provide short-term borrowings in the form of federal funds purchases.  We have 
borrowed, and management believes that we could again borrow, $112.0 million for a short time from these 
banks on a collective basis.  Additionally, we are a member of the FHLB and have the ability to borrow from the 
FHLB up to a total of $244.7 million in additional funds.  We are also in the process of establishing a borrowing 
line with the FRB through the discount window.  As a contingency plan for significant funding needs, the 
Asset/Liability Management Committee may also consider the sale of investment securities, selling securities 
under agreement to repurchase, sale of certain loans and/or the temporary curtailment of lending activities. 

 
An additional potential source of liquidity is participation in Treasury’s Capital Purchase Plan (CPP), 

which could generate up to an additional $34.7 million.  Although we have applied to participate in CPP, as of the 
date of this report, the Company has not decided if it will participate in the program. 

  
Company Liquidity. Trinity’s main sources of liquidity at the holding company level are dividends from 

the Bank. 
  

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and state banking 
agencies, which affect their ability to pay dividends to Trinity.  See Item 1, “Business—Trinity Capital 
Corporation—Supervision and Regulation—Dividends” and in Item 1, “Business—Los Alamos National Bank—
Supervision and Regulation—Dividends” in this Form 10-K.  Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can 
initiate certain mandatory and discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material 
effect on our financial statements.  The minimum ratios required for the Bank to be considered “well capitalized” 
for regulatory purposes are 10%, 6% and 5%.  At December 31, 2008, the Bank could pay a total of $15.7 million 
in dividends and still comply with the minimum regulatory capital ratio requirements for “well-capitalized” 
status.  For more information, please see “Capital Resources” on p. 51 and Item 8, “Financial Statements and 
Supplemental Data—Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 18, ‘Regulatory Matters’” in this Form 
10-K. 
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Contractual Obligations, Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Off-balance Sheet Arrangements 
  
We have various financial obligations, including contractual obligations and commitments, which may 

require future cash payments. 
  

Contractual Obligations. The following table presents, as of December 31, 2008, significant 
fixed and determinable contractual obligations to third parties by payment date.  Further discussion of the nature 
of each obligation, please see Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements” for more information on each line item. 
 

    Payments Due by Period   

    Total   
One year 

or less   1-3 years   4-5 years   
After 5 
years   

    (in thousands)   
Deposits without a stated maturity (1)   $ 722,948   $ 722,948   $ —  $ —  $ —  
Time deposits (1)   528,646   419,909    94,776    13,961    —  
Long-term borrowings (1)   23,532   36  20,072  1,047   2,377  
Operating leases   503   387  116  —   —  
Capital leases  3,965  185  370  370  3,040  
Capital expenditures  5,761  5,761  —  —  —  
Junior subordinated debt owed to 

unconsolidated trusts (1)   37,116   —   —   —   37,116  
Total contractual long-term cash 

obligations   $ 1,322,471   $ 1,149,226   $ 115,334   $ 15,378   $ 42,533  
 
_________________________ 
 
(1) Excludes interest. 
  

Deposits without a stated maturity and time deposits do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements.  While these deposits contractually can be withdrawn by the customer on the dates indicated in the 
above table, historical experience has shown these deposits to have low volatility.  Operating leases represent 
rental payments for office and storage property, as well as space for ATM installation in various locations.  The 
capital lease was acquired in 2006 for construction of our third office in Santa Fe.  The lease contains a purchase 
option in 2014 that we expect to exercise the cost of which is largely offset by a loan held on the property.  
Capital expenditures represent the contractual cost of construction for the new office in Santa Fe. 
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Commitments. The following table details the amounts and expected maturities of significant 
commitments as of December 31, 2008.  Further discussion of these commitments is included in Notes 15 and 16 
in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K. 
 
 

  Total   
One year

or less   1-3 years   4-5 years    
After 5
years  

  (In thousands)  
Commitments to extend credit:            
Commercial   $ 41,089   $ 41,001   $ 88   $ —   $ —  
Commercial real estate   4,584   4,584    —    —    —  
Residential real estate   916   916    —    —    —  
Construction real estate   47,220   44,794   2,324    —    102  
Revolving home equity and credit card lines   97,873   40,894   247    9,449    47,283  
Other   9,320   9,308   2    10    —  
Standby letters of credit   20,467   19,622   805    —    40  
Total commitments to extend credit   221,469    161,119   3,466    9,459    47,425  
Commitments to sell mortgage loans   15,173   15,173   —   —   —  
ESOP liquidity put   13,105   2,621   5,242   5,242   —  
Total commitments   $ 249,747   $ 178,913   $ 8,708   $ 14,701   $ 47,425  
 

Commitments to extend credit, including loan commitments and standby letters of credit, do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as these commitments often expire without being drawn upon.  
Commitments to sell mortgage loans are offset by commitments from customers to enter into a mortgage loan.  
The Bank’s contract with customers specifically requires the customer to pay any fees incurred in the event that 
we cannot deliver a mortgage to the buyer according to the contract with the buyer of the mortgage.  The ESOP 
liquidity put is described in Note 12 in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” of this Form 10-
Kt. 
  
Capital Resources 
  

The Bank is subject to the risk based capital regulations administered by the banking regulatory 
agencies.  The risk based capital guidelines are designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive 
to differences in risk profiles among banks, to account for off-balance sheet exposure and to minimize 
disincentives for holding liquid assets.  Under the regulations, assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to 
broad risk categories, each with appropriate weights.  The resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage 
of total risk weighted assets and off-balance sheet items.  Under the prompt corrective action regulations, to be 
adequately capitalized a bank must maintain minimum ratios of total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8%, Tier 1 
capital to risk-weighted assets of 4%, and Tier 1 capital to total assets of 4%.  Failure to meet these capital 
requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators, which, if 
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements.  As of December 31, 2008, the 
most recent notification from the federal banking regulators categorized the Bank as “well-capitalized.”  A “well–
capitalized” institution must maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 10%, a 
minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets of at least 6%, a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to total 
assets of at least 5% and must not be subject to any written order, agreement or directive requiring it to meet or 
maintain a specific capital level.  There are no conditions or events since that notification that management 
believes have changed the Bank’s capital classification. 

  
In order for the Company to be considered “adequately capitalized” on a consolidated basis, it must 

maintain a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to total assets of 4%, and a minimum ratio of total capital to risk-
weighted assets of 8%.  See Item 1. “Business—Supervision and Regulation—Capital Requirements” of this 
Form 10-K 
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A certain amount of both the Company and the Bank’s Tier 1 capital was in the form of Trust Preferred 
Securities.  Please see Note 10, ”Junior Subordinated Debt Owed to Unconsolidated Trusts” in Item 8, “Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Form 10-K for details on the effect these have on risk based capital. 

 
Trinity and the Bank were in full compliance with all capital adequacy requirements to which they are 

subject as of December 31, 2008.  The required and actual amounts and ratios for Trinity and the Bank as of 
December 31, 2008 are presented below: 
 

    Actual   
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes   

To Be “Well-Capitalized” 
Under 

Prompt Corrective 
Action Provisions   

    Amount   Ratio   Amount   Ratio   Amount   Ratio   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

                    
As of December 31, 2008                   
Total capital (to risk-

weighted assets):                   
Consolidated   $ 139,806  11.80 % $ 94,772  8.00 % N/A   N/A   
Bank only   133,407  11.33   94,162   8.00   $ 117,703  10.00 %

Tier 1 capital (to risk-
weighted assets):                  
Consolidated   119,421  10.08   47,386   4.00   N/A   N/A   
Bank only   118,688  10.08   47,081   4.00   70,622  6.00   

Tier 1 capital (to average 
assets):                  
Consolidated   119,421  8.35   57,239   4.00   N/A   N/A   
Bank only   118,688  8.34   56,908   4.00   71,135   5.00   

 
_________________________ 
 
N/A—not applicable 

  
Statement of Cash Flows 
  

Our cash flows are comprised of three classifications: cash flows from operating activities, cash flows 
from investing activities and cash flows from financing activities.  Net cash provided by operating activities was 
$21.0 million, $20.8 million and $15.0 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006.  Net cash provided by operating 
activities increased $210 thousand primarily due to an increase in cash provided by sales of loans held for sale, 
net of origination of loans held for sale, of $1.6 million.  This was partially offset by a decrease in cash provided 
by net income, less adjustments for non-cash items.  Between 2007 and 2006, net cash provided by operating 
activities increased by $5.8 million primarily due to an increase in cash provided by sales of loans held for sale, 
net of origination of loans held for sale, of $3.4 million. 

 
Net cash (used in) investing activities was ($70.5) million, ($53.6) million and ($98.7) million for 2008, 

2007 and 2006.  Net cash used in investing activities increased $16.9 million primarily due to a decrease of cash 
provided from the maturities and paydowns of securities of $60.9 million and an increase in cash used by the 
funding of loans (net of repayments) of $24.8 million.  These items were partially offset by a decrease in cash 
used by the purchase of investment securities of $36.6 million and an increase in cash provided by the sale of 
investment securities of $32.5 million.  The decrease in cash used in investing activities of $45.1 million from 
2006 to 2007 was primarily due to an increase in cash provided from the maturities and paydowns of securities of 
$78.4 million, a decrease in cash used by the funding of loans (net of repayments) of $68.0 million and an 
increase in cash provided by the sale of investment securities of $14.8 million.  These items were partially offset 
by an increase in cash used for the purchasing of securities of $120.9 million. 
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Net cash provided by financing activities was $29.2 million, $4.7 million and $102.7 million for 2008, 
2007 and 2006.  Net cash provided by financing activities increased $24.5 million primarily due to an increase of 
cash provided by the net increase in deposits of $63.4 million, which was partially offset by an increase in cash 
used in the repayment of borrowings of $39.1 million.  Cash provided by financing activities decreased by $98.0 
million from 2006 to 2007 primarily due to a decrease in cash provided by the net increase in deposits of $108.2 
million, which was partially offset by a decrease in cash used in the repayment of borrowings of $17.3 million. 

  
The most significant growth in deposits from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008 occurred in 

savings accounts ($59.0 million) and NOW accounts ($13.5 million), with smaller growth in MMDA accounts 
($11.7 million) and demand deposits ($984 thousand).  There was a decline in time deposits under $100,000 ($5.4 
million) and in time deposits over $100,000 ($3.7 million).  Customers have been keeping deposits in non-maturity 
deposits evidencing an apparent need for more liquidity.  We have seen this change from maturing to non-maturing 
deposits result in a slight increase in deposits. 
 
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk. 
  
Asset Liability Management 
  

Our net interest income is subject to “interest rate risk” to the extent that it can vary based on changes in 
the general level of interest rates.  It is our policy to maintain an acceptable level of interest rate risk over a range 
of possible changes in interest rates while remaining responsive to market demand for loan and deposit products.  
The strategy we employ to manage our interest rate risk involves measuring our risk using an asset/liability 
simulation model and adjusting the maturity of securities in our investment portfolio to manage that risk. 

  
Interest rate risk is also measured by analyzing the extent to which the repricing of assets and liabilities 

are mismatched to create an interest sensitivity “gap.”  An asset or liability is considered to be interest rate 
sensitive within a specific time period if it will mature or reprice within that time period.  The interest rate 
sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between the amount of interest earning assets maturing or repricing 
within a specific time period and the amount of interest bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within that same 
time period.  A gap is considered positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of 
interest rate sensitive liabilities.  A gap is considered negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities 
exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive assets.  During a period of rising interest rates, therefore, a negative 
gap would tend to adversely affect net interest income.  Conversely, during a period of falling interest rates, a 
negative gap position would tend to result in an increase in net interest income. 

  
The following tables set forth the amounts of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities 

outstanding at December 31, 2008, which we anticipate, based upon certain assumptions, to reprice or mature in 
each of the future time periods shown.  Except as stated below, the amount of assets and liabilities shown which 
reprice or mature during a particular period were determined based on the earlier of the term to repricing or the 
term to repayment of the asset or liability.  These tables are intended to provide an approximation of the projected 
repricing of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2008 on the basis of contractual maturities and scheduled rate 
adjustments within a three-month period and subsequent selected time intervals.  The loan amounts in the table 
reflect principal balances expected to be reinvested and/or repriced as a result of contractual amortization and rate 
adjustments on adjustable-rate loans.  The contractual maturities and amortization of loans and investment 
securities reflect modest prepayment assumptions.  While NOW, money market and savings deposit accounts 
have adjustable rates, it is assumed that the interest rates on these accounts will not adjust immediately to changes 
in other interest rates.  Therefore, the table is calculated assuming that these accounts will reprice based upon an 
historical analysis of decay rates of these particular accounts, with repricing assigned to these accounts from 1 to 
10 months. 
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    Time to Maturity or Repricing  

As of December 31, 2008:    0-90 Days   91-365 Days  1-5 Years  Over 5 Years    Total  
    (Dollars in thousands)  

Interest-earning Assets:           
Loans   $ 485,526   $ 453,218  $ 253,993  $ 37,797   $ 1,230,534  
Loans held for sale    8,603    —   —   —   8,603  
Investment securities    5,651   15,115  83,159   12,536   116,461  
Securities purchased under 

agreements to resell   203    —   —   —   203  
Interest-bearing deposits with 

banks    6,800    —   —   —   6,800  
Investment in unconsolidated 

trusts   186    —   —   930   1,116  
Total interest-earning assets   $ 506,969   $ 468,333  $ 337,152  $ 51,263   $ 1,363,717  
           
Interest-bearing Liabilities:           
NOW deposits   $ 48,142   $ 73,687  $ —  $ —   $ 121,829  
Money market deposits    83,419   97,539   —   —   180,958  
Savings deposits    146,651   189,472   —   —   336,123  
Time deposits over $100,000    76,369   166,207  81,372   —   323,948  
Time deposits under $100,000    63,062   114,269  27,367   —   204,698  
Short-term borrowings    —     —   —    —  
Long-term borrowings   9   27  21,118   2,378   23,532  
Capital lease obligations    —    —   —   2,211   2,211  
Borrowings made by ESOP to 

outside parties    —    —   —   —    —  
Junior subordinated debt owed to 

unconsolidated trusts    6,186    —   —   30,930   37,116  
Total interest-bearing liabilities   $ 423,838   $ 641,201  $ 129,857  $ 35,519   $ 1,230,415  
Rate sensitive assets (RSA)   $ 506,969   $ 975,302  $ 1,312,454  $ 1,363,717    1,363,717  
Rate sensitive liabilities (RSL)    423,838   1,065,039  1,194,896   1,230,415    1,230,415  
Cumulative GAP (GAP=RSA-

RSL)    83,131   (89,737 ) 117,558   133,302   133,302  
RSA/Total assets   35.76 %  68.79 % 92.57 % 96.19 %  96.19 %
RSL/Total assets   29.90 %  75.12 % 84.28 % 86.79 %  86.79 %
GAP/Total assets   5.86 %  -6.33 % 8.29 % 9.40 %  9.40 %
GAP/RSA   16.40 %  -9.20 % 8.96 % 9.77 %  9.77 %
 

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table.  For 
example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react 
in different degrees to changes in market interest rates.  Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and 
liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types of assets 
may lag behind changes in market rates.  Additionally, in the event of a change in interest rates, prepayment and 
early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table.  Therefore, 
we do not rely solely on a gap analysis to manage our interest rate risk, but rather we use what we believe to be 
the more reliable simulation model relating to changes in net interest income. 

 
Based on simulation modeling at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, our net interest income 

would change over a one-year time period due to changes in interest rates as follows: 
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Change in Net Interest Income Over One Year Horizon 
 

Changes   At December 31, 2008   At December 31, 2007   
In Levels of  

Interest Rates   Dollar Change   Percentage Change   Dollar Change   Percentage Change   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

+ 2.00 % $ (1,084 ) (2.11 )% $ 3,823  7.60 %
+ 1.00   257  0.50  1,997  3.97  
(1.00 ) (627 ) (1.22 ) (2,148 ) (4.27 )  
(2.00 ) (1,177 ) (2.29 ) (3,174 ) (6.31 )  

 
Our simulations used assume the following: 
  
1. Changes in interest rates are immediate. 

 
2. It is our policy that interest rate exposure due to a 2% interest rate rise or fall be limited to 15% 
of our annual net interest income, as forecasted by the simulation model.  As demonstrated by the table 
above, our interest rate risk exposure was within this policy at December 31, 2008. 

  
Changes in net interest income between the periods above reflect changes in the composition of interest 

earning assets and interest bearing liabilities, related interest rates, repricing frequencies, and the fixed or variable 
characteristics of the interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities.  Projections of income given by the 
model are not actual predictions, but rather show our relative interest rate risk.  Actual interest income may vary 
from model projections. 
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting, and for performing an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2008.  Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  The Company’s system of internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; 
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use 
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

  
Management performed an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 

financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based upon criteria in Internal Control - Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).  Based on our 
assessment, management determined that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as 
of December 31, 2008. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Trinity Capital Corporation  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Trinity Capital Corporation and subsidiaries 
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes 
in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2008.  
We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on 
criteria set forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  The Company’s management is responsible for these 
financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of 
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report 
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control 
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audits of the financial statements included 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.  Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  Our 
audits also include performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  The Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the Company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements.  Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Trinity Capital Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the 
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended 
December 31, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Also, in our opinion, Trinity Capital Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries maintained, in all material 
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria set forth by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  
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As described in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted 
a new principle of accounting for fair value measurements in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. 
 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
March 16, 2009 



 
60 

 

TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 2008 and 2007 
(Amounts in thousands, except share data) 

 
  2008    2007  

ASSETS      
Cash and due from banks  $ 18,259   $ 21,194  
Interest-bearing deposits with banks  6,800    24,173  
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resell agreements  203    157  

Cash and cash equivalents  25,262    45,524  
Investment securities available for sale  103,007    99,590  
Investment securities held to maturity, at amortized cost (fair value of 

$9,780 at December 31, 2008 and $9,159 at December 31, 2007)  8,927    9,159  
Other investments   5,643    7,380  
Loans (net of allowance for loan losses of $15,230 at December 31, 2008 

and $13,533 at December 31, 2007)  1,215,304    1,157,573  
Loans held for sale  8,603    10,172  
Premises and equipment, net  24,406    24,071  
Leased property under capital leases, net  2,211    2,211  
Accrued interest receivable  7,889    9,781  
Mortgage servicing rights, net  5,271    8,066  
Other intangible assets  759    3  
Other real estate owned  2,354    1,358  
Other assets  8,091    4,835  

Total assets  $ 1,417,727   $ 1,379,723  
      
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY      
Liabilities      

Deposits:      
Noninterest-bearing  $ 84,038   $ 88,575  
Interest-bearing  1,167,556    1,086,883  

Total deposits  1,251,594    1,175,458  
Short-term borrowings   —    40,000  
Long-term borrowings  23,532    23,569  
Long-term capital lease obligations  2,211    2,211  
Junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts  37,116    37,116  
Borrowings made by Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) to outside 

parties   —    271  
Accrued interest payable  5,821    6,721  
Other liabilities  6,168    6,350  

Total liabilities  1,326,442    1,291,696  
 

(Continued on following page)
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 2008 and 2007 
(Amounts in thousands, except share data) 

(Continued from previous page) 
 

  2008    2007  
       
Stock owned by Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) participants; 

602,514 shares and 625,602 shares at December 31, 2008 and 
December 31, 2007, respectively, at fair value; net of unearned ESOP 
shares of 0 and 16,937 shares at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 
2007, respectively, at historical cost  $ 13,105   $  16,656  

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)       
Stockholders' equity       

Common stock, no par, authorized 20,000,000 shares; issued 6,856,800 
shares, shares outstanding 6,448,548 and 6,482,650 at December 31, 
2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively  6,836     6,836  

Additional paid-in capital  1,797     1,520  
Retained earnings  79,233     72,610  
Accumulated other comprehensive gain  1,419     72  

Total stockholders' equity before treasury stock  89,285     81,038  
Treasury stock, at cost, 408,252 shares and 357,213 shares at December 31, 

2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively  (11,105 )   (9,667 ) 
Total stockholders' equity  78,180     71,371  
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 1,417,727   $ 1,379,723  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands except per share data) 

 
  2008   2007    2006  

Interest income:         
Loans, including fees  $ 78,713   $ 89,059    $ 79,525  
Investment securities:         
Taxable  2,922   4,917     3,703  
Nontaxable  744   990     829  
Federal funds sold  169   133     33  
Other interest-bearing deposits  565   1,798     851  
Investment in unconsolidated trusts  87   92     93  

Total interest income  83,200   96,989     85,034  
Interest expense:         

Deposits  30,887   42,146     32,657  
Short-term borrowings  707   690     721  
Long-term borrowings  1,154   1,802     2,559  
Long-term capital lease obligations  268   293     —  
Junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts  2,920   3,067     3,279  

Total interest expense  35,936   47,998     39,216  
Net interest income  47,264   48,991     45,818  
Provision for loan losses  8,183   4,200     5,172  
Net interest income after provision for loan losses  39,081   44,791     40,646  
Other income:         

Mortgage loan servicing fees  2,467   2,468     2,641  
Trust fees  1,092   981     883  
Loan and other fees  2,605   2,409     2,133  
Service charges on deposits  1,720   1,714     1,561  
Gain on sale of loans  2,027   1,658     1,587  
Gain on sale of securities  555   62     —  
Title insurance premiums  815   788     1,094  
Other operating income  263   428     388  

Total other income  11,544   10,508     10,287  
 

(Continued on following page)
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands except per share data) 

(Continued from previous page) 
 

  2008   2007    2006  
Other expenses:         

Salaries and employee benefits  $  18,870   $ 18,516    $  17,468  
Occupancy  3,310   3,558     3,450  
Data processing  2,295   1,855     1,921  
Marketing  2,056   1,971     1,698  
Amortization and valuation of mortgage servicing rights  4,193   2,285     2,266  
Amortization and valuation of other intangible assets  44    —     —  
Supplies  440   785     657  
Loss (gain) on sale of other real estate owned  132   (120 )    215  
Postage  623   642     572  
Bankcard and ATM network fees  1,241   1,240     1,071  
Legal, professional and accounting fees  1,538   1,338     1,258  
FDIC insurance premiums  682   136     130  
Other  2,619   2,399     3,088  

Total other expense   38,043   34,605     33,794  
Income before income taxes  12,582   20,694     17,139  
Income taxes  4,583   7,365     6,828  
Net income  $ 7,999   $ 13,329    $ 10,311  
Basic earnings per common share  $ 1.23   $ 2.05    $ 1.57  
Diluted earnings per common share  $ 1.23   $ 2.03    $ 1.56  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share data) 

 
  Common Stock, No Par      Accumulated  

  Issued Held in Treasury, at cost Additional     Other  

  Shares    Amount Shares Amount 
Paid-In
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings    

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total 

Balance, December 31, 
2005  6,856,800   $ 6,836 (229,998 ) $ (5,980 ) $ 922 $ 58,013   $ (273 ) $59,518 

Comprehensive income         
Net income     10,311    
Net change in 

unrealized gain on 
investment securities, 
available-for-sale, net 
of taxes of $61         115

Total comprehensive 
income         10,426

Dividends     (48 ) (4,507 )   (4,555 )
Treasury shares purchased     (105,913 ) (2,926 )     (2,926 )
Treasury shares issued 

from exercise of stock 
options     56,209 1,462 (758 )     704 

Tax benefit from the 
exercise of stock 
options     331     331

Increase in stock owned 
by ESOP participants, 
14,508     (406 )   (406 )

Net change in the fair 
value of stock owned 
by ESOP participants     (472 )   (472 )

Allocation of ESOP 
shares     330     330 

Stock options and stock 
appreciation rights 
expensed     290     290 

Balance, December 31, 
2006  6,856,800   $ 6,836 (279,702 ) $ (7,444 ) $ 1,067 $ 62,939   $ (158 ) $63,240

 
(Continued on following page)
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share data) 

(Continued from previous page) 
 

  Common Stock, No Par      Accumulated  

  Issued Held in Treasury, at cost Additional     Other  

  Shares    Amount Shares Amount 
Paid-In
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings    

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total 

Balance, December 31, 
2006  6,856,800   $ 6,836 (279,702 ) $ (7,444 ) $ 1,067 $ 62,939   $ (158 ) $63,240 

Comprehensive income         
Net income     13,329    
Net change in 

unrealized gain on 
investment securities, 
available-for-sale, net 
of taxes of $173         292 

Reclassification of 
unrealized gains to 
realized gains, net of 
taxes of $22         (62 )

Total comprehensive 
income         13,559 

Dividends     (31 ) (4,859 )   (4,890 )
Treasury shares purchased     (88,524 ) (2,509 )     (2,509 )
Treasury shares issued 

from exercise of stock 
options     11,013 286 (110 )     176 

Tax benefit from the 
exercise of stock 
options     57     57 

Decrease in stock owned 
by ESOP participants, 
3,464 shares     100    100

Net change in the fair 
value of stock owned 
by ESOP participants     1,101    1,101 

Allocation of ESOP 
shares     299     299

Stock options and stock 
appreciation rights 
expensed     238     238 

Balance, December 31, 
2007  6,856,800   $ 6,836 (357,213 ) $ (9,667 ) $ 1,520 $ 72,610   $ 72 $71,371

 
(Continued on following page)
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share data) 

(Continued from previous page) 
 

  Common Stock, No Par      Accumulated  

  Issued Held in Treasury, at cost Additional     Other  

  Shares    Amount Shares Amount 
Paid-In
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings    

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total 

Balance, December 31, 
2007  6,856,800   $ 6,836 (357,213 ) $ (9,667 ) $ 1,520 $ 72,610   $ 72 $71,371

Comprehensive income         
Net income     7,999    
Net change in 

unrealized gain on 
investment securities, 
available-for-sale, 
net of taxes of $1,086         1,698

Reclassification of 
unrealized gains to 
realized gains, net of 
taxes of $204         (351 )

Total comprehensive 
income         9,346 

Dividends     (14 ) (5,156 )   (5,170 )
Treasury shares purchased     (65,039 ) (1,802 )     (1,802 )
Treasury shares issued     14,000 364 (84 )     280 
Tax benefit from the 

exercise of stock 
options     43     43 

Decrease in stock owned 
by ESOP participants, 
23,088 shares     623    623

Net change in the fair 
value of stock owned 
by ESOP participants     3,157    3,157 

Allocation of ESOP 
shares     112     112 

Stock options and stock 
appreciation rights 
expensed     220     220 

Balance, December 31, 
2008  6,856,800   $ 6,836 (408,252 ) ($11,105 ) $ 1,797 $ 79,233   $ 1,419 $78,180

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands) 

 
  2008   2007    2006  

Cash Flows From Operating Activities         
Net income  $ 7,999   $ 13,329   $ 10,311  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities:        
Depreciation and amortization  2,409   2,343    2,380  
Net amortization of:        

Mortgage servicing rights  2,740   2,853    2,744  
Other intangible assets  44    —    —  
Premium and discounts on investment securities, net  1,176   (676 )  (364 ) 
Junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts 

issuance costs  14    14    194  
Provision for loan losses   8,183   4,200    5,172  
Change in mortgage servicing rights valuation allowance  1,453   (568 )  (478 ) 
Loss (gain) on disposal of premises and equipment  1   (13 )   46  
(Gain) loss on sale of investment securities  (555 )  (62 )   —  
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock dividends received  (102 )  (216 )  (271 ) 
Loss on venture capital investments  113    78    —  
Gain on sale of loans  (2,027 )  (1,658 )  (1,587 ) 
Loss (gain) on disposal of other real estate owned  71   (3 )  (18 ) 
Write-down of value of other real estate owned  80    —    40  
(Increase) in other assets  (2,260 )  (1,450 )  (2,532 ) 
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities  (1,061 )  1,115    1,361  
Release of Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) shares  340   717    790  
Stock options and stock appreciation rights expenses  220   238    290  
Tax benefit recognized for exercise of stock options  (43 )  (57 )  (331 ) 

Net cash provided by operating activities before 
originations and gross sales of loans  18,795   20,184    17,747  

Gross sales of loans held for sale  131,165   135,644    139,753  
Origination of loans held for sale  (128,967 )  (135,045 )  (142,529 ) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  20,993   20,783    14,971  
 

(Continued on following page)
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands) 

(Continued from previous page) 
 

  2008   2007    2006  
Cash Flows From Investing Activities        
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of investment 

securities, available for sale  $ 67,313   $ 128,500   $  36,373  
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of investment 

securities, held to maturity  232   1,807    15,578  
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of investment 

securities, other  1,829    —    —  
Proceeds from sale of investment securities, available for sale  48,980   14,784    —  
Proceeds from sale of investment securities, other   —   1,648    1,636  
Purchase of investment securities available for sale  (118,102 )  (153,802 )  (32,486 ) 
Purchase of investment securities other  (103 )  (954 )  (1,336 ) 
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned  1,890   767    378  
Loans funded, net of repayments  (68,951 )  (44,173 )  (112,170 ) 
Purchases of loans   —    —   (2,211 ) 
Purchases of premises and equipment  (2,745 )  (2,146 )  (2,280 ) 
Acquisition of leased property under capital leases   —    —   (2,211 ) 
Acquisition of intangible assets  (800 )   —    —  
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment   —    —    —  

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (70,457 )  (53,569 )  (98,729 ) 
Cash Flows From Financing Activities        
Net increase in demand deposits, NOW accounts and savings 

accounts  85,182   34,421    22,605  
Net (decrease) increase in time deposits  (9,046 )  (21,704 )   98,288  
Proceeds from issuances of borrowings   —    —    —  
Repayment of borrowings  (40,037 )  (715 )  (18,022 ) 
Repayment of ESOP debt  (271 )  (472 )  (471 ) 
Acquisition of obligations under capital leases   —    —    2,211  
Proceeds from issuance of trust preferred securities   —    —    10,310  
Repayment of junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated 

trusts   —    —   (6,186 ) 
Purchase of treasury stock  (1,802 )  (2,509 )  (2,926 ) 
Issuance of common stock for stock option plan  323   233    1,035  
Dividend payments  (5,190 )  (4,591 )  (4,509 ) 
Tax benefit recognized for exercise of stock options  43    57    331  

Net cash provided by financing activities  29,202   4,720    102,666  
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (20,262 )  (28,066 )   18,908  

Cash and cash equivalents:        
Beginning of period  45,524   73,590    54,682  
End of period  $ 25,262   $ 45,524   $ 73,590  

 
(Continued on following page) 
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TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 
(Amounts in thousands) 

(Continued from previous page) 
 

  2008   2007    2006  
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information        
Cash payments for:        
Interest  $ 36,836   $ 47,050   $ 37,489  
Income taxes  7,758   8,674    6,921  
Non-cash investing and financing activities:        
Transfers from loans to other real estate owned  3,037   1,957    190  
Dividends declared, not yet paid  2,579   2,600    2,302  
Change in unrealized gain on investment securities, net of taxes  2,229   230    115  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies 
  

Consolidation:  The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the consolidated balances 
and results of operations of Trinity Capital Corporation (“Trinity”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Los 
Alamos National Bank (the “Bank”), Title Guaranty & Insurance Company (“Title Guaranty”), TCC Advisors 
Corporation (“TCC Advisors”) and TCC Funds, collectively referred to as the “Company.”  Trinity Capital 
Trust I (“Trust I”), Trinity Capital Trust III (“Trust III”), Trinity Capital Trust IV (“Trust IV”) and Trinity Capital 
Trust V (“Trust V”), collectively referred to as the “Trusts,” are trust subsidiaries of Trinity but are not 
consolidated in these financial statements (see “Consolidation” accounting policy below).  Trinity Capital Trust II 
(“Trust II”) was terminated on December 12, 2006.  Based upon a regulatory change earlier in the year (which 
has since been reversed), Trinity sold the assets of TCC Appraisals as of May 1, 2008.  Trinity has terminated the 
business of TCC Appraisals in January 2009.  Management believes that the impact of terminating the business 
of TCC Appraisals will have an immaterial effect on Trinity’s financial results.  In August 2008, the Bank 
obtained a 26% interest in Cottonwood Technology Group, LLC (“Cottonwood”).  This entity is owned by the 
Bank, the Los Alamos Commerce & Development Corporation and David Blivin.  Cottonwood is focused on 
assisting new technologies, primarily those developed at New Mexico’s research and educational institutions, 
reach the market by providing management advice and capital consulting.  As of this report date, only certain 
start-up costs have been funded by the Bank, and no capital investments have been made.  In October 2008, the 
Bank purchased certain assets of Allocca & Brunett, Inc., an investment advisory company in Santa Fe, New 
Mexico.  Management expects to integrate the purchased assets of Allocca & Brunett into the Bank’s existing 
Trust and Investment Services Department over the next two to six months.  
 

The business activities of the Company consist solely of the operations of its wholly owned subsidiaries.  
All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  In the opinion of 
management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of 
the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods have been made. 
 

Basis of financial statement presentation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
the Company and its subsidiaries.  Significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation.  The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and general practices within the financial services industry.  In 
accordance with applicable accounting standards, the Company does not consolidate statutory trusts established 
for the sole purpose of issuing trust preferred securities and related trust common securities.  See Note 10 below 
for more detail.  In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and 
revenues and expenses for the year.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Areas involving the use of 
management's estimates and assumptions, which are more susceptible to change in the near term, include the 
allowance for loan losses, initial recording and subsequent valuation for impairment of mortgage servicing rights, 
income tax accounting, and other intangible asset impairment analysis. 
 

The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157) effective January 1, 2008.  SFAS 
157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of fair value 
measurements.  The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial 
statements or results of operations of the Company.  In accordance with FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 157-2, 
“Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” the Company will delay application of SFAS 157 for non-financial 
assets and non-financial liabilities such as other intangibles, real estate owned and repossessed assets until 
January 1, 2009.  SFAS 157 applies to all financial instruments that are measured and reported on a fair value 
basis.  See Note 19 for additional information. 
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In conjunction with the adoption of SFAS 157, we also adopted SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an Amendment of SFAS No. 115 (SFAS 159) as of January 
1, 2008.  SFAS 159 provides companies the option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value.  
This statement also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons 
between companies that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities.  After 
the initial adoption, the election is made at the acquisition of a financial asset or financial liability and it may not 
be revoked.  The Company has not elected the fair value option for any financial assets or liabilities.  See Note 19 
for additional information. 
 

Nature of operations:  The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals, businesses 
and government organizations through its offices in Los Alamos, Santa Fe and Albuquerque, New Mexico.  Its 
primary deposit products are term certificate, NOW and savings accounts and its primary lending products are 
commercial, residential and construction real estate loans.  The Company also offers trust and wealth 
management services and title insurance products. 

  
The Bank conducts its operations from its main office in Los Alamos and separate office locations in 

Albuquerque, Santa Fe and White Rock, New Mexico.  The Bank also operates drive-up facilities and 28 
automatic teller machines (ATM’s) in Los Alamos, Santa Fe and surrounding geographic areas.  Title Guaranty 
conducts its operations from its offices in Los Alamos and Santa Fe. 
  

Deposits with banks, federal funds sold and securities purchased under resell agreements:  For purposes 
of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, amounts due from banks (including 
cash items in process of clearing), interest-bearing deposits with banks and federal funds sold. 

  
Investment securities available for sale:  Securities classified as available for sale are those securities 

that the Company intends to hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to maturity.  Any decision 
to sell a security classified as available for sale would be based on various factors, including significant 
movements in interest rates, changes in the maturity mix of assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory 
capital considerations, and other similar factors. 

  
Securities available for sale are reported at fair value with unrealized gains or losses reported as 

accumulated other comprehensive income, net of the related deferred tax effect.  The amortization of premiums 
and accretion of discounts, computed by the interest method over their contractual lives, are recognized in interest 
income.  Realized gains or losses, determined on the basis of the cost of specific securities sold, are included in 
earnings.  In addition, if a loss is deemed to be other than temporary, it is recognized as a realized loss in the 
income statement. 

  
Investment securities held to maturity:  Securities classified as held to maturity are those securities that 

the Company has the ability and positive intent to hold until maturity.  These securities are reported at amortized 
cost.  Sales of investment securities held to maturity within three months of maturity are treated as maturities. 

  
Other investments:  The Bank, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas (the “FHLB”), is 

required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB based upon borrowings made from the FHLB 
and based upon various classes of loans in the Bank’s portfolio.  FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank stock do not 
have readily determinable fair values as ownership is restricted and it lacks a market.  As a result, these stocks are 
carried at cost and evaluated periodically by management for impairment. 
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The Company’s investment in the unconsolidated trusts is also reported as an investment in this line of 
the balance sheet.  Also included is the Bank’s investment in certain venture capital funds.  In addition, the Bank 
has other non-marketable investments that are carried at cost and evaluated periodically by management for 
impairment.  Investments with fair values that are less than amortized cost are considered impaired.  Impairment 
may result from either a decline in the financial condition of the issuing entity or, in the case of fixed rate 
investments, from rising interest rates.  At each financial statement date, management assesses each investment to 
determine if impaired investments are temporarily impaired or if the impairment is other than temporary based 
upon the evidence available.  Evidence evaluated includes (if applicable), but is not limited to, industry analyst 
reports, credit market conditions, and interest rate trends.  If negative evidence outweighs positive evidence that 
the carrying amount is recoverable within a reasonable period of time, the impairment is deemed to be other-than-
temporary and the security is written down in the period in which such determination is made. 
  

Loans held for sale:  Loans held for sale are those loans the Company intends to sell.  They are carried at 
the lower of aggregate cost or market value.  Gains and losses on sales of loans are recognized at settlement dates 
and are determined by the difference between the sales proceeds plus the value of the mortgage servicing rights 
compared to the carrying value of the loans.  These are generally sold within 30 to 60 days of origination. 

  
Loans:  Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal reduced by the allowance for loan losses and 

unearned income. 
  
Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net 

amount amortized as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield.  The Company is amortizing these amounts over 
the estimated life of the loan.  Commitment fees based upon a percentage of a customer’s unused line of credit 
and fees related to standby letters of credit are recognized over the commitment period.  Net deferred fees on real 
estate loans sold in the secondary market reduce the cost basis in such loans. 

  
Interest on loans is accrued and reported as income using the interest method on daily principal balances 

outstanding.  The Bank generally discontinues accruing interest on loans when the loan becomes 90 days or more 
past due or when management believes that the borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of interest is 
doubtful.  Cash collections on nonaccrual loans are credited to the loan balance, and no interest income is 
recognized on those loans until the principal balance has been determined to be collectible. 

  
Loans, other than those included in large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans, are considered 

impaired when it is probable the Company will be unable to collect all contractual principal and interest payments 
due in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement.  Impaired loans are measured based on the present value 
of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, as a practical expedient, at the 
loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.  The amount of 
impairment, if any, and any subsequent changes are included in the allowance for loan losses. 

  
The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense.  

Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectability of the 
principal is unlikely.  The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb probable 
losses on existing loans, based on an evaluation of the collectability of loans in the portfolio and prior loss 
experience.  The allowance for loan losses is based on management’s evaluation of the loan portfolio giving 
consideration to the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, the value of underlying collateral, overall portfolio 
quality, review of specific problem loans, and prevailing economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s 
ability to pay.  While management uses the best information available to make its evaluation, future adjustments 
to the allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions.  In addition, 
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the subsidiary Bank’s 
allowance for loan losses, and may require the subsidiary bank to recognize additions to its allowance based on 
their judgments of information available to them at the time of their examinations. 
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Premises and equipment:  Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization.  Depreciation and amortization is computed by the straight-line method for buildings and computer 
equipment over their estimated useful lives.  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the related 
lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.  For owned and capitalized assets, 
estimated useful lives range from three to 39 years.  Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, 
while major improvements are capitalized and amortized to operating expense over their identified useful life.  
Generally, the useful life on software is three years; on computer and office equipment, five years; on furniture, 
10 years; and on building and building improvements, 10 to 39 years. 

 
Other real estate owned (“OREO”):  OREO includes real estate assets that have been received in full or 

partial satisfaction of debt.  OREO is initially recorded and subsequently carried at the lower of cost or fair value 
less estimated selling costs.  Any valuation adjustments required at the date of transfer are charged to the 
allowance for loan losses.  Subsequently, unrealized losses and realized gains and losses on sale are included in 
other non-interest income.  Operating results from OREO are recorded in other non-interest expense. 

 
Mortgage servicing rights:  The Bank recognizes, as separate assets, rights to service mortgage loans for 

others, whether the rights are acquired through purchase or after origination and sale of mortgage loans.  In cases 
where the mortgage loan is originated and sold, the total cost of the mortgage loan is allocated to the mortgage 
servicing right and to the loan based on their relative fair values. 
  

The carrying amount of mortgage servicing rights, and the amortization thereon, is periodically 
evaluated in relation to estimated fair value.  The Bank stratifies the underlying mortgage loan portfolio by 
certain risk characteristics, such as loan type, interest rate and maturity, for purposes of measuring impairment.  
The Bank estimates the fair value of each stratum by calculating the discounted present value of future net 
servicing income based on management’s best estimate of remaining loan lives.  The Bank has determined that 
the primary risk characteristic of the mortgage servicing rights is the contractual interest rate of the underlying 
mortgage loans. 

  
The carrying value of mortgage servicing rights is amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, 

estimated net servicing revenues. 
 
Other intangible assets.  The Company may obtain intangible assets other than mortgage servicing rights 

from time to time.  In certain cases, these assets have no definite life and are not amortized.  Other intangible 
assets may have an expected useful life and are amortized over this life.  All intangible assets are tested 
periodically for impairment and, if deemed impaired, the assets are written down to the current value, with the 
impairment amount being charged to current earnings. 

  
Earnings per common share:  Basic earnings per share represent income available to common 

stockholders divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.  Diluted 
earnings per common share were determined assuming that all stock options were exercised at the beginning of 
the years presented.  Unearned shares owned by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) are treated as not 
outstanding for the purposes of computing basic earnings per common share. 
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Average number of shares used in calculation of earnings per common share and diluted earnings per 
common share are as follows: 
 

  2008   2007    2006  
  (In thousands, except share and per share data)  

Net income  $ 7,999   $ 13,329   $ 10,311  
Weighted average common shares issued  6,856,800   6,856,800     6,856,800  
LESS: Weighted average treasury stock shares  (377,803 )  (323,251 )   (237,679 ) 
LESS: Weighted average unearned Employee Stock 

Ownership Plan (ESOP) stock shares  (602 )  (18,936 )   (46,351 ) 
Weighted average common shares outstanding, net  6,478,395   6,514,613     6,572,770  
Basic earnings per common share  $ 1.23   $ 2.05   $ 1.57  
Weighted average dilutive shares from stock option plan  19,816   41,252     39,554  
Weighted average common shares outstanding including 

derivative shares  6,498,211   6,555,865     6,612,324  
Diluted earnings per common share  $ 1.23   $ 2.03   $ 1.56  
 

Certain stock options were not included in the above calculation, pursuant to FAS 128, as these stock 
options would have an anti-dilutive effect as the exercise prices are in excess of current market prices.  The total 
number of shares excluded was 314,500 and 262,500 as of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, 
respectively. 

 
Comprehensive income:  Comprehensive income includes net income, as well as the change in net 

unrealized gain on investment securities available for sale, net of tax.  Comprehensive income was $9.3 million, 
$13.6 million and $10.4 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006. 

  
Segment reporting:  The Company is managed as one unit and does not have separate operating 

segments.  The Company’s chief operating decision-makers use consolidated results to make operating and 
strategic decisions. 

  
Transfers of financial assets:  Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales only when the 

control over the financial assets has been surrendered.  Control over transferred assets is deemed surrendered 
when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions 
that constrain it from taking advantage of the right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the 
Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them 
before their maturity. 

  
Impairment of long-lived assets:  Management periodically reviews the carrying value of its long-lived 

assets to determine if impairment has occurred or whether changes in circumstances have occurred that would 
require a revision to the remaining useful life.  In making such determination, management evaluates the 
performance, on an undiscounted basis, of the underlying operations or assets which give rise to such amount. 

  
Income taxes:  Deferred taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are 

recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss carryforwards, and tax credit carryforwards 
and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences.  Temporary differences are the 
differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.  Deferred tax assets are 
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some 
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the 
effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. 
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Stock-based compensation: The Company’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (“1998 Plan”) and Trinity Capital 
Corporation 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (“2005 Plan”) were created for the benefit of key management and select 
employees.  Under the 1998 Plan, 400,000 shares (as adjusted for the stock split of December 19, 2002) from 
shares held in treasury or authorized but unissued common stock are reserved for granting options.  Under the 
2005 Plan, 500,000 shares from shares held in treasury or authorized but unissued common stock are reserved for 
granting stock-based incentive awards.  Both of these plans were approved by the Company’s shareholders.  The 
Board of Directors determines vesting and pricing of the awards.  All stock options granted through 
December 31, 2005 were granted at or above the market value of the stock at the date of the grant, with the 
exception of the July 1998 stock option grant which was granted at $0.25 below the last reported sale price on the 
date of grant.  All stock options vest in equal amounts over a three year period and must be exercised within ten 
years of the date of grant.  Stock appreciation rights granted after December 31, 2005 were also granted at or 
above the market value of the stock at the date of the grant, with the exception of the January 1, 2006 stock 
appreciation right grants which were approved on December 15, 2005 and granted at the December 31, 2005 
closing price to take advantage of accounting changes favorable to Trinity; all mature at five years. 

  
Recent accounting pronouncements: 

 
In December, 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statement 141R, Business Combinations (SFAS 141R).  

SFAS 141R will significantly change the accounting for business combinations.  Under Statement 141R, an 
acquiring entity will be required to recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the 
acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions.  SFAS 141R will change the accounting treatment for certain 
specific items, including: 
 

• Acquisition costs will be generally expensed as incurred 
 

• Noncontrolling interests (formerly known as “minority interests”) will be valued at fair value at the 
acquisition date 

 
• Acquired contingent liabilities will be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date and subsequently 

measured at either the higher of such amount or the amount determined under existing guidance for non-
acquired contingencies 

 
• The acquirer shall not recognize a separate valuation allowance as of the acquisition date for assets 

acquired in a business that are measured at their acquisition-date fair value. 
 

• Restructuring costs associated with a business combination will be generally expensed subsequent to the 
acquisition date. 

 
• Changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties after the acquisition 

date generally will affect income tax expense. 
 

SFAS 141R also includes a substantial number of new disclosure requirements.  SFAS 141R applies 
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first 
annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.  Earlier adoption is prohibited.  The adoption 
of this standard on January 1, 2009 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial 
Statements-an amendment of ARB No. 51.  A noncontrolling interest, sometimes called a minority interest, is the 
portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent.  The objective of this 
statement is to improve the relevance, comparability, and transparency of the financial information that a 
reporting entity provides in its consolidated financial statements by establishing accounting and reporting 
standards that require: 
 

• The ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent be clearly identified, 
labeled, and presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, but separate 
from the parent's equity. 
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• The amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest be 
clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated statement of income. 

 
• Changes in a parent’s ownership interest while the parent retains its controlling financial interest in its 

subsidiary be accounted for consistently.  A parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary changes if the 
parent purchases additional ownership interests in its subsidiary or if the parent sells some of its 
ownership interests in its subsidiary.  It also changes if the subsidiary reacquires some of its ownership 
interests or the subsidiary issues additional ownership interests.  All of those transactions are 
economically similar, and this statement requires that they be accounted for similarly, as equity 
transactions. 
 

• When a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained noncontrolling equity investment in the former 
subsidiary should initially be measured at fair value.  The gain or loss on the deconsolidation of the 
subsidiary is measured using the fair value of any noncontrolling equity investment rather than the 
carrying amount of that retained investment. 
 

• Entities provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the 
parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. 

 
This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 

2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years.  The adoption of this standard on January 1, 2009 had no 
material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Financial Instruments-an 
amendment of FASB Statement No.133.  The use and complexity of derivative instruments and hedging activities 
have increased significantly over the past several years.  Constituents have expressed concerns that the existing 
disclosure requirements in FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities, do not provide adequate information about how derivative and hedging activities affect an entity’s 
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows.  Accordingly, this statement requires enhanced 
disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial 
reporting.  This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods 
beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged.  This statement encourages, but does not 
require, comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption.  The adoption of this standard on January 
1, 2009 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles.  The objective of SFAS 162 is to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, 
or hierarchy, for selecting accounting principles to be used in preparing financial statements that are presented in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for nongovernmental entities.  The 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) has proposed an auditing standard that would remove 
the GAAP hierarchy from its interim auditing standards.  SFAS 162 is effective as of November 15, 2008.  The 
adoption of this standard had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

 
In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 163, Accounting for Financial Guarantee 

Insurance Contracts (SFAS 163).  This new standard clarifies how FASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and 
Reporting by Insurance Enterprises, applies to financial guarantee insurance contracts issued by insurance 
enterprises, including the recognition and measurement of premium revenue and claim liabilities.  It also requires 
expanded disclosures about financial guarantee insurance contracts. 
 

SFAS 163 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2008, and all interim periods within those fiscal years, except for disclosures about the insurance enterprise’s 
risk-management activities, which are effective the first period (including interim periods) beginning after May 
23, 2008.  Except for the required disclosures, earlier application is not permitted.  The adoption of this standard 
on January 1, 2009 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether 
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities” (FSP EITF 03-6-1).  
FSP EITF 03-6-1 provides that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to 
dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in 
the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. FSP EITF 03-6-1 was effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2008.  All previously reported earnings per share data will be retrospectively 
adjusted to conform with the provisions of FSP EITF 03-6-1.  The adoption of this standard on January 1, 2009 
had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

 
In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 157-3, Determining the Fair Value 

of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active (FSP 157-3).  FSP 157-3 clarifies the 
application of FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, in a market that is not active. FSP 157-3 is 
effective October 10, 2008, and for prior periods for which financial statements have not been issued.  Revisions 
resulting from a change in the valuation technique or its application should be accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimate following the guidance in FASB Statement No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error 
Corrections (SFAS 154).  However, the disclosure provisions in SFAS 154 for a change in accounting estimate 
are not required for revisions resulting from a change in valuation technique or its application.  The adoption of 
FSP 157-3 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 

Trust Assets:  Assets held by the Bank in fiduciary or agency capacities for its customers are not 
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as such items are not assets of the Bank. 

  
Reclassifications:  Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s 

presentation. 
  

Note 2. Restrictions on Cash and Due From Banks 
  

The Bank is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank, 
based on a percentage of deposits.  The total of those reserve balances was approximately $2.4 million and $1.3 
million at December 31, 2008 and 2007. 

  
The Company maintains some of its cash in bank deposit accounts at financial institutions other than its 

subsidiaries that, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.  The Company has not experienced any losses in 
such accounts.  The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash 
equivalents. 
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Note 3. Investment Securities 
  

Carrying amounts and fair values of investment securities are summarized as follows: 
 

AVAILABLE FOR SALE   
Amortized

Cost   

Gross 
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses    
Fair 

Value  
   (In thousands)  

December 31, 2008:           
Government sponsored agencies   $ 87,890   $ 2,297   $ —   $ 90,187  
States and political subdivisions   12,771   86   (37 )   12,820  
Equity securities   1    —   (1 )   —  

Totals   $ 100,662   $ 2,383   $  (38 )  $ 103,007  
           
December 31, 2007:           
Government sponsored agencies   $ 93,081   $ 122   $  (2 )  $ 93,201  
States and political subdivisions   6,391   21   (27 )   6,385  
Equity securities   1   3    —    4  

Totals   $ 99,473   $ 146   $  (29 )  $ 99,590  
 
 

HELD TO MATURITY   
Amortized

Cost   

Gross 
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses    
Fair 

Value  
   (In thousands)  

December 31, 2008:           
States and political subdivisions   $ 8,927   $ 1,179   $  (326 )  $ 9,780  

Totals   $ 8,927   $ 1,179   $  (326 )  $ 9,780  
           
December 31, 2007:           
States and political subdivisions   $ 9,159   $ —   $ —   $ 9,159  

Totals   $ 9,159   $ —   $ —   $ 9,159  
 
 

OTHER INVESTMENTS   
Amortized

Cost   

Gross 
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses    
Fair 

Value  
   (In thousands)  

December 31, 2008:           
Non-marketable equity securities (including FRB 

and FHLB stock)   $ 4,527   $ —   $ —   $ 4,527  
Investment in unconsolidated trusts   1,116    —    —    1,116  

Totals   $ 5,643   $ —   $ —   $ 5,643  
           
December 31, 2007:           
Non-marketable equity securities (including FRB 

and FHLB stock)   $ 6,264   $ —   $ —   $ 6,264  
Investment in unconsolidated trusts   1,116    —    —    1,116  

Totals   $ 7,380   $ —   $ —   $ 7,380  
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Realized net gains on sale of securities available for sale are summarized as follows: 
 

   For the Years Ended December 31,  
   2008   2007    2006  
   (In thousands)  

Gross realized gains        $ 555   $ 62   $ —  
Gross realized losses         —    —    —  

Net gains        $ 555   $ 62   $ —  
 

A summary of unrealized loss information for investment securities, categorized by security type, at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows: 
 

    Less than 12 Months   12 Months or Longer   Total  

AVAILABLE FOR SALE    
Fair 

Value   
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair 

Value   

Unrealized
Losses(1), 

(2)   
Fair 

Value    
Unrealized

Losses  
    (In thousands)  

December 31, 2008                  
Government sponsored agencies   $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —  
States and political subdivisions     —    —   947   (37 )    947   (37 )
Equity securities     1   (1 )   —    —     1   (1 )

Totals   $ 1   $  (1 )  $ 947   $  (37 )  $ 948   $  (38 )

                  
December 31, 2007                  
Government sponsored agencies   $ 5,002   $  (1 )  $ 3,080   $  (1 )  $ 8,082   $  (2 )
States and political subdivisions     1,193   (14 )  1,165   (13 )    2,358   (27 )
Equity securities     —    —    —    —     —    —  

Totals   $ 6,195   $  (15 )  $ 4,245   $  (14 )  $ 10,440   $  (29 )

 
 

    Less than 12 Months   12 Months or Longer   Total  

HELD TO MATURITY    
Fair 

Value   
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair 

Value   
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair 

Value    
Unrealized

Losses  
    (In thousands)  

December 31, 2008                      
States and political subdivisions        $ 1,315   $  (326 )  $ —   $ —   $ 1,315   $  (326 )

Totals        $ 1,315   $  (326 )  $ —   $ —   $ 1,315   $  (326 )

                 
December 31, 2007                      
States and political subdivisions        $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —  

Totals        $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —   $ —  

 
(1) The $37 thousand unrealized losses in available for sale securities twelve months or longer as of 

December 31, 2008 relates to unrealized losses on securities issued by local municipal issues with an 
S&P quality rating of AAA.  The Company has the ability to hold these securities until they mature. 
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(2) The $1 thousand in total unrealized losses in available for sale securities twelve months or longer as of 
December 31, 2007 relates to unrealized losses on U.S. government sponsored agencies with an S&P 
quality rating of AAA.  The Company has the ability to hold these securities until they mature.  The 
remaining $13 thousand of unrealized losses twelve months or longer as of December 31, 2007 relates to 
unrealized losses on state, county and municipal securities with Moody ratings of Aaa to Aa3.  The 
Company has the ability to hold these securities until they mature. 

 
The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities as of December 31, 2008 by contractual 

maturity are shown below.  Maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the 
right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalties. 
 

    Available for Sale   Held to Maturity   Other Investments  

    
Amortized

Cost   
Fair 

Value   
Amortized

Cost   
Fair 

Value   
Amortized 

Cost    
Fair 

Value  
    (In thousands)  

One year or less        $ 13,322   $ 13,461   $ —   $ —   $ 100   $ 100  
One to five years          82,387   84,587    —    —    —    —  
Five to ten years         3,348   3,392    —    —    —    —  
Over ten years         1,604   1,567   8,927    9,780    1,116    1,116  
Equity investments with no stated maturity      1    —    —    —    4,427    4,427  

Totals   $ 100,662   $ 103,007   $ 8,927   $ 9,780   $ 5,643   $ 5,643  

 
Securities with carrying amounts of $27.5 million and $21.1 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, 

respectively, were pledged as collateral on public deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by law. 
  

Note 4. Loans 
  

Loans consisted of: 
 

   December 31,  
   2008   2007  
   (In thousands)  

Commercial   $ 116,588   $ 118,670  
Commercial real estate   412,184    382,909  
Residential real estate   388,776    360,934  
Construction real estate   254,444    249,284  
Installment and other    60,746    61,028  

Total loans   1,232,738    1,172,825  
Unearned income   (2,204 )  (1,719 ) 

Gross loans   1,230,534    1,171,106  
Allowance for loan losses   (15,230 )  (13,533 ) 

Net loans   $ 1,215,304   $ 1,157,573  
 

Loans are made to individuals as well as commercial and tax exempt entities.  Specific loan terms vary 
as to interest rate, repayment and collateral requirements based on the type of loan requested and the credit 
worthiness of the prospective borrower.  Credit risk tends to be geographically concentrated, in that the majority 
of loan customers are located in the markets serviced by the Bank. 
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Non-performing loans as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows: 
 

   December 31,  
   2008   2007    2006  
   (In thousands)  

Non-accruing loans        $ 33,387   $ 11,789   $ 8,767  
Loans 90 days or more past due, still accruing interest         —    —    1  

Total non-performing loans        $ 33,387   $ 11,789   $ 8,768  
 

The reduction in interest income associated with loans on non-accrual status was $2.3 million, $882 
thousand and $734 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. 

  
Information about impaired loans as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 is as 

follows: 
 

   December 31,  
   2008   2007    2006  
   (In thousands)  

Loans for which there was a related allowance for credit losses   $  —   $  6,234   $  6,302  
Other impaired loans   39,373    3,653    2,174  

Total impaired loans   $ 39,373   $ 9,887   $ 8,476  
         
Average monthly balance of impaired loans   $ 37,127   $ 6,843   $ 5,968  
Related allowance for credit losses   $ —   $ 2,644   $ 2,177  
Interest income recognized on an accrual basis   $ —   $ —   $ —  
Interest income recognized on a cash basis   $ 47   $ 98   $ 90  
 

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows: 
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2008   2007    2006  
   (In thousands)  

Balance, beginning of year   $ 13,533   $ 12,167   $ 8,842  
Provision for loan losses   8,183   4,200     5,172  

Charge-offs   (7,016 )  (3,146 )   (2,328 ) 
Recoveries   530   312     481  

Net charge-offs   (6,486 )  (2,834 )   (1,847 ) 
Balance, end of year   $ 15,230   $ 13,533   $ 12,167  
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Loans outstanding to executive officers and directors of the Company, including companies in which 
these individuals have management control or beneficial ownership, at December 31, 2008 and 2007, were 
approximately $4.2 million and $2.8 million.  In the opinion of management, these loans have similar terms to 
other customer loans.  An analysis of the activity related to these loans for the years ended December 31, 2008 
and 2007 is as follows: 
 

   December 31,  
   2008    2007  
   (In thousands)  

Balance, beginning   $ 2,792   $ 2,240  
Additions   2,291    1,316  
Principal payments and other reductions   (839 )  (764 ) 
Balance ending   $ 4,244   $ 2,792  
 
Note 5. Loan Servicing and Mortgage Servicing Rights 
  

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
The unpaid balance of these loans as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, is summarized as follows: 
 

   December 31,  
   2008    2007  
   (In thousands)  

Mortgage loan portfolios serviced for:      
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA)   $ 940,778   $ 942,579  
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC)    1,091    1,549  
Other investors   307    342  

Total   $ 942,176   $ 944,470  
 

Custodial balances on deposit at the Bank in connection with the foregoing loan servicing were 
approximately $6.2 million and $4.5 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.  There were no custodial 
balances on deposit with other financial institutions during 2008 and 2007. 
  

An analysis of changes in mortgage servicing rights asset follows:  
 

  2008   2007    2006  
  (In thousands)  

Balance at beginning of period  $ 8,250   $ 9,867   $ 11,009  
Servicing rights originated and capitalized  1,398   1,236    1,602  
Amortization  (2,740 )  (2,853 )  (2,744 ) 
Balance at end of period  $ 6,908   $ 8,250   $ 9,867  
 
 Below is an analysis of changes in the mortgage servicing right asset valuation allowance: 
 

  2008  2007    2006 

  (In thousands) 
Balance at beginning of period  $  (184 )  $  (752 )  $  (1,230 )
Aggregate reductions credited to operations  1,347  702    484
Aggregate additions charged to operations  (2,800 )  (134 )  (6 )
Balance at end of period  $  (1,637 )  $  (184 )  $  (752 )
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 The fair values of the MSRs were $5.7 million, $8.5 million and $9.5 million on December 31, 2008, 2007 
and 2006, respectively. 
 

The primary risk characteristics of the underlying loans used to stratify the servicing assets for the 
purposes of measuring impairment are interest rate and original term. 
 

Our valuation allowance is used to recognize impairments of our MSRs.  An MSR is considered 
impaired when the market value of the MSR is below the amortized book value of the MSR.  The MSRs are 
accounted by risk tranche, with the interest rate and term of the underlying loan being the primary strata used in 
distinguishing the tranches.  Each tranche is evaluated separately for impairment. 
 

Our MSRs are analyzed for impairment on a monthly basis.  The underlying loans on all serviced loans 
are analyzed and, based upon the value of MSRs that are traded on the open market, a current market value for 
each risk tranche in our portfolio is assigned.  We then compare that market value to the current amortized book 
value for each tranche.  The change in market value (up to the amortized value of the MSR) is recorded as an 
adjustment to the MSR valuation allowance, with the offset being recorded as an addition or a reduction to 
income. 
 
 The following assumptions were used to calculate the market value of the MSRs as of December 31, 2008, 
2007 and 2006: 
 

  At December 31,  
  2008   2007    2006  

Prepayment Standard Assumption (PSA) speed       390.00 %  232.00 %   193.00 %
Discount rate       10.76   10.00     10.00  
Earnings rate       3.50   5.00     5.00  
 
Note 6. Other intangible assets 
 

In October 2008, the Bank purchased a customer list from Allocca & Brunett, Inc., an investment 
advisory company in Santa Fe, New Mexico, for $800 thousand.  The purpose of this acquisition was to broaden 
our customer base and increase assets under management in the bank’s trust operations.  This customer list is 
considered an intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, as amended.  Under SFAS 
No. 142, an intangible asset with a finite life shall be amortized over the useful life of the asset.  Where the useful 
life is not known, estimates are permissible. 

 
The useful life of the purchased customer list has been estimated at three years, based upon the purchase 

agreement entered into between the Bank and Allocca & Brunett, Inc.  This intangible asset is to be amortized to 
a residual value of zero at the end of the period using a straight-line amortization method. 

 
The value of the asset is primarily derived from the expectation that the customers of Allocca & Brunett, 

Inc. will be substantially acquired by the Bank during the amortization period.  Additional payments to Allocca & 
Brunett, Inc. may be required on the basis of the assets held by the Bank on each of the first three anniversaries of 
the closing date  The conversion of these accounts shall be monitored and, if the conversion rate falls below 
expectations, this asset may be deemed impaired.  The customer list would be reviewed for impairment under 
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.  This impairment will be 
realized as an expense in the period in which it is recognized.  Management expects to integrate the assets of 
Allocca & Brunett into the Bank’s existing Trust and Investment Services Department over the next two to six 
months. 
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During the year ended December 31, 2008, $44 thousand was amortized.  There was no amortization in 
2007.  The expected amortization of other intangible assets over the next five years at December 31, 2008 is as 
follows: 
 

    (In thousands)  
2009   $ 267  
2010   267  
2011   222  
2012   —  
2013   —  
Thereafter   —

Total   $ 756
 
 In addition to the acquired customer list, the Company had $3 thousand in trademarks as non-amortizing 
intangible assets outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. 
 
Note 7. Premises and Equipment 
  

Premises and equipment consisted of: 
 

    December 31,  
    2008   2007  

   (In thousands)  
Land and land improvements   $ 3,820   $ 3,820  
Buildings   15,830   15,820  
Furniture and equipment   24,230   22,343  
Construction in progress  725  —

Total   44,605   41,983  
Accumulated depreciation (20,199 ) (17,912 )

Total less depreciation   $ 24,406   $ 24,071  
 

Depreciation on premises and equipment totaled $2.4 million, $2.3 million and $2.4 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.  The construction in progress is for the new office in Santa Fe, 
scheduled for completion in 2009.  An additional $5.8 million is expected to be paid on this branch office during 
2009. 

  
Note 8. Deposits 
  

Deposits consisted of: 
 

  At December 31,  
  2008   2007  
  (In thousands)  

Demand deposits, noninterest bearing  $ 51,735   $ 50,751  
NOW and money market accounts  335,090    309,877  
Savings deposits  336,123    277,138  
Time certificates, $100,000 or more   323,948    327,618  
Other time certificates  204,698    210,074  

Total  $ 1,251,594   $ 1,175,458  
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At December 31, 2008, the scheduled maturities of time certificates were as follows: 
 

    (In thousands)  
2009   $ 419,909  
2010   66,251  
2011   28,525  
2012   6,948  
2013   7,013  
Thereafter   —  

Total   $ 528,646  
 

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had $1.0 million in certificates of deposit held under the 
Certificate of Deposit Registry Service (CDARS).  Under the service agreements, customer certificates of deposit 
in excess of the FDIC insurance limits are exchanged with deposits at other financial institutions, resulting in no 
net change in total deposits but resulting in increased FDIC insurance coverage.  Under regulatory guidelines and 
certain conditions, these may be considered brokered deposits.  The Company had no non-CDARS brokered 
deposits at December 31, 2008.  The Company had no CDARS or brokered deposits at December 31, 2007. 
 
Note 9. Short- and Long-term Borrowings, including Borrowings made by Employee Stock Ownership 
Plan (ESOP) 
  

Notes payable to the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were secured by 
a blanket assignment of mortgage loans or other collateral acceptable to FHLB, and generally had a fixed rate of 
interest, interest payable monthly and principal due at end of term, unless otherwise noted.  The total value of 
loans under the blanket assignment as of December 31, 2008 was $425.9 million. 
 
Maturity Date   Rate   Type   Index   Principal due   2008   2007  

                    (In thousands)  
07/18/2008   3.221   Fixed   —  At maturity   $ —   $ 40,000  
03/22/2010   4.667   Fixed   —  At maturity   20,000   20,000  
01/03/2011   6.031   Fixed   —  Monthly Amortization   1,232   1,269  
04/27/2021   6.343   Fixed   —  At maturity   2,300   2,300  

01/20/2008   7.250   Variable   
Citibank 

Prime  Monthly Amortization   —   271  
                $ 23,532   $ 63,840  
 

The following is a summary of debt payments required for years after 2008. 
 

    (In thousands)   
2009   $ 36  
2010   20,036  
2011   36  
2012   569  
2013   478  
Thereafter   2,377  

Total   $ 23,532  
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Note 10. Junior Subordinated Debt Owed to Unconsolidated Trusts 
  

The following table presents details on the junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts as of 
December 31, 2008: 
 
  Trust I  Trust III  Trust IV   Trust V   
 (Dollars in thousands)  
Date of issue March 23, 2000  May 11, 2004  June 29, 2005   September  21, 2006   
Amount of trust 

preferred securities 
issued $ 10,000  $ 6,000  $ 10,000   $ 10,000   

Rate on trust preferred 
securities 10.875 

 
% 4.88% (variable ) 6.88 % 6.83 %

Maturity March 8, 2030  September 8, 2034  November 23, 2035   December 15, 2036   
Date of first redemption March 8, 2010  September 8, 2009  August 23, 2010   September 15, 2011   
Common equity 

securities issued $ 310  $ 186  $ 310   $ 310   
Junior subordinated 

deferrable interest 
debentures owed $ 10,310  $ 6,186  $ 10,310   $ 10,310   

Rate on junior 
subordinated 
deferrable interest 
debentures 10.875 

 
% 4.88% (variable ) 6.88 % 6.83 %

 
On the dates of issue indicated above, the Trusts, being Delaware statutory business trusts, issued trust 

preferred securities (the “trust preferred securities”) in the amount and at the rate indicated above.  These 
securities represent preferred beneficial interests in the assets of the Trusts.  The trust preferred securities will 
mature on the dates indicated, and are redeemable in whole or in part at the option of Trinity at any time after the 
date of first redemption indicated above, with the approval of the Federal Reserve Board and in whole at any time 
upon the occurrence of certain events affecting their tax or regulatory capital treatment.  The Trusts also issued 
common equity securities to Trinity in the amounts indicated above.  The Trusts used the proceeds of the offering 
of the trust preferred securities to purchase junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures (the “debentures”) 
issued by Trinity, which have terms substantially similar to the trust preferred securities.  Trinity has the right to 
defer payments of interest on the debentures at any time or from time to time for a period of up to ten consecutive 
semi-annual periods with respect to each interest payment deferred.  Under the terms of the debentures, under 
certain circumstances of default or if Trinity  has elected to defer interest on the debentures, Trinity may not, with 
certain exceptions, declare or pay any dividends or distributions on its capital stock or purchase or acquire any of 
its capital stock.  Trinity used the majority of the proceeds from the sale of the debentures to add to Tier 1 and 
Tier 2 capital in order to support its growth and to purchase treasury stock. 
  

Trinity owns all of the outstanding common securities of the Trusts.  The Trusts are considered variable 
interest entities (VIEs) under Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, “Consolidation 
of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,” as revised.  Because 
Trinity is not the primary beneficiary of the Trusts, the financial statements of the Trusts are not included in the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company. 
   

In March 2005, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System issued a final rule allowing bank 
holding companies to continue to include qualifying trust preferred securities in their Tier 1 Capital for regulatory 
capital purposes, subject to a 25% limitation to all core (Tier I) capital elements, net of goodwill less any 
associated deferred tax liability.  The final rule provides a five-year transition period, ending March 31, 2009, for 
application of the aforementioned quantitative limitation.  As of December 31, 2008, 84.5% of the trust preferred 
securities noted in the table above qualified as Tier 1 capital and 15.5% qualified as Tier 2 capital under the final 
rule adopted in March 2005. 
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Payments of distributions on the trust preferred securities and payments on redemption of the trust 
preferred securities are guaranteed by Trinity on a limited basis.  Trinity also entered into an agreement as to 
expenses and liabilities with the Trusts pursuant to which it agreed, on a subordinated basis, to pay any costs, 
expenses or liabilities of the Trusts other than those arising under the trust preferred securities.  The obligations of 
Trinity under the junior subordinated debentures, the related indenture, the trust agreement establishing the 
Trusts, the guarantee and the agreement as to expenses and liabilities, in the aggregate, constitute a full and 
unconditional guarantee by Trinity of the Trusts’ obligations under the trust preferred securities. 
   

Issuance costs of $615 thousand related to Trust I and Trust III and an issue paid off during 2006 (not 
presented in the above table) were deferred and are being amortized over the period until mandatory redemption 
of the securities in March 2030 and September 2034, respectively.  During 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, 
$14 thousand, $14 thousand and $194 thousand of these issuance costs were amortized.  The total amount of the 
issuance costs of the issue paid off in 2006 was amortized that year.  Unamortized issuance costs were $297 
thousand, $311 thousand and $325 thousand at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  There were no 
issuance costs associated with the other trust preferred security issues. 
  

Dividends accrued and unpaid to securities holders totaled $485 thousand and $498 thousand on 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
 
Note 11. Description of Leasing Arrangements 
 

The Company is leasing land in Santa Fe and is currently building an office on the site.  The 
construction of the office is underway and expected to be completed in 2009.  The lease has an 8 year term and 
expires in 2014, and contains an option to purchase the land at a set price at the termination of the initial term of 
the lease.  This lease is classified as a capital lease.  The Company also holds a note and mortgage on this land, 
and the interest payments received on the note are approximately equal to the payments made on the lease and the 
principal due at maturity (simultaneous with the lease maturity) will largely offset the option purchase price. 

 
In addition, the Company leases certain equipment, ATM location space, office space and storage space 

from other parties under operating leases expiring through 2010.  Lease payments for the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 totaled $370 thousand, $361 thousand and $289 thousand, respectively. 

 
The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together 

with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2008: 
 

    (In thousands)  
2009   $ 185  
2010   185  
2011   185  
2012   185  
2013    185  
Thereafter   3,040
  Total minimum lease payments    3,965
Less: Amount representing estimated executory costs (such as taxes, maintenance and 

insurance), including profit thereon, included in total minimum lease payments   —
Net minimum lease payments   3,965
Less: Amount representing interest   (1,754 )
Present value of net minimum lease payments  $ 2,211
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Commitments for minimum future rentals under the operating leases were as follows at December 31, 
2008: 
 

    (In thousands)  
2009   $ 387  
2010   116  
2011   —  
2012   —  
2013   —  
Thereafter   —

Total   $ 503
 
Note 12. Retirement Plans 
  

The Company has a qualified Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) for the benefit of all 
employees who are at least 18 years of age and have completed 1,000 hours of service during the Plan year.  The 
employee’s interest in the ESOP vests over a period of six years to comply with the requirements of the Pension 
Protection Act of 2006.  The ESOP was established in January 1989 and is a defined contribution plan subject to 
the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. 

  
The ESOP is funded by annual discretionary contributions by the Company as determined by its Board 

of Directors.  The Company’s discretionary contributions to the ESOP in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were 
approximately $564 thousand, $483 thousand and $512 thousand, respectively. 

  
The ESOP had a note payable of $271 thousand outstanding with a local bank as of December 31, 2007.  

The note required annual principal payments of $471 thousand with the final payment of principal made on 
January 20, 2008.  Interest was variable at Citibank Prime (7.25% at December 31, 2007) and was payable semi-
annually.  Collateral for this loan was Company stock owned by the ESOP and unallocated to the plan 
participants.  Shares were released from collateral based upon the ratio of principal and interest paid during the 
year to total principal and interest paid for the current year and payable for all future plan years.  Allocations of 
common stock purchased, released and forfeited are based on the eligible base salary compensation of each 
participant.  The note payable was recorded as debt and the shares pledged as collateral netted against stock 
owned by ESOP participants in the accompanying balance sheets.  Dividends on allocated ESOP shares are 
recorded as a reduction of retained earnings; dividends on unallocated ESOP shares are recorded as a reduction of 
debt and accrued interest.  The note was paid off in full on January 14, 2008.  All shares pledged as collateral 
were released and allocated to plan participants. 

 
All shares held by the ESOP, acquired prior to the issuance of AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, 

Employers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans (SOP 93-6) are included in the computation of 
average common shares and common share equivalents.  This accounting treatment is grandfathered under SOP 
93-6 for shares purchased prior to December 31, 1992.  As permitted by SOP 93-6, compensation expense for 
shares released is equal to the original acquisition cost of the shares if acquired prior to December 31, 1992.  As 
shares acquired after SOP 93-6 were released from collateral, the Company reported compensation expense equal 
to the current fair value of the shares, and the shares became outstanding for earnings-per-share computations. 

  
Shares of the Company held by the ESOP acquired prior to December 31, 1992 totaled 235,250 and 

257,182 shares at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
 



 
89 

 

Shares of the Company held by the ESOP acquired after December 31, 1992 are as follows: 
 

    December 31,  
    2008   2007  

Allocated shares   367,264    324,220  
Shares committed to be released   —    27,263  
Unallocated (unearned) shares   —    16,937  

Total shares acquired after December 31, 1992   367,264    368,420  
Estimated fair value of unallocated (unearned) shares   $ —   $ 457,000  

 
There was no compensation expense recognized for ESOP shares acquired prior to December 31, 1992 

during the years 2008, 2007 and 2006.  Compensation expense recognized for ESOP shares acquired after 
December 31, 1992 during 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $611 thousand, $666 thousand and $731 thousand, 
respectively. 

  
Under federal income tax regulations, the employer securities that are held by the Plan and its 

participants and that are not readily tradable on an established market or that are subject to trading limitations 
include a put option (liquidity put).  The liquidity put is a right to demand that the Company buy shares of its 
stock held by the participant for which there is no readily available market.  The put price is representative of the 
fair value of the stock.  The Company may pay the purchase price over a five-year period.  The purpose of the 
liquidity put is to ensure that the participant has the ability to ultimately obtain cash.  The fair value of the 
allocated shares subject to repurchase was $13.1 million and $16.4 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. 

  
The Company’s employees may also participate in a tax-deferred savings plan (401(k)) to which the 

Company does not contribute. 
  

Note 13. Stock Incentives 
  

The Company’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (“1998 Plan”) and Trinity Capital Corporation 2005 Stock 
Incentive Plan (“2005 Plan”) were created for the benefit of key management and select employees.  Under the 
1998 Plan, 400,000 shares (as adjusted for the stock split of December 19, 2002) from shares held in treasury or 
authorized but unissued common stock are reserved for granting options.  Under the 2005 Plan, 500,000 shares 
from shares held in treasury or authorized but unissued common stock are reserved for granting stock-based 
incentive awards.  Both of these plans were approved by the Company’s shareholders.  The Board of Directors 
determine vesting and pricing of the awards.  All stock options granted through December 31, 2005 were granted 
at or above the market value of the stock at the date of the grant, with the exception of the July 1998 stock option 
grant which was granted at $0.25 below the last reported sale price on the date of grant.  All stock options vest in 
equal amounts over a three year period and must be exercised within ten years of the date of grant.  Stock 
appreciation rights granted after December 31, 2005 were also granted at or above the market value of the stock 
at the date of the grant, with the exception of the January 1, 2006 stock appreciation right grants which were 
approved on December 15, 2005 and granted at the December 31, 2005 closing price to take advantage of 
accounting changes favorable to Trinity.  All stock appreciation rights vest and mature at five years. 

 
Under the provisions of SFAS 123(R), the Company is required to recognize compensation expense for 

share-based compensation that vests after adoption of the new standard.  The Company uses the Black-Scholes 
model to value the stock options and stock appreciation rights on the date of the grant, and recognizes this 
expense over the remaining vesting term for the stock options or stock appreciation rights.  Key assumptions used 
in this valuation method (detailed below) are the volatility of the Company’s stock price, a risk-free rate of return 
(using the U.S. Treasury yield curve) based on the expected term from grant date to exercise date and an annual 
dividend rate based upon the current market price.  Expected term from grant date is based upon the historical 
time from grant to exercise experienced by the Company.  Because share-based compensation vesting in the 
current periods was granted on a variety of dates, the assumptions are presented as weighted averages in those 
assumptions. 
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The following table details the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model for share-based 
compensation granted during the respective periods.  There were no stock incentives granted in 2008.  The 
weighted-average grant date fair value of stock incentives granted during 2007 and 2006 was $3.74 and $4.33, 
respectively. 
 

  Twelve Months Ended December 31,  
  2008  2007   2006  
         

Stock price volatility —  14.74 % 14.12 % 
Risk-free rate —  3.45 % 4.35 % 
Expected dividends —  2.79 % 2.29 % 
Expected term (in years) —  5  5  
 
 A summary of stock option and stock appreciation right activity under the 1998 Plan and the 2005 Plan 
as of December 31, 2008, and changes during the year is presented below: 
 

  Shares  
Weighted-Average 

Exercise Price  

Weighted-Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Term, 
in years  

Aggregate Intrinsic 
Value (in 

thousands)  
    

Outstanding at January 1, 2008  449,395  $ 26.38    
Granted  —  —    
Exercised  (14,000 ) 20.00    
Forfeited or expired  —  —    
Outstanding at December 31, 

2008  435,395  $ 26.58  3.73  $ 1,832
Exercisable at December 31, 2008  251,895  $ 26.02  4.37  $ 1,099
 
 Steve W. Wells exercised 14,000 non-qualified stock options at $20.00 per share in June of 2008.  The 
total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $62 thousand, $64 thousand and $168 
thousand. 
 
 As of December 31, 2008, there was $404 thousand of total unrecognized compensation cost related to 
non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 2005 Plan.  There was no unrecognized 
compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 1998 plan.  
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average vesting period of 2.9 years.  Fourteen thousand 
(14,000) shares vested during 2008 for which the Company expensed $73 thousand.  During the same period, we 
expensed $147 thousand for stock appreciation rights that will vest in 2011 and 2012. 
 
Note 14. Income Taxes 
  

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in 
Income Taxes.  The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the income tax positions taken and to be 
taken on its tax returns and that its accrual for tax liabilities are adequate for the open years is based on an 
assessment of many factors, including past experience and interpretations of tax law.  The Company had no 
unrecognized tax benefits which would require an adjustment to the January 1, 2007 beginning balance of 
retained earnings. 
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The current and deferred components of the provision for Federal income tax expense for the years 
2008, 2007 and 2006 are as follows: 
 

    Years Ended December 31,  
    2008   2007   2006  
    (In thousands)  

Current income tax expense:         
Federal   $ 5,284  $ 7,608   $ 6,799  
State   875  972   1,170  

Deferred income tax (benefit) expense:        
Federal   (1,393 ) (1,074 )  (1,009 )
State (183 ) (141 )  (132 )

Total income tax expense   $ 4,583  $ 7,365   $ 6,828  
 

A deferred tax asset or liability is recognized to reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 
used for income tax purposes.  Significant temporary differences that gave rise to the deferred tax assets and 
liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows: 
 

    2008 Deferred   2007 Deferred  
    Asset   Liability   Asset   Liability  
    (In thousands)  

Prepaid Expenses   $ —   $ 427   $ —   $ 321  
Allowance for loan losses    6,030   —    5,358   —  
Mortgage servicing rights   —   2,087   —   3,194  
Investment securities   —  2   —  137  
Premises and equipment   —   1,237   —   1,248  
Stock dividends on FHLB stock   —   187   —   316  
Loans   45   —   527   —  
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale   —   928   —   46  
Accrued compensation   300     274   —  
Employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) compensation   —   —   17   —  
Stock options and stock appreciation rights expensed   296   —   209   —  
Other real estate owned (OREO)   26   —   —   —  

Total deferred taxes   $ 6,697   $ 4,868   $ 6,385   $ 5,262  
 

The net deferred tax asset of $1.8 million and deferred tax liability of $1.1 million in 2008 and 2007, 
respectively, was reported in other assets. 

 
Items causing differences between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate are summarized as 

follows: 
 

    Year ended December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   
    Amount   Rate   Amount   Rate   Amount   Rate    
    (In thousands)   

Statutory tax rate   $ 4,404   35.00 %$ 7,243   35.00 % $ 5,999   35.00 %
Net tax exempt interest income   (255 ) (2.03 ) (336 ) (1.62 ) (276 ) (1.61 ) 
Interest disallowance   25  0.20   49  0.24   30  0.18   
Other, net   (41 ) (0.33 ) (283 ) (1.37 )  400  2.33   
State income tax net of federal 

benefit   450  3.58   692  3.34   675  3.94   
Provision for income taxes   $ 4,583  36.42 %$ 7,365  35.59 % $ 6,828  39.84 %
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Note 15. Commitments, Contingencies and Off-Balance Sheet Activities 
  

Credit-related financial instruments:  The Company is a party to credit-related commitments with off-
balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers.  These credit-
related commitments include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and commercial letters of 
credit.  Such credit-related commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in 
excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. 

  
The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these credit-related 

commitments.  The Bank follows the same credit policies in making credit-related commitments as it does for on-
balance-sheet instruments. 

  
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the following credit-related commitments were outstanding whose 

contract amounts represent credit risk: 
 

    Contract Amount  
    December 31, 2008   December 31, 2007  
    (In thousands)  

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit   $ 201,001   $ 206,424  
Commercial and standby letters of credit   20,468  20,321  
 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of 
any condition established in the contract.  Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require a payment of a fee.  The commitments for equity lines of credit may expire 
without being drawn upon.  Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements.  The amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Bank, is based on 
management’s credit evaluation of the customer.  Unfunded commitments under commercial lines of credit, 
revolving credit lines and overdraft protection agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of 
credit to existing customers.  Overdraft protection agreements are uncollateralized, but most other unfunded 
commitments have collateral.  These unfunded lines of credit usually do not contain a specified maturity date and 
may not necessarily be drawn upon to the total extent to which the Bank is committed. 

  
Outstanding Letters of Credit:  In addition to short and long term borrowings from the Federal Home 

Loan Bank (FHLB), the FHLB has issued letters of credit to various public entities with deposits at the Bank.  
These letters of credit are issued to collateralize the deposits of these entities at the Bank as required or allowed 
under law.  The total value of these letters of credit was $157.7 million and $129.7 million as of December 31, 
2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.  As of December 31, 2008, all letters of credit had original terms of 
approximately one year.  These letters are secured under the blanket assignment of mortgage loans or other 
collateral acceptable to the FHLB that also secures our short and long term borrowings from FHLB. 

 
Commercial and standby letters of credit are conditional credit-related commitments issued by the Bank 

to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party.  Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support 
public and private borrowing arrangements.  Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within 
one year.  The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is the same as that involved in extending loans to 
customers.  The Bank generally holds collateral supporting those credit-related commitments, if deemed 
necessary.  In the event the customer does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the 
third party, the Bank would be required to fund the credit-related commitment.  The maximum potential amount 
of future payments the Bank could be required to make is represented by the contractual amount shown in the 
summary above.  If the credit-related commitment is funded, the Bank would be entitled to seek recovery from 
the customer.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007, no amounts have been recorded as liabilities for the Company’s 
potential obligations under these credit-related commitments.  The fair value of these credit-related commitments 
is approximately equal to the fees collected when granting these letters of credit.  These fees collected were $38 
thousand and $26 thousand as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 respectively, and are included in “other liabilities” 
on the Company’s balance sheet. 

  



 
93 

 

Concentrations of credit risk:  The majority of the loans, commitments to extend credit, and standby 
letters of credit have been granted to customers in Los Alamos, Santa Fe and surrounding communities.  
Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its loans are made to businesses and 
individuals associated with, or employed by, Los Alamos National Laboratory (“the Laboratory”). The ability of 
such borrowers to honor their contracts is predominately dependent upon the continued operation and funding of 
the Laboratory. Investments in securities issued by states and political subdivisions involve governmental entities 
within the state of New Mexico. The distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution 
of loans outstanding.  Standby letters of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers. 
  
Note 16. Litigation 
  
 Neither Trinity, the Bank, Title Guaranty, Cottonwood, TCC Advisors or TCC Funds are involved in 
any pending legal proceedings, other than routine legal proceedings occurring in the normal course of business 
and those otherwise specifically stated herein, which, in the opinion of management, in the aggregate, are not 
material to our consolidated financial condition. 

  
Note 17. Derivative Financial Instruments 
  

In the normal course of business, the Bank uses a variety of financial instruments to service the financial 
needs of customers and to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.  Derivative instruments that the 
Bank uses as part of its interest rate risk management strategy include mandatory forward delivery commitments 
and rate lock commitments. 

  
As a result of using over-the-counter derivative instruments, the Bank has potential exposure to credit 

loss in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties.  The Bank manages this credit risk by selecting only 
well established, financially strong counterparties, spreading the credit risk amongst many such counterparties 
and by placing contractual limits on the amount of unsecured credit risk from any single counterparty.  The 
Bank’s exposure to credit risk in the event of default by counterparty is the current cost of replacing the contracts 
net of any available margins retained by the Bank.  However, if the borrower defaults on the commitment the 
Bank requires the borrower to cover these costs. 

  
The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 149 effective July 1, 2003.  The Company’s 

derivative instruments outstanding at December 31, 2008 include commitments to fund loans held for sale.  As 
per Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 105, Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments, the interest 
rate lock commitment was valued at zero at inception.  The rate locks will continue to be adjusted for changes in 
value resulting from changes in market interest rates. 

  
The Company originates single-family residential loans for sale pursuant to programs with the Federal 

National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”).  At the time the interest rate is locked in by the borrower, the Bank  
concurrently enters into a forward loan sale agreement with respect to the sale of such loan at a set price in an 
effort to manage the interest rate risk inherent in the locked loan commitment.  Any change in the fair value of 
the loan commitment after the borrower locks in the interest rate is substantially offset by the corresponding 
change in the fair value of the forward loan sale agreement related to such loan.  The period from the time the 
borrower locks in the interest rate to the time the Bank funds the loan and sells it to FNMA is generally 60 days.  
The fair value of each instrument will rise or fall in response to changes in market interest rates subsequent to the 
dates the interest rate locks and forward loan sale agreements are entered into.  In the event that interest rates rise 
after the Bank enters into an interest rate lock, the fair value of the loan commitment will decline.  However, the 
fair value of the forward loan sale agreement related to such loan commitment should increase by substantially 
the same amount, effectively eliminating the Company’s interest rate and price risk. 

  
At December 31, 2008 the Company had notional amounts of $15.2 million in contracts with customers 

and $23.8 million in contracts with FNMA for interest rate lock commitments outstanding related to loans being 
originated for sale.  The related fair values of these commitments were an asset of $58 thousand and a liability of 
$118 thousand as of December 31, 2008. 
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The Company has outstanding loan commitments, excluding undisbursed portion of loans in process and 
equity lines of credit, of approximately $154.9 million and $164.8 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  Of these commitments outstanding, the breakdown between fixed- and adjustable-rate loans is as 
follows: 
 

    At December 31,  
    2008   2007  
    (In thousands)  

Fixed-rate (ranging from 2.0% to 11.0%)   $ 8,766   $ 21,743  
Adjustable-rate   146,092   143,067  

Total   $ 154,858   $ 164,810  
 
Note 18. Regulatory Matters 
  

The Company’s primary source of cash is dividends from the Bank.  The Bank is subject to certain 
restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare without prior regulatory approval.  Generally, the 
Company cannot pay dividends that exceed its net income or which may weaken its financial health.  The Bank 
cannot pay dividends in any calendar year that, in the aggregate, exceed the Bank’s year-to-date net income plus 
its retained income for the two proceeding years.  Additionally, the Bank cannot pay dividends that are in excess 
of the amount which would cause the Bank to fall below the minimum required for capital adequacy purposes. 

  
The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the 

federal banking agencies.  Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory—and 
additional discretionary—actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the 
Company’s financial statements.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt 
corrective action, the Company’s and the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items are 
calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  The Company’s and the Bank’s capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and 
other factors.  Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies. 

  
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the 

Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined 
in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as 
defined).  The Company and the Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject as of 
December 31, 2008. 

  
As of December 31, 2008, the Bank was “well capitalized” as defined by OCC regulations.  To be 

categorized as well capitalized the Bank must maintain the total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage 
ratios as set forth in the well capitalized column in the table below.  There are no conditions or events since that 
notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s status as “well-capitalized.” 
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The required and actual amounts and ratios for the Company and the Bank are presented below: 
 

    Actual   
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes   

To Be Well  
Capitalized Under  Prompt 

Corrective Action 
Provisions   

    Amount   Ratio   Amount   Ratio   Amount   Ratio   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

As of December 31, 2008                
Total capital (to risk-weighted 

assets):                
Consolidated   $ 139,806  11.80 % $ 94,772  8.00 % N/A  N/A   
Bank only   133,407  11.33  94,162  8.00   $ 117,703   10.00 %

Tier 1 capital (to risk-
weighted assets):                
Consolidated   119,421  10.08  47,386  4.00   N/A   N/A   
Bank only   118,688  10.08  47,081  4.00   70,622   6.00   

Tier 1 capital (to average 
assets):                
Consolidated   119,421  8.35  57,239  4.00   N/A   N/A   
Bank only   118,688  8.34  56,908  4.00   71,135   5.00   

 
 

    Actual   
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes   

To Be Well  
Capitalized Under  Prompt 

Corrective Action 
Provisions   

    Amount   Ratio   Amount   Ratio   Amount   Ratio   
    (Dollars in thousands)   

As of December 31, 2007                 
Total capital (to risk-weighted 

assets):                 
Consolidated   $ 137,100  12.11 % $ 90,606  8.00 % N/A  N/A   
Bank only   130,713  11.60   90,109  8.00   $ 112,636   10.00 %

Tier 1 capital (to risk-
weighted assets):                 
Consolidated   116,908  10.32   45,303  4.00   N/A   N/A   
Bank only   117,179  10.40   45,054  4.00   67,582   6.00   

Tier 1 capital (to average 
assets):                 
Consolidated   116,908  8.19   57,071  4.00   N/A   N/A   
Bank only   117,179  8.25   56,788  4.00   70,985   5.00   

 
N/A—not applicable 
 
Note 19. Fair Value Measurements 
 

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157, Fair Value 
Measurements for financial assets and financial liabilities.  This Statement defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and expands 
disclosures about fair value measurements.  Valuation techniques are based upon observable and unobservable 
inputs.  Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs 
reflect the Company’s assumptions about market value.  These two types of inputs create the following fair value 
hierarchy: 
 

• Level 1 - Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. 
• Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or 

similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations whose inputs are 
observable. 
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• Level 3- Instruments whose significant value drivers are unobservable. 
 

The following table summarizes the Company’s financial instruments that were measured at fair value 
on a recurring basis at December 31, 2008: 

 
 Level 1 Inputs  Level 2 Inputs  Level 3 Inputs  Total Fair Value 

 (In thousands) 
Foreign currency in vault $ 301  $ —  $ —  $ 301  
Securities available for sale  —   103,007   —   103,007  
Derivative assets  —   58   —   58  
Derivative liabilities  —   (118 )  —   (118 ) 

 
Foreign currency in vault is valued at current market values in actively traded currency markets.  Changes 

in fair market values are recorded in other income. 
 
Securities available for sale are valued based upon open-market quotes obtained from reputable third-

party brokers.  Market pricing is based upon specific CUSIP identification for each individual security.  Changes 
in fair market value are recorded in other comprehensive income as the securities are available for sale. 

 
Derivative assets and liabilities represent interest rate contracts between the Company and loan 

customers, and between the Company and outside parties to whom we have made a commitment to sell 
residential mortgage loans at a set interest rate.  These are valued based upon the differential between the interest 
rates upon the inception of the contract and the current market interest rates for similar products.  Changes in 
market value are recorded in current earnings. 

 
Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, 

the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain 
circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).  These assets are recorded at the lower of 
amortized cost or current market value, and a valuation allowance reflects any unrealized market value losses, offset 
to an expense account.  The following table summarizes the Company’s financial instruments that were measured at 
fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2008: 

 
 Level 1 Inputs  Level 2 Inputs  Level 3 Inputs  Total Fair Value 

 (In thousands) 
Impaired loans $ —  $ —  $ 39,373  $ 39,373 
Loans held for sale  —   —   —   — 
Mortgage servicing rights  —   3,442   —   3,442 

 
Fair value measurements for impaired loans are performed pursuant to SFAS No. 114, and are based 

upon one of three methods to measure impairment: the fair value of the collateral less disposition costs, the 
present value of expected future cash flows method, or the observable market price of a loan method.  A loan 
may be considered impaired, but the value is considered sufficient to support a fair value equal to or greater than 
the carrying value of the loan, and no specific reserve is deemed necessary to record such impairment.  The 
change in fair value of impaired assets that were valued based upon level three inputs, for which there was a 
specifically identified reserve, resulted in a decrease of specifically allocated reserve of $2.6 million for 2008.  
The loss or gain in specifically allocated reserve is not recorded directly as an adjustment to current earnings or 
comprehensive income, but rather as an adjustment component in determining the overall adequacy of the loan 
loss reserve.  Such adjustments to the estimated fair value of impaired loans may result in increases or decreases 
to the provision for loan losses recorded in current earnings.  
 

Loans held for sale are valued based upon open market quotes obtained from the Federal National 
Mortgage Association (FNMA).  Market pricing is based upon mortgage loans with similar terms and interest rates.  
The change in market value (up to the amortized value of the loans held for sale) is recorded as an adjustment to 
the loans held for sale valuation allowance, with the offset being recorded as an addition or a reduction in current 
earnings.  There were no loans held for sale with an associated valuation allowance as of December 31, 2008. 
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Mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) are valued based upon the value of MSRs that are traded on the open 
market and a current market value for each risk tranche in our portfolio is assigned.  We then compare that 
market value to the current amortized book value for each tranche.  The change in market value (up to the 
amortized value of the MSR) is recorded as an adjustment to the MSR valuation allowance, with the offset being 
recorded as an addition or a reduction in current earnings.  Only the tranches that are deemed impaired are 
included in the above table. 
 
Note 20. Condensed Parent Company Financial Information 
  

The condensed financial statements of Trinity Capital Corporation (parent company only) are presented 
below: 

  
Balance Sheets 

 
    December 31,  
    2008   2007  
    (In thousands)  

Assets       
Cash   $ 4,430   $ 5,172  
Investments in subsidiaries   122,593   120,310  
Other assets   7,803   5,600  

Total assets   $ 134,826   $ 131,082  
        
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity       
Dividends payable   $ 2,579   $ 2,600  
Junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts   37,116   37,116  
Other liabilities   3,846   3,339  
Stock owned by Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) participants   13,105   16,656  
Stockholders’ equity   78,180   71,371  

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 134,826   $ 131,082  
 

Statements of Income 
 

    Years Ended December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   
    (In thousands)   

Dividends from subsidiaries   $ 8,816  $ 8,734  $ 7,514   
Interest and other income  246  242  —  
Interest and other expense (3,536 ) (3,699 ) (3,718 )

Income before income tax benefit and equity in undistributed net 
income of subsidiaries   5,526  5,277  3,796  

Income tax benefit   1,262  1,558  1,363  
Income before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries   6,788  6,835  5,159  

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries   1,211  6,494  5,152  
Net income   $ 7,999  $ 13,329  $ 10,311   
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Statements of Cash Flows 
 

    Years Ended December 31,   
    2008   2007   2006   
    (In thousands)   

Cash Flows From Operating Activities          
Net income   $ 7,999  $ 13,329   $ 10,311   

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) 
operating activities:           
Amortization of junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated 

trusts issuance costs   14  14   194   
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries   (1,211 ) (6,494 ) (5,152 )
Decrease (increase) in taxes receivable from subsidiaries   73  680  (678 )
(Increase) in other assets   (2,217 ) (54 ) (95 )
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities   1,282  607  1  
(Decrease) increase in TPS accrued dividend payable   (13 ) (10 ) (6 )
Tax benefit recognized for exercise of stock options   (43 ) (57 ) (331 )

Net cash provided by operating activities   5,884  8,015  4,244  
Cash Flows From Investing Activities       

Purchase of loans  —  —  (2,211 )
Acquisition of leased property under capital leases  —  —  (2,211 )
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries (220 ) (238 ) (821 )

Net cash (used in) investing activities (220 ) (238 ) (5,243 )
        
Cash Flows From Financing Activities       

Purchase of treasury stock   (1,802 ) (2,509 ) (2,926 )
Issuance of treasury stock   543  471  1,656  
Dividends paid   (5,176 ) (4,560 ) (4,461 )
Dividends paid on unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

(ESOP) stock   (14 ) (31 ) (48 )
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debt owed to 

unconsolidated trusts   —  —  10,310  
Repayment of junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated 

trusts  —  —  (6,186 )
Acquisition of obligations under capital leases  —  —  2,211  
Tax benefit recognized for exercise of stock options   43  57  331  

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (6,406 ) (6,572 ) 887
Net increase (decrease) in cash   (742 ) 1,205  (112 )

Cash:         
Beginning of year   5,172  3,967   4,079   
End of year   $ 4,430  $ 5,172   $ 3,967   
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Note 21. Income by Quarter (Unaudited) 
  

Presented in the table below is the income of the Company by quarter: 
 

    Three Months Ended 2008   Three Months Ended 2007  
    December   September  June   March   December   September   June   March  
    (Thousands of dollars, except per share data)  

Interest income   $ 20,097   $ 20,244  $ 20,750  $ 22,109  $ 24,447  $ 25,039   $ 23,669   $ 23,834  
Interest expense   7,487   8,566  9,345  10,538  12,204  12,348   11,804   11,642  

Net interest income   12,610   11,678  11,405  11,571  12,243  12,691   11,865   12,192  
Provision for loan losses   4,093   1,840  1,200  1,050  1,050  1,050   1,050   1,050  

Net interest income 
after provision for 
loan losses   8,517   9,838  10,205  10,521  11,193  11,641   10,815   11,142  

Other income   2,517   2,558  3,021  3,448  2,552  2,653   2,875   2,428  
Other expense   10,976   8,741  8,923  9,403  8,656  8,618   8,595   8,736  

Income before income 
taxes   58   3,655  4,303  4,566  5,089  5,676   5,095   4,834  

Income taxes   (64 )  1,359  1,576  1,712  1,813  1,944   1,831   1,777  
Net income   $ 122   $ 2,296  $ 2,727  $ 2,854  $ 3,276  $ 3,732   $ 3,264   $ 3,057  
                      
Basic earnings per share   $ 0.02   $ 0.35  $ 0.42  $ 0.44  $ 0.51  $ 0.57   $ 0.50   $ 0.47  
                      
Diluted earnings per 
share   $ 0.02   $ 0.35  $ 0.42  $ 0.44  $ 0.50  $ 0.57   $ 0.50   $ 0.46  
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. 
  

None. 
  

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures. 
  
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
  

We have established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to 
the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to the officers who certify our financial 
reports and to other members of senior management and the board of directors and to ensure that information that 
is required to be disclosed in reports we file with the SEC is properly and timely recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported. A review and evaluation was performed by our management, including the Company’s 
Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”), of the effectiveness of the design 
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2008 pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based upon and as of the date of that review and evaluation, the CEO 
and CFO have concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 
2008. 

  
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
  

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appears under Item 8, “Financial 
Statements and Supplemental Data” on page 57 of this Form 10-K. 

  
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
  

There have been no changes to our internal control over financial reporting during the last fiscal quarter 
that have affected, or are reasonably likely to affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

  
Item 9B. Other Information. 

None 
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PART III 

  
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 
  

The following information is incorporated herein by reference to Trinity’s Proxy Statement for the 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 21, 2009 under the headings indicated: information with 
respect to Trinity’s directors, under the heading “Item I - Election of Directors;” information regarding Trinity’s 
audit committee and its designation of an audit committee financial expert, under the heading “Board of 
Directors and Corporate Governance – Audit Committee;” information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) 
of the Securities Exchange Act, under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance;” 
and information regarding Trinity’s executive officers, under the heading “Trinity’s Named Executive Officers.”  

 
Trinity’s Code of Business Conduct and Business Ethics (the “Code”) exemplifies Trinity’s history of 

requiring adherence to high standards of ethical conduct and business practices. Trinity’s Code is available on 
Trinity’s website at www.lanb.com/tcc/management.asp. All of Trinity’s employees, officers, including the Chief 
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and all directors are required to fully comply with the Code.  If 
Trinity’s Code is amended or a waiver is granted, such modification or waiver will be posted promptly on the 
website in accordance with SEC rules.  

 
Item 11. Executive Compensation. 
 

The information regarding executive compensation appears in Trinity’s Proxy Statement for the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 21, 2009 under the headings: “Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis,” “Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation” and is incorporated herein by reference; 
provided, however, that the Compensation Committee Report will not be deemed to be filed with the SEC. 

 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters. 
 

The information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management appears in 
the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 21, 2009 under the 
heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors and Management” and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

 
Aggregated Equity Plan Information. Our current stock-based benefit plans and arrangements consist 

of the 1998 Stock Option Plan that was approved by shareholders at the 1998 Annual Meeting and the Trinity 
Capital Corporation 2005 Stock Incentive Plan that was approved by shareholders at the 2005 Annual Meeting. 
The following table provides information regarding the plans as of December 31, 2008. 
 

Plan category 

Number of securities to 
be issued upon exercise 
of outstanding options 

Weighted-average 
exercise price of 

outstanding options 

Number of securities 
remaining available 
for future issuance 

Equity compensation plans 
approved by security 
holders 435,395 $ 26.58 333,500 

Equity compensation plans 
not approved by security 
holders — — — 

Total 435,395 $ 26.58 333,500 
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. 
 

The information regarding certain relationships and related transactions appears in the Company’s Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 21, 2009 under the headings “Board of 
Directors and Corporate Governance – Director Independence” and “Board of Directors and Corporate 
Governance – Related Party Transactions” and is incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services. 
 

The information regarding the principal accounting fees and services appears in the Company’s Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 21, 2009 under the heading “Item II – 
Approval of Independent Registered Public Accountants” and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

  
PART IV 

 
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. 
 

Financial Statements. All financial statements of Trinity are set forth under Item 8 of this Form 10-K. 
 
Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K: 

 
3.1 (1)   Articles of Incorporation of Trinity Capital Corporation 
      
3.2 (1)   Amended and Restated By-Laws of Trinity Capital Corporation 
      
4.1 (1) 

  
Indenture dated as of March 23, 2000 among Trinity Capital Corporation, Trinity Capital Trust I and 
The Bank of New York 

      
4.3 (2) 

  
Indenture dated as of May 11, 2004 between Trinity Capital Corporation, Trinity Capital Trust III and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association 

      
4.4 (4) 

  
Indenture dated as of June 29, 2005 between Trinity Capital Corporation, Trinity Capital Trust IV and 
Wilmington Trust Company 

   
4.5 (5) 

  
Indenture dated as of September 21, 2006 between Trinity Capital Corporation, Trinity Capital Trust 
V and Wilmington Trust Company. 

    
10.1 (1)    Los Alamos National Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan  
      
10.2 (1)   Trinity Capital Corporation 1998 Stock Option Plan 
      
10.3 (1) 

  
Promissory Note dated July 16, 2001, in the original principal amount of $3,300,075, made to the 
benefit of Valley National Bank, located in Espanola, New Mexico 

      
10.4 (2)   Form of stock option grant agreement 
      
10.5 (3)   Trinity Capital Corporation 2005 Stock Incentive Plan 
      
10.6 (3)    Trinity Capital Corporation 2005 Deferred Income Plan  
      
10.7 (6)   Director fee schedule  
   
10.8 (2)  Form of stock appreciation right grant agreement 
      
10.9 (7) 

  
Employment Agreement dated January 16, 2007 between Trinity Capital Corporation, Los Alamos 
National Bank and William C. Enloe 

      



 
103 

 

10.10 (7) 
  
Employment Agreement dated January 16, 2007 between Trinity Capital Corporation, Los Alamos 
National Bank and Steve W. Wells 

   
10.11 (8) 

 
Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 16, 2007 between Trinity Capital Corporation, 
Los Alamos National Bank and William C. Enloe dated March 13, 2008. 

   
10.12 (8) 
 
 
10.13  

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 16, 2007 between Trinity Capital Corporation, 
Los Alamos National Bank and Steve W. Wells dated March 13, 2008. 
 
Amendment to Trinity Capital Corporation 1998 Stock Option Plan 

 
10.14 
  

  
Amendment to Trinity Capital Corporation 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan 

21.1   Subsidiaries 
      
31.1   Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) 
      
31.2   Certification on Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) 
      
32.1 

  
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

     
32.2  

  
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

      
99.1 (1)   Audit Committee Charter 
 
_________________________ 
 
(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10 filed on April 30, 2003, as amended. 
(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed August 22, 2005 
(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form S-8 filed on July 28, 2005 
(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2005 
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed on November 9, 2006 
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 
(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 
(8)  Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 

 
SIGNATURES 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has 

duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
Date: March 16, 2009 TRINITY CAPITAL CORPORATION 
      
      
  By: /s/ William C. Enloe   
    William C. Enloe 

President and Chief Executive Officer 
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the 
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
 

Name  Title  Date 
   

/s/ William C. Enloe President, Chief Executive Officer March 16, 2009
William C. Enloe and Director  

   
/s/ Daniel R. Bartholomew Chief Financial Officer March 16, 2009

Daniel R. Bartholomew and Principal Accounting Officer  
   

/s/ Robert P. Worcester   
Robert P. Worcester Chairman of the Board and Director March 16, 2009

   
/s/ Jeffrey F. Howell   

Jeffrey F. Howell Director March 16, 2009
   

/s/ Deborah U. Johnson   
Deborah U. Johnson Director March 16, 2009

   
/s/ Jerry Kindsfather   

Jerry Kindsfather Director March 16, 2009
   

/s/ Arthur B. Montoya, Jr.   
Arthur B. Montoya, Jr. Director March 16, 2009

   
/s/ Lewis A. Muir   

Lewis A. Muir Director March 16, 2009
   

/s/ Stanley D. Primak   
Stanley D. Primak Vice-Chairman and Director March 16, 2009

   
/s/ Charles A. Slocomb   

Charles A. Slocomb Director March 16, 2009
   

/s/ Steve W. Wells   
Steve W. Wells Secretary and Director March 16, 2009
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